
CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
January 8, 2024

AGENDA

The regular open public meeting of the Central Union School District Board of Trustees will be
held on Monday, January 8, 2024 at District Presentation Center, 15783 18th Avenue, Lemoore,
CA 93245. The Board meeting will begin with a preliminary open session at 5:30 p.m. and
adjourn into closed session. After the closed session the general open session will be called to
order at 6:00 p.m.

Any individual who requires a translator, disability-related accommodations or modifications
including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the Board meeting should contact
the Superintendent or designee in writing no later than 8:00 a.m. the day of the meeting.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the
governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda are available for public
inspection and may be accessed under the Board Agenda and backup information housed on
the District website at www.central.k12.ca.us.

CUSD Mission Statement ~
Central Union School District seeks to be an exemplary learning community. We build the foundation of this
community through meaningful relationships, relevant and engaging learning, effective communication, and providing
a safe atmosphere. Each student will be treated as an individual, given the tools to be a lifelong learner, and taught
to function as a member of a group and as a productive member of society. We challenge ourselves to be better than
we think we can be, and advocate for the greater good of our community. Our success in this mission will build
lifelong, confident learners, who have the tools necessary for success in a changing world.

1. OPEN PUBLIC SESSION:
a. Call to Order
b. Roll Call
c. Flag Salute

Trustees:
Dale Davidson, Jeffrey Gilcrease, Ceil Howe III and Sarah Strait

District Administration: Site Administration:

Tom Addington Akers: Heiko Sweeney, Darin Denney
Traci Fullerton Central: Anne Gonzales, David Pilcher
Jared Johnson Neutra: Elizabeth Alvarado, Brittany Gately
Karla Burgos-Rodriquez Stratford: Christina Gonzales, Tara Taylor
Teresa Santamaria



Davinder Sidhu

CUSD Employee Associations' Representatives and others in attendance

2. PROCEDURE FOR VISITORS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

If any visitor wishes to address the Board, the request form, entitled “Request to Address
the Board” should be filled out as soon as possible. Complete the form in its entirety
and give it to the Superintendent. Persons may speak to any item on the agenda
when it comes up for discussion or persons may speak during the time designated,
“Courtesy to Visitors.” Persons speaking to the board should understand that the Board
invites your comments. Most questions asked of the Board require research and/or
investigation. Therefore, the Board may respond to your questions in writing. Your input
is important. However, if the comments involve a District employee or a student, the
President will, at that time, explain the rights of the Speaker and the rights of the
employee and/or student. Each address to the Board should not exceed five minutes in
length with no more than thirty minutes per item.

3. PRESENTATION(S):
a. CWDL, Certified Public Accountants - Annual Financial Report (virtual

presentation)

4. DISTRICT REPORTS:
a. Business Update - (ts)
b. Superintendent Update (ta)

ENROLLMENT

BEG. OF
YEAR
2022-2023

BEG. OF
YEAR
2023-24

December
2022-2023

December
2023-2024

Transfer
Students
From TOTAL

AKERS 672 651 688 645 LESD 26

CENTRAL 226 227 246 217 HANFORD 4

NEUTRA 413 428 430 430 OTHER 4

STRATFORD 283 278 288 291 Intra-District 4

TOTAL 1594 1584 1652 1583 TOTAL 38

5. COURTESY TO VISITORS:

6. CORRESPONDENCE AND BOARD INFORMATION:
a. 2nd Quarterly Williams Compliance Report



b. OLDCC Neutra Application Invitation for Public School Construction Funding

7. CONSENT AGENDA:
(at this time board members may request that an item or items be removed from the
consent agenda and placed as ‘new business’)

a. Approve minutes of the organizational board meeting of December 11, 2023
b. Approve separations:

i. 16-1/24
ii. 17-1/24
iii. 18-1/24
iv. 19-1/24
v. 20-1/24
vi. 21-1/24

c. Approve Memorandum of Understanding with Kings County Office of Education
re math intervention (ta)

d. Approve Agreement with Tulare County Office of Education re updated ERS
services (ta)

e. Approve second amendment of the Memorandum of Understanding with Kings
County Office of Education re ELPAC & CAASPP Training & Support (ds)

Approve items a) through e):

8. OLD BUSINESS:
a. none

9. NEW BUSINESS
a. Announce out any closed session decision. (ta)
b. Approve December 2023 District warrants (ts)
c. Approve December 2023 Fiscal Position Reports for General Fund and Cafeteria

Fund (ts)
d. Approve Resolution #A-01-08-2024 District acceptance/adoption of the Audit

Report for Year Ending June 30, 2023 from CWDL, Certified Public Accountants
(ts)

e. Approve Resolution #B-01-08-2024 Investment Policy and Investment Authority
(ts)

f. Approve 2023 draft of Annual School Site Accountability Report Cards (ta)

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:

11. CLOSED SESSION:
The closed session of the Board of Trustees will be held to consider the following:

a. Personnel (Gov. Code 54957)





  OFFICE OF LOCAL DEFENSE COMMUNITY COOPERATION 

2231 Crystal Drive, Suite 520 

Arlington, VA  22202-3711 

… 
Thomas Addington 
Superintendent 
Central Union School District 
15783 18th Avenue 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Dear Superintendent Addington: 

Central Union School District is invited to submit a formal grant application for Office of 
Local Defense Community Cooperation funding in an amount not to exceed $36,572,042 in 
federal funding for a progressive design-build project to renovate and construct new facilities at 
Richard J. Neutra Elementary School, with an estimated total design-build cost of $45,715,053.  
This invitation is the result of the Public Schools on Military Installations Federal Evaluation 
Team's review of your April 25, 2023, proposal and November 21, 2023, responses to questions 
to validate the proposed project scope and responsiveness to address the condition and capacity 
deficiencies at Richard J. Neutra Elementary School.  

As explained in the April 23, 2015, Federal Register Notice for this program, a grant 
award will be based on your complete application for federal funding, subject to compliance with 
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and Council on Environmental Quality NEPA 
regulations.  The inclusion of accurate and complete information will greatly assist our 
processing of your application in a timely manner.  

Our point of contact who can assist you with this application is Diane Mathein, (703) 
505-3173, diane.c.mathein.civ@mail.mil.  We greatly appreciate your responsiveness to date and 
look forward to working with your team on this important project.

Sincerely, 

Patrick J. O’Brien 
Director 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 11, 2023

MINUTES

The Annual Organizational open public meeting of the Central Union School District Board of
Trustees was held on Monday, December 11, 2023 at District Presentation Center, 15783 18th
Avenue, Lemoore, CA 93245. The Board meeting began with a preliminary open session at
5:00 p.m. and adjourned into closed session at 5:00 p.m. Following the closed session
meeting of the Board of Trustees, the general open session was called to order at 6:01 p.m.
The meeting adjourned at 6:31 p.m.

Any individual who requires a translator, disability-related accommodations or modifications
including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the Board meeting should contact
the Superintendent or designee in writing no later than 8:00 a.m. the day of the meeting.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the
governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda are available for public
inspection and may be accessed under the Board Agenda and backup information housed on
the District website at www.central.k12.ca.us.

CUSD Mission Statement ~
Central Union School District seeks to be an exemplary learning community. We build the foundation of this
community through meaningful relationships, relevant and engaging learning, effective communication, and providing
a safe atmosphere. Each student will be treated as an individual, given the tools to be a lifelong learner, and taught
to function as a member of a group and as a productive member of society. We challenge ourselves to be better than
we think we can be, and advocate for the greater good of our community. Our success in this mission will build
lifelong, confident learners, who have the tools necessary for success in a changing world.

1. OPEN PUBLIC SESSION:
a. Call to Order
b. Roll Call
c. Flag Salute

Trustees:
Dale Davidson, Jeffrey Gilcrease, Ceil Howe III, and Sarah Strait were all
present.

District Administration: Site Administration:

Tom Addington Akers: Heiko Sweeney, Darin Denney



Traci Fullerton Central: Anne Gonzales, David Pilcher
Jared Johnson Neutra: Elizabeth Alvarado, Brittany Gately
Karla Burgos-Rodriquez Stratford: Christina Gonzales, Tara Taylor
Teresa Santamaria
Davinder Sidhu

All administration was present with the exception of Brittany Gately. CUSD Employee
Associations' Representatives and others were in attendance.

2. PROCEDURE FOR VISITORS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

If any visitor wishes to address the Board, the request form, entitled “Request to Address
the Board” should be filled out as soon as possible. Complete the form in its entirety
and give it to the Superintendent. Persons may speak to any item on the agenda
when it comes up for discussion or persons may speak during the time designated,
“Courtesy to Visitors.” Persons speaking to the board should understand that the Board
invites your comments. Most questions asked of the Board require research and/or
investigation. Therefore, the Board may respond to your questions in writing. Your input
is important. However, if the comments involve a District employee or a student, the
President will, at that time, explain the rights of the Speaker and the rights of the
employee and/or student. Each address to the Board should not exceed five minutes in
length with no more than thirty minutes per item.

3. ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICES
a. Elected Jeffrey Gilcrease as President of the Board of Education
b. Elected Sarah Strait as Clerk of the Board of Education

4. PRESENTATION(S):
a. None

5. DISTRICT REPORTS:
a. ESSER III Update provided
b. Business Update - First Interim Report provided
c. Superintendent Update provided

ENROLLMENT

BEG. OF
YEAR
2022-2023

BEG. OF
YEAR
2023-24

November
2022-2023

November
2023-2024

Transfer
Students
From TOTAL

AKERS 672 651 690 650 LESD 26

CENTRAL 226 227 248 219 HANFORD 4

NEUTRA 413 428 434 431 OTHER 4



STRATFORD 283 278 293 292 Intra-District 4

TOTAL 1594 1584 1665 1592 TOTAL 38

6. COURTESY TO VISITORS: None

7. CORRESPONDENCE AND BOARD INFORMATION:
a. School Newsletters

8. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approved minutes of the regular board meeting of November 13, 2023
b. Approved separations:

i. 13-11/23
ii. 14-11/23

c. Approved the following administrators as teacher evaluators: Tom Addington,
Elizabeth Alvarado, Karla Burgos-Rodriguez, Darin Denney, Brittany Gately,
Anne Gonzales, Christina Gonzales, David Pilcher, Davinder Sidhu, Heiko
Sweeney and Tara Taylor

d. Approved Davinder Sidhu to direct the District Civil Rights Plan and oversee
compliance, and authorization

e. Approved Tom Addington (or Superintendent’s Designee) to serve as the District
Safety Officer, and authorization to serve as the Injury and Illness Prevention
Director

f. Approved extension to contract with Kings County Office of Education for internet
services

g. Approved updated ESSER III Expenditure Plan
h. Approved Amended Memorandum of Understanding with Kings County Office of

Education for ELPAC & CAASPP Training and Support
i. Approved Agreement with Tulare County Office of Education regarding Impact

Teacher Credential Program
j. Approved Renewal Agreement with University of Massachusetts regarding intern

teachers
k. Approved Annual Microsoft Subscription
l. Approved Filemaker Pro Annual License
m. Approved Technology Surplus Request
n. Approved Downey Unified School District and Apple “Piggyback” consent for

direct purchase agreement

Approved items a) through n)

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Dale Davidson



Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

9. OLD BUSINESS:
a. None

10. NEW BUSINESS
a. Announcements were made from closed session.

President Jeffrey Gilcrease announced that ​​during the closed session with a vote of 4-0
the Board has approved the unpaid leave request for Employee #15-12/23. The
Superintendent or his designee is directed to take the necessary steps to notify the
employee of this action.

Trustee Ceil Howe, III announced a decision from closed session that based upon
violation of Education Code Section 48900(c), it was moved to expel student
E-12-11-2023, from the Central Union Elementary School District through June 7, 2024.

Further, it was recommended that the student may return and enroll at a different school
site within the District under a suspended expulsion order beginning on January 8, 2024.
Upon student’s return to campus, the site will develop a behavior contract for student
E-12-11-2023, including satisfactory attendance, appropriate behavior, satisfactory
grades, and counseling with the District counselor or psychologist. If the student fails to
follow any condition of the behavior contract, the expulsion order will be reinstated.

Mr. Howe further announced a decision from closed session that based upon violation of
Education Code Section 48900(c), it was moved to expel student F-12-11-2023, from the
Central Union Elementary School District through June 7, 2024.

Further, it was recommended that the student may return and enroll at a different school
site within the District under a suspended expulsion order beginning on January 8, 2024.
Upon student’s return to campus, the site will develop a behavior contract for student
F-12-11-2023, including satisfactory attendance, appropriate behavior, satisfactory
grades, and counseling with the District counselor or psychologist. If the student fails to
follow any condition of the behavior contract, the expulsion order will be reinstated.

b. Approved November 2023 District warrants
c. Approved November 2023 Fiscal Position Reports for General Fund and

Cafeteria Fund

One motion was made for items b and c

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Dale Davidson



Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

d. Approved Annual Developer fee report

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

e. Approved 2023-2024 District First Interim Budget

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

f. Approved Resolution #AA-12-11-2023 Budget Revisions

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Dale Davidson

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

g. Approved Resolution #BB-12-11-2023 Certification of Verified Authorized
Signatures on behalf of the Board

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

h. Approved the 2024-2025 School District Calendar and Certificated work year
calendar

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Ceil Howe, III

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

i. Adopted the Central Union Board meeting schedule for the 2024 calendar year

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait



Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: None

12. CLOSED SESSION
The closed session of the Board of Trustees will be held to consider the following:

a. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #E-12-11-2023 (Gov. Code §35146)

b. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #F-12-11-2023 (Gov. Code §35146)

c. Personnel (Gov. Code §54957)

Respectively submitted,

__________________________ _________________________
President Clerk







Tim A. Hire 

County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 

P.O. Box 5091 
Visalia, California 
93278-5091 

(559) 733-6300
tcoe.org

Administration 
(559) 733-6301
fax (559) 627-5219

Business Services 
(559) 733-6474 
fax (559) 737-4378

Human Resources 
(559) 733-6306
fax (559) 627-4670

Instructional Services 
(559) 302-3633
fax (559) 739-0310

Special Services 
(559) 730-2910
fax (559) 730-2511

Main Locations 

Administration 
Building & Conference 
Center 
6200 S. Mooney Blvd. 
Visalia 

Doe Avenue Complex 
7000 Doe Ave. 
Visalia 

Liberty Center/ 
Planetarium & 
Science Center 
11535 Ave. 264 
Visalia 

Tulare Cwunty 
Office of Education 
Committed to Students, Support & Service 

December 15, 2023 

Central Union School District 

15783 18th A venue 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

Mr. Thomas Addington, 

Attached is your Agency Agreement Amendment for 23-24 from 
Educational Resource Services Library. 

Please sign and return either by e-mail or by mail to: 

E-mail:

OR 

Mail: 

karla.doyer@tcoe.org 

Tulare County Office of Education 
Attn: Karla Doyer, Purchasing & Agreements Manager 
P.O. Box 5091 
Visalia, Ca 93278-5091 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Karla Doyer 

Purchasing & Agreements Manager I 559-302-3729 I karla.doyer@tcoe.org 



240145-A

December 18, 2023













December 18, 2023



lentral Union Elementary School District

rant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1210112023

Vendor Name

Page 1 of I

12/112023 l:31:23PM

Amount

t2732060
12732061

12732062

12732063

12732064
12732065

12732066

12732067

t2732068
12732069
12732070

127320',71

12732072

12732073

12732074

12732075

12732076

12732077

12732078
12732079

12732080

12732081

12732082
12732083

12732084
12732085

12732086
12732087

12732088
12732089

12732090
12732091

12732092
12732093

12732094
12732095

12732096
1273209"1

12732098
12732099
12732100
t2732101
12732102

4230
4862
2703
2796
ll5

4833

2748

148

4955

4859
4314
4920

4841

4921

280
4840
1875

2241

2451
473

4358

2334

542

598

1937

3954
3537

3397

720
725

4208
3893

766

1332

914
n26
4760

3984
3986
3985

976

4204

4l l5

JOELALVARADO
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC

AT&T
AT&T
BLINDS ETC.
JAMES BOCHMAN
BULLET IMPRESSIONS INC.

BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH

CALIFORNIA TURF EQUIP & SUPPLY INC

JASMINE CAMPBELL
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC
ANDREW CASTILLO
CRASHPLAN GROUP LLC
KRISTEN CULLEN
DEMCO INC.
EMCOR SERVICES MESA ENERGY

ENVIROCLEAN
ANNE GONZALES
CHRIS HOLDBROOKS
HOME DEPOT
HOME DEPOT PRO

LUKE JACOBS
KINGS CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION
LOZANO SMITH
MATSONALARM CO INC
MCGRAW HILLEDUCATION
MID VALLEY DISPOSAL
THENED SHOW

ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO

DAVID PILCHER
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.

STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE
STAPLES
STONEY'S SAND & GRAVEL LLC
HEIKO SWEENEY
DAVID TOSTE

US BANK (ADDINGTON)

US BANK (FULLERTON)

US BANK (SANTAMARIA)
US GAMES
VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT INC
COURTNEY WILCOX

$58.95

$8,348.84
$3,022.18
$ 1,078.29

$2,944.01

$ss.02
$348.s6
$279.00

$29,822.8s

$210.00

$4,501.72

$234.36

$ 19,046.00

s261.66
$314.38

$ 13,529.00

$75s.04
$348.74

$4,000.00

$327.',76

$98.02

$11.04

$140.23

$4,245.75

$1,480.94

$733.1 8

9728.20

$1,800.00

$1,104.52

$5,1 17.1 3

$80.00

$179.11

$1,566.44

$99s.67
$30.24

$61.s7
$141.22

$325.00

$5,748.59

$2,825.77

$776.43

s55,687.92

s 105.3 8

$rzs ,468 .1tTotal Amount of All Warrants:

4^hr-,-J



tr

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Sigrature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 43 $173,468.71

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 1210112023 $173'468'71

Authorized Offrcer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

x If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

12732060 4230 ALVARADO,JOEL

12732061 4862 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICEI

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

Page I of l0
121112023 l:31:37PM

Amount

$s8.95

$s8.95

$58.95

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2

PV - 28674 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-520003-120-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
CM-
PO-
PO-
PO-
CM-
cM-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
CM-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
CM-

27463

27463

27s09

27463

27461

27041

27463

27463

2',1509

27046

27047

27M6

27446

27490

27440

27042

27440

27440

27440

27440

27475

2'7475

27440

27432

27440

27s|s

27043

27478

2'7478

27475

27447

27487

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- l2 l -00-0000

0 I 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 r -00-0000

0l 00-00s0-0-0000-7700430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-l2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000- 1 2 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-12 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000-l2l -00-0000

01 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 12 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000-12 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-l 2 l -00-0000

01 00-00s0-0-0000-7700430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0l 00-0097-0-0000-7600-430000-1 07-00-0000

0 1 00-0097-0-0000-7600-430000-l 07-00-0000

0 I 00- I 1 00-0-1 l 1 0-1 000430000-222-00-0000

0100-l r00-0-l l l0-l 000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0t 00-l I 00-0-l I l0-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0l 00-l I 00-0- I l I 0- 1 000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-l l 00-0-1 l 1 0-1000430000-525-00-0000

01 00-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-1 l 00-0-l I l0-1 000-430000-525-00-0000

0l 00- l 1 00-0- 1 l I 0- l 000-430000-525-00-0000

0 1 00- 1 l 00-0- l 1 l 0- l 000-430000-525-00-0000

0r 00-1 l 00-0-l 1 l0-1 000430001 -323-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 r l0-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1000-430000-323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000430000-525-00-0000

01 00-1 l 00-0-l 1 l0-1 000430000-525-00-0000

0l 00-l 1 00-0-1 r I 0-1000430000-525-00-0000

01 00-1 100-0-l l r 0-1000-430000-s25-00-0000

01 00-1 l 00-0- l I l 0- I 000-43002 I -222-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 I t0-2700430000-222-00-0000

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Allowance

Materials and Supplies

$360.04

$s78.83

$28.81

$16.29

$l 7.1 1

-$28.79

s12.72

$5.30

$6.38

-$156.00

-$204.00

$135.46

$96.46

$2',t2.01

$221.16

-$ 16.48

$114.36

$1 59.60

$s7. I 8

$87.66

$96.s0

$107.20

$21 1.80

$504.38

$90.99

$49.87

-$s. I 9

$1 7.1 5

$18.1 I

s21.44

$22.5r

$23.s7



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

Page 2 of l0
l2lll2023 l:31:37PM

AmountResource

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Titls I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low
Income

Elementary & Secondary School
Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School
Emergency Relief III (ESSER nl)
Fund

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

lJnrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

[Jnrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Object

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Material s/Cl assroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Materials and Supplies

1273206t - 27440

- 27475

- 27489

- 2748s

- 27485

- 2748s

- 27485

- 27485

- 27485

- 27485

- 27439

4862 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICE! PO

PO

PO

PO

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

0l 00- I I 00-0-t I I 0-1 000430000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-l I l0-1000-430000-s25-00-0000

01 00- l r 00-0-r l 1 0- 1 000-43000 l -222-00-0000

01 00-3010-0-1 l 10-1000430001-525-55-0203

0 l 00-301 0-0- I 1 I 0- I 000-43000 1 -s2s-ss-0203

0100-3010-0-1 I 1 0-1 00043000r -525-55-0203

0100-3010-0-l 1 l0-1000430001-525-55-0203

0 1 00-301 0-0- 1 l l 0- l 000-43000 I -525-ss-0203

0100-3010-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001-525-55-0203

0 r 00-301 0-0- l 1 r 0- r 000-43000 l -525-5s -0203

0l 00-321 3-0-1 l I 0-8200-430000-525-00-0000

27044 0 l 00-321 3-0- l I l 0-8200-430000-525-00-0000

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

CM

CM

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

$30.88

$37.58

$30.02

$47.60

$48. l 1

Ms.54

$48.50

$48.63

$s3.s4

$37. 1 0

$94.98

-$4.63

27040

2'7483

27483

27488

274'75

2',7475

27475

27475

27475

27483

27475

27483

27450

27475

27475

27488

28665

0 r 00-0000-0- I l I 0-8200-4300 14-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200430000-121 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-43 0000- l 2 l -00-0000

01 00-0000-0- I l I 0-82004300 I 4-424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-1000430000-531-00-0000

0100-0000-0-r I l0-1000430000-s3l-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 l I 0- l 000-430000-53 l -00-0000

01 00-0000-0-l 1 l0-1 000-430000-s3 1 -00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-1000-430000-531-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0-1 r l 0-l 000-430000-53 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- 12 1 -00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- 121 -00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-1 I 10-1000-430000-53 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-1 l 1 0-l 000-430000-53 l -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-430014-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-1 2 r -00-0000

-$19.23

$1 l.s4

$9.93

$26.05

$28.61

s47.99

$32.08

$s3.57

$61.08

$128.69

$13 1. l9

$87.01

$270.25

$68.37

$107.20

$96.42

$s0.34



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

tz t S'2u61 4602 Alvll\zur\ L.Arl l AL Jtrr(v lr,tr: r v
ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
tr'or Payments Dated: 1210112023

UI UU-VUUU-U-UUUU- /ZUU4JUUUU- IZ I -UU-UUUU

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7 1 00-430000- l2 l -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-1 l 1 0-3 140-430000-222-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200430000- I 2 1 -00-0000

0l 00-72 I 0-0-l I l 0-l 00043000 I -323-00-0000

0100-7210-0-1 l 10-1000-430001-323-00-0000

0l 00-72 l 0-0- l l 1 0-1 00043000 l -323-00-0000

0100-7210-0-l I l0-1000430001-323-00-0000

0100-7210-0-r I l0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

PV

PV

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

CM

26()0r+

28663

28666

28667

27437

27438

27438

27438

27045

- 27012

- 27012

- 27012

- 27012

- 27012

- 27012

Page 3 of l0
l2lll2023 l:31:37PM

AmountResource

uIlItSul9tvu ntsuuI9E5

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

Object

lvrargnars anq Duppl les

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

$77.22

$l18.99

$32.49

$4.49

$142.64

$42.86

$36.45

$36.45

-$r4.95

12732061 4862

12732062 2703 AT&T

r2732063 2796 AT&T

12732064 1I5 BLINDS ETC.

12t32055 4833 BOCHMAN, JAMES

- 27177 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-580000-222-00-0000

286'73 0 I 00-0000-0-1 I I 0-8200-520003-1 20-00-0000

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICE! PO - 2'1462

PO - 27460

2'.7013

27013

27013

27013

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700430000-000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-440000-000-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l I r 0-8200-59001 0-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-590010424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-t I 10-8200-590010-323-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-8200-5900 I 0-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-5900 1 0-l 2 l -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-s900r 0-222-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- r l 1 0-8200-s900 l 0-424-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- 1 l r 0-8200-5900 I 0-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-8200-s900 I 0- 12 1 -00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-8200-s900 1 0- l 2l -00-0000

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Equipment-Non Depreciated

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For Fund Number: 01 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resourc.es Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For Fund Number; 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

$s,r 08.01

$21.69

$3,219. l4

$3,240.83

$8,348.84

$ss6.s9

s667.44

s832.27

$96s.88

$3,022. I 8

$3,022.18

s34.79

$62.1 l

s129.49

$127.66

$271.06

Ms3.l8

$1,078.29

$1,078.29

$2,944.0r

$2,9M.01

$2,944.01

$55.02

$5s.02

s55.02

2748 BULLET IMPRESSIONS INC. Pv - 28654 0100-1100-0-1110-2700-430001-323-00-0000 State Lotteryt2732066 Instructional Materials/Classroom $348.56



lentral Union Elementary School District

12732075

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

Page 4 of l0
l2ll12023 l:31:37PM

Amount)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

t2'132067 148 BUREAUOFEDUCATION&F pO - 27540 0100-3010-0-1110-1000-520000-525-55-0304

12732068 4955 CALTFORNTATURF EQUIP& i pO - 27548 0100-0000-0-0000-8s00-640000-121-00-0000

12732069 4859 CAMPBELL, JASMINE pv - 28679 0100-0000-0-0000-0000-952500-000-00-0000

t2732070 4314 CANON FINANCTAL SERVICE pO - 27299 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-560000-121-00-0000

12'132071 4920 CASTILLO,ANDREW py - 28676 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-12l-00-0000

127320'.72 484t CRASHPLANGROUPLLC pO - 27530 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-580011-12l-00-0000

127320't3 4921 CULLEN, KzuSTEN pv - 28656 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-323-00-0000

12732074 280 DEMCO INC. PO - 27526 0100-1100-0-1110-1000430001424-00-0000 StateLottery

4840 EMCOR SERVICES MESAENT PO 0 1 00-0000-0-0000-8500-620000 -szs -00 -7 590

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-8s 00-620000 -323 -00-7 590

0l 00-0000-0- 1 I 1 0-8200-430012424-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l 1 l 0-8200-430012-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- l 1 1 0-8200-4300t2-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I 10-8200-4300r2-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- l 1 I 0-8200-430012-525-00-0000

Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low Travel and Conferences
Income

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Equipment

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Payroll Liability Holding

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

UnrestrictedResources Buildingsandlmprovementof
Buildings

Unrestricted Resources Buildings and Improvement of
Buildings

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unreslricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

PO

27180

27180

$348.56

$279.00

$279.00

s279.00

$29,822.8s

$29,822.85

s29,822.85

$210.00

s210.00

$2r0.00

$4,501.72

s4,501.72

$4,501.72

s234.36

s234.36

s234.36

$19,046.00

rc46.o0
__ll2'046.99

$261.66

$261.66

$261.66

$314.38

s314.38

s314.38

$6,620.00

$6,909.00

$13,529.00

$13,529.00

$92.23

$92.23

$92.24

$92.24

$3 86.1 0

PO - 270'77

PO - 27077

PO - 27077

PO - 27077

PO - 27077

12732076 1875 ENVIROCLEAN



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

12732077 2241 GONZALES,ANNE

12732078

12732079 473 HOME DEPOT

12732080 4358 HOMEDEPOTPRO

12732081

12732082

12732082

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

2451 HOLDBROOKS,CHRIS pv - 28662 0100-0000-0-0000-0000-952500-000-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

0100-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430000-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-2495-430000-323-31 -0201

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 1 4424-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 1 00-430014-s25-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 1 4-525-00-0000

0 r 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 1 00-430014-323-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 14 -424-00-0000

0l 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 1 004300 14 -222-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 1 4-222-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 1 00-430014-525-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 1 4-424-00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 1 4-222-00-0000

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Payroll Liability Holding

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Payroll Liability Holding

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Prof- Serv. & Oper. Exp.

-Fingerprinting

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Prof. Serv. & Oper. Exp. -
Advertising

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Resource

Total For Fund Number:

Page 5 of l0
l2ll12023 l:31:37PM

Amount

D / )).U4

s755.04

$209.21

$139.53

-$jZ8ra
$348.74

$4,000.00

$4,000.00

$4,000.00

Object

U UU

PV

PV 28658

28657

PO - 27071

PO - 270',11

PO - 2',1071

PV - 28670

PV - 28669

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

PO - 27390

$34.80

$34.80

$47.1 3

$47.14

$47.r4

$47.14

$34.80

$34.81

2334

542

542

s98

JACOBS, LUKE pv - 28680 0100-0000-0-0000-0000-952500-000-00-0000

KTNGSCOOFFICEOFEDUC.A PV - 28683 0100-0000-0-0000-7490-580060-l2l-00-0000

KINGSCOOFFICEOFEDUC/ PO - 27s79 1300-s310-0-0000-3700-580040-000-00-0000

$327.76

s327.76

$25.78

$r2.84

$12.84

$14.51

$32.0s

s98.02

$98.02

$11.04

$r 1.04

$11.04

$49.00

$49.00

$91.23

$91.23

sr40.23

12'.732083 LOZANO SMITH po - 27025 0100-0000-0-0000-7100-580010-121-00-0000 $1,659.00



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2't32UA3

12732084

r2732085 3954 MCGRAWHILLEDUCATION PO

PO

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

JY6 LUZAI\U JIUI T r T\J

1937 MAISON ALARM CO INC PO

PO

PO

PO

27009

27009

27009

27009

27496

27522

3537 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL PO - 27008

PO - 27008

3397 NEDSHOWTHE PO 27566

27566

OzuENTAL TRADING COMPA PO - 27386

PO - 27501

725 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTzuC C( PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

01 00-0000-0-l I l 0-8200-580000-323-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-580000-l2l-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- 1 I I 0-8200-580000-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-580000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1000-430001-424-00-0000

01 00-321 3-0-1 l l0-1000-41 0000-l2t-3 l-0101

0 l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-5s0020-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-ss0020-120-00-0000

0l 00-30 1 0-0-l I I 0-1 000-580000- s25 -55 -0203

0100-3010-0-l l l0-r000-580000-525-55-0202

0100-0038-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001-424-00-0000

0100-0038-0-l l l0-1000-430000-424-00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0- 1 l I 0-8200-550020-222-00 -0000

0 l 00-0000-0- I l I 0-8200-550020-120-00-0000

0 100-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-550020-323-00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0- l r l 0-8200-550020- 1 20-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I l 1 0-8200-5s0020-s2s-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-1 l I 0-8200-550020-s25-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-l I l 0-8200-ss0020-323-00-0000

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Page 6 of l0
121112023 l:31:37PM

Amount

$2,586.75

$4,24s.7s

$4,245.75

s210.33

$149.44

$193.73

s927.M

$1,480.94

$1,480.94

$130.71

s602.47

$733. l 8

s733.r8

$582.s6

sr45.64

$728.20

s728.20

$900.00

$900.00

$1,800.00

s1,800.00

$737.4s

$367.07

$1,104.52

$1,104.52

$2,628.39

$r,578.74

s23.82

$23.82

$23.82

$23.82

$26.34

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2
L IVZ) U I UU-UUUU-U-UUVU- / I VU-JOUU I V. I Z I -UV-UVUU

Resource Object
uruglulelgu ne]uuluss rrol. ilgrv 6a rJpcr. rxp.- LUBaI

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Instructional Materials/Classroom

Elementary & Secondary School Textbooks
Emergency Relief III (ESSER IID
Fund

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low Other Services and Operating
Income Expenditures

IASA-Title I Basic Grants Low Other Services and Operating
Income Expenditures

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

12t32086

12732087

12732088

12732089

PO

720 Donations

Donations

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resourc.es

27006

27006

27006

27006

27006

27006

27006



t2732090 4208 PILCHER, DAVID

t2'132091 3893 SHERWIN-WILLIAMSCO.

lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2732089 725

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

0 1 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00430014 -222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 I 00430014 222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-0000-0000-951400-000-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-340 r 00- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-1 l I 0-8200430012-222-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

Resource Object
unrestncted Kesources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Unrestricted Resources Health & Welfare Benefits,
certificated

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For Fund Number. 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

PACI}.IC GAS & ELHCI'ruU U( PO - 2'IUU6

PO - 27006

PO - 27006

PO - 27006

PO - 27055

PO - 27055

PO - 27055

STANDARD LIFE INSURANCI PV - 28686

PV - 28685

1332 STAPLES 28668

27538

u I uu-uOuu-u- t I I u-u2uu-55u02u-525-0u-0u0u

0r 00-0000-0-r l I 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-550020-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-550020-l 20-00-0000

PV - 28655 0100-0000-0-1110-2495-430000-323-31-0201

Page 7 of l0
121112023 l:31:37PM

Amount

$37. l 8

$38.69

$9s.48

$617.03

$5,1 1 7.13

$5,117.13

$80.00

$80.00

$80.00

$9.86

$49.58

$1r 9.67

$r79.11

$t79.ll

$1,482.47

s37.32

$1,s 19.79

$46.6s

$46.65

s1,566.44

$887.ss

$'13.s2

s961.07

$34.60

-534=d

$995.67

$30.24

-530-5i

$30.24

$61.s7

$61.57

$61.57

$r41.22

sr41.22

st4t.22

12732092

12732092

766

766 STANDARDLIFETNSURANCT pV - 28684 1300-0000-0-0000-0000-951400-000-00-0000

r2732093

12732093 1332 STAPLES PO - 27s38 1300-s310-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

12732094 914 STONEY'SSAND&GRAVELT pO - 2'1054 0100-8150-0-0000-8t00430014-424-00-0000

12732095 1126 SWEENEY, HEIKO Py - 286't1 0100-0000-0-1110-2700-520003-222-00-0000

12732096 4760 TOSTE,DAVID PV - 28677 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-l2l-00-0000

PV

PO

t2732097 3984 USBANK(ADDINGTON) Pv - 28672 0100-0000-0-0000-7100-520000-121-00-0000 $325.00



lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2732098 3986 USBANK(FULLERTON)

12732099

976 US GAMES

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-s8001 I -l2l -00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 r0-1000430000-222-00-0000

0l 00-32 1 3-0-0000-741 0-520000- I 21 -00-0000

27 53s 0l 00-32 l 3-0-0000-741 0-520000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

27 s36 0 1 00-32 r 3-0-0000-74 1 0-s20000- I 2 l -00-0000

0 r 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 1 00-560009- 120-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 l 00430000- r 20-00-0000

Resource Object
lolal r()r runu l\ulllusr. uluu

Total Amount of PaYment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Elementary & Secondary School Travel and Conferences
Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Travel and Conferences
Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Travel and Conferences
Emergency Relief III (ESSER IID
Fund

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Safety Credis Materials and Supplies

PO

PV

PO

27512

28675

27537

0l 00-0097-0-0000-7600-430000- 1 07-00-0000

0 I 00- 1 100-0-l 1 I 0-l 00043000 I -525-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 r0-1000430000-323-00-0000

01 00-l I 00-0-r l 10-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0 l 00-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

0 I 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 00-560009-424-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-s60009424-00-0000

01 00-0038-0-1 I 1 0-l 000-430001 424-00-0000

0100-1 l 00-0-l 1 60-1 000-430001 -424-00-0000

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

Child Nutrition: Kitchen
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen
Infrastructure & Training Funds

Donations

State Lottery

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Page 8 of l0
121112023 l:31:37PM

Amount

JJZJ.UU

$32s.00

$39s.00

$281.8s

$618.50

$1,797.00

$1,797.00

$207.99

$651 .2s

$5,748.59

$5,748.59

$289.84

$110.00

$218.9s

$154.44

$482.61

$1,447.83

$61.0s

$61.05

$2,825.77

s2,825.77

$231.83

$s44.60

$776.43

$776.43

$2,784.40

s2,784.40

$1 I,137.s8

$l 1,137.58

$4r,765.94

PO

PO

3985 US BANK (SANTAMARIA) PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO - 27465

PO - 27502

27453

27534

27533

27477

2',1482

PV - 28681

PV - 28682

PO - 27482 0100-7032-0-0000-0000430000-000-00-0000

2022

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Pavment:

12732100

PO

12732101 4204 VANTRCONSTRUCTTONMAN PV - 28661 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

t2732101 4204 VANTRCONSTRUCTIONMA\ pV - 28660 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

PO 27348

27348

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees12732101 4204 VANTRCONSTRUCTIONMA\ pV - 28659 4000-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592



lentral Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2 Resource

12732t02 4115 WILCOX, COURTNEY PV - 28678 0100-1100-0-1110-1000430021-525-00-0000 StateLottery

Object
l0tal ruf rullu lfulllust. +uvv

Total Amount of Payment:

Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page 9 of 10

l2ll12023 l:31:37PM

Amount

b4l, /o).vr+

$55,687.92

$105.38

$105.38

$r05.38



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0r 00

1300

1400

3500

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210112023

Total # of Payments: 43

Page I ofl
l2ll12023 l:31:37PM

Totat # of Payments: 43 Grand Total:

Total

s114,367.48

$3,413.31

s2,784.40

$11,137.58

s41,765.94

$173,468.71

$ 173,468.71



jenhal Union Elementary School District

rant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1210612023

Vendor Name

Page I of I

1211512023 7:44:09AM

Amount

127325rO

12732511

165

4883

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OTTER GRAPHICS INC

$560.00

$884.81

Total Amount of All Warrants: $1,444 .81

W



tr

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 2 $1,444.81

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 1210612023 $1'444'81

Authorized Officer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



lentral Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210612023

Page I of 2

121151202. 7:44:46AM

Amount

$560.00

s)ou.uu

$s60.00

$884.81

$884.81

$884.81

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

127325t0 l6s CALIFORNIADEPARTMENT( pV - 28701 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620000-525-00-7588

12732511 4883 OTTERGRAPHICS INC PO - 2t498 0100-1100-0-1110-1000430000-323-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Buildings and Improvement of
Buildings

Total For FundNumber: 1400

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

1400

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210612023

Total # of Payments: 2

Page I of I

l2ll5l202:. 7:44:47AM

Total # of Payments: 2 Grand Total:

Total

$884.81

ss60.00

$1,444.81

$ 1,444.81



lentral Union Elementary School District

Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1210812023

Page I of I

1211512023 7:47:374M

Amountrant Number Vendor Name

12732591

12732598
12732599
12732600
12732601
12732602

12732603

12732604
12732605
12732606
r2732607
12732608
12732609
r2732610
127326r1
t2732612
127326t3
12732614
1273261s
12732616
12732617

12732618
12732619
12732620
12732621

12732622

12732623

12732624

12732625

12732626

12732627

12732628
12732629

12732630
12732631

$336.52

$836.46

s77.26

$7.41

$29.90

$164.93

$ I I ,000.00
$170.07

$14.00

$8,130.64

$l19.83
$107.20

$58.41

$26.72

$122.73

$88. I 8

s140.67

ss5.02
$41. l3

$719.70

$ 1,800.00

$321.45

$s78.8 I
$8,292.52

$183.07

$12,000.00

$277,205.00

s648. I 1

$42.0s

$7.82

$3,688.58

$940.00

$81.3s

$7.73

91,282.71

4092
4426

4968
1768
3675
4920

4964
4820

4850

401

405

245r
3230

471

572

575

4970

4839

565

3537

3974
4208
1487

761

4567

4945

879
882

4469

915

916
4971

4760

4969

3450

AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
BIMBO BAKERIES USA INC
WENDYM BORSOTTI

LAURIE BOTELLO
ASHLEY BULLIS
ANDREW CASTILLO
CLARIS INTERNATIONAL INC

KARLACLOTT
AMANEI GARCIA
GOLD STAR FOODS INC.
GOPHER SPORTS

CHRIS HOLDBROOKS
DIANAHOLMES
HOLT LUMBER INC.

LEMOOREAUTO SUPPLY

LEMOORE HARDWARE
FRANKA LOPEZ JR

BIANCALOPEZ
CHRISTINA LUIS
MID VALLEY DISPOSAL
PBKARCHITECTS INC.

DAVID PILCHER
POWERSCHOOL GROUP LLC
PRODUCERS DAIRY
SYLVIA RIOS

Inc Sierra West Consulting Group

SISC M
SMART& FINAL
NICKOLAS STARNE

STRATFORDAUTO SUPPLY

STRATFORD PUBLIC UTILITY DIST

LLC THECRANIUM COMPANY
DAVID TOSTE
SABRINA L VERNON

VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

Total Amount of All Warrants: $329 ,325.98



.1

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 35 $329,325.98

Credit Card PaYments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 1210812023 $329'325'98

Authorized Offrcer/Employ ee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

\
tr

tr

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



lentral Union Elementary School District

tocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

Page I of 7

121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount

$63.26

$63.26

$15.00

$ 15.00

$15.00

$15.00

$ 15.00

$ 15.00

$1s.00

$1s.00

$15.00

$1s.00

$15.00

$ r s.00

$ 1s.00

$1s.00

$336.52

s336.s2

$ 1 53.80

$220.s6

$37.00

$108.00

$87. l 5

$88.23

sl4l.72

$836.46

$836.46

1273259',7 4092

t2'732598 4426 BIMBO BAKERIES USAINC

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-1 2 1 -00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0-0000-7200-s 80000- l 2 l -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-l2l -00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- l2l -00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0-0000-7200-s80000- l 2 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-5 80000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- I 2 l -00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-12 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-l2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-1 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-s 80000- l 2 l -00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- 1 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-s80000-12 l -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7200-580000- l 2 l -00-0000

PO-
PO'
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

27236

27236

27236

27236

27236

27236

27236

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrilion - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

AMERICAN BUSINESS MACH PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

28735

28737

28739

28740

28741

28742

28',t43

28744

28729

28730

28't3r

28732

28733

28734

28736

28738



lentral Union Elementary School District

12732606 4OI GOLD STAR FOODS INC.

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

12732599 4yo6 IJUKSUI ll, WtrNlJY lvl z60v z U I UU-U I YY-U-UUUU-UUUU-OOYYUU-UVU.UU-UUVU

12732600 I768 BOTELLO, LAURIE pv - 28693 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000

12732601 3675 BULLIS,ASHLEY pv - 28718 0100-il00-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

12732602 4920 CASTILLO,ANDREW pv - 28717 0100-00s0-0-0000-7700-520003-121-00-0000

12732603 4964 CLARTSTNTERNATIONALTN( pO - 275s2 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-580011-121-00-0000

r2732604 4820 CLOTIKARLA pv - 28720 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

12732605 4850 GARCIA, AMANEI pv - 28'1t4 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000

Resource Object
vuuawgu walldllrs Ail wtngl Luual [EvElluvl

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local Revenues

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local Revenues

Total For Fund Number. 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Progtams Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Page2 of7
121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount

lt t.zo

s77.26

s77.26

$7.4r

$7.41

$7.4r

$29.90

$29.90

$29.90

$r64.93

$ 164.93

s164.93

$l 1,000.00

$1 I,000.00

$11,000.00

$170.07

$r 70.07

$r70.07

$14.00

PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PV-
PV-
PV.
PV-
PV.
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-

27232

27232

27232

27232

27232

27232

2870s

28708

28706

28'.702

28704

28703

28707

287tl

28712

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 1 -000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470001 -000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470001 -000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 r -000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

$14.00

$14.00

$128.96

s14.2s

$613.76

$1,647.00

$l,071.84

$1,077.12

$73.20

$7s I .s7

$77',7.07

$3 14.83

$1 00.65

$397.64

ss43.79

$83.7s

$l r3.40



lentral Union Elementary School District

tocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2732606 +Vl iJULIJ ) IAI( ltJtJlJJ ll\U.

12732607

t2732608

t2732609

12'.732610 4'11 HOLT LUMBER INC.

127326n 572 LEMOOREAUTOSUPPLY

12732612 575 LEMOOREHARDWARE PV

12732613

12732614

12732615

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

PV

PV

z6t tv

28709

28713

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object
utrrru r\urllrlurr - Dvrruvr r rwErarrrJ fuuu

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payrnent:

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local Revenues

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

IJUU-JJ lU-U-UVUV-J /VV-a/VUUV-UVU-W-UVW

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1300-s3 r0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00430014-120-00-0000

01 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 l 004300 14- 120-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

Page 3 of7
121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount

s122.63

$ 129.31

$r69.87

$8, r 30.64

$8,130.64

$119.83

$1 19.83

$rr9.83

$107.20

$107.20

$107.20

$s8.41

$s8.41

$58.41

s26.72

$26.72

s26.72

$33.98

$88.7s

$122.73

s122.73

$53.90

$34.28

$88.1 8

s88.r8

$140.67

$140.67

$140.67

$55.02

$s5.02

ss5.02

$4 l. l3

$4 l. l3

$41.13

$7 1 9.70

$719.70

s719.70

405 GOPHERSPORTS PO - 27165 0100-1100-0-1160-1000430001424-00-0000 StateLottery

2451 HOLDBROOKS,CHRIS PV - 28723 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430001-222-00-0000 StateLottery

3230 HOLMES, DIANA Pv - 28724 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430001-222-00-0000 StateLottery

pv - 28700 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-120-00-0000

PO - 27063

PO - 27063

28721

28'.122PV

49'10 LOPEZ JR, FRANKA pv - 28695 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000

4839 LOPEZ, BIANCA pv - 28725 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-520003-120-00-0000

565 LUIS, CHRISTINA pv - 28715 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-121-00-0000

12732616 3s37 MTDVALLEYDISPOSAL pO - 27008 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-550020-525-00-0000



lentral Union Elementary School District

12732617

127326t8

t2732620

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

3974 PBK ARCHfI'BC'I'S INC. PV . 2U696 I4UU.UUUU-U-UUUU-U)UU-OZUUUU-)Z)-UU-/)dU

4208 PILCHER,DAVID pv - 28727 0100-0000-0-1110-1000-430000-331-00-0000

12732619 1487 POWERSCHOOLGROUPLLC pO - 27588 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-580000-l2t-00-0000

761 PRODUCERSDAIRY

Resource Object

UnrestrictedResources Buildingsandlmprovementof
Buildings

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Progams Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Page 4 of 7

121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount

$1,800.00

$1,800.00

s1,800.00

$321.45

$321.45

$321.45

$578.8 l

$578.81

$578.81

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

r 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

$260.27

$l 56.13

$173.47

$312.27

$416.52

$41 6.52

$381.51

$381.51

$416.18

s416.23

$208.01

$208.26

s260.27

$242.97

s624.s3

$s72.6s

$676.s7

$693.99

$433.s6

$433.61

$4r6.52

$52.13

$69.42

s69.42

s8,292.52



lentral Union Elementary School District

r2732623

n73243 879 SISC III

12732624 882 SMART & F1NAL

12732625

12732626

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

tocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2

12732621 4567 RIOS, SYLVIA pv - 28726 1300-s310-0-0000-3700-520003-000-00-0000

12732622 4945 SierraWestConsultingGroup,ln PO - 27433 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620010424-10-7592

12732622 4945 SienaWestConsultingGroup,ln PO - 27433 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-620010424-10-7592

12732622

879 SISC III

Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For FundNumber: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 4000

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Retiree Benefits, classified

Unrestricted Resources Health & Welfare Benefits,
certificated

Unrestricted Resources Retiree Benefits, certificated

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Water/Sewer

Unrestricted Resources Water/Sewer

Unrestricted Resources Water/Sewer

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Donations Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

4945 SienaWestConsultingGroup,ln PO - 27433 4000-0000-0-0000-8500-620010424-10-7592

Page 5 of7
121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount
60ta>Z.Ja

$183.07

$183.07

$183.07

$600.00

$600.00

$2,400.00

$2,400.00

$9,000.00

$9,000.00

$12,000.00

s2,840.26

$5,483.40

$30,718.24

$231,r39.10

$270,1 8 1 .00

$7,024.00

-5?'o24'oo
$277,205.00

$39.s0

$608.61

$648. l 1

$648.rr

$42.05

$42.05

s42.05

$7.82

$7.82

$7.82

$944.91

$968.06

$1,775.61

$3,688.s8

$3,6EE.5E

28690

28688

28689

28687

28699

28698

STRATFORDPUBLICUTILITI PO - 27004

PO - 27004

PO - 27004

0 l 00-0000-0-0000 -7 490 -37 0200- I 22-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-3401 00- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-l I l 0-l 000-370 I 00-122-00-0000

0100-0000-0-0000-0000-9s1400-000-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I I I 0-249s-430000-222-31 -0201

0l 00- 1 I 00-0- I 1 I 0-2700-430000-222-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-ss0030-s2s-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-550030-525-00-0000

0t 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-550030-525-00-0000

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

28691 1300-0000-0-0000-0000-9s1400-000-00-0000

4469 STARNE,NICKOLAS pv - 28716 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-l2l-00-0000

915 STRATFORDAUTOSUppLy PO - 27053 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-525-00-0000

91612732627

12132628 4971 THECRANIUMCOMPANY.LL PV - 28728 0100-0038-0-lll0-1000-580000424-00-0000 $940.00



lentral Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

Page 6 of 7

121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Amount

$940.00

$81.3s

$81.3s

s81.35

s7.73

s7.73

$7.73

$1,282.71

$r,282.71

$1,282.71

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

r2732629 4760 TOSTE,DAVID pv - 28697 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-s20003-l2l-00-0000

t2732630 4969 VERNON. SABRINAL py - 28694 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000

r2732631 3450 VINCENTCOMMUNICATIONT pO - 27503 0100-0097-0-0000-7600430000-107-00-0000

Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local Revenues

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

1300

1400

3500

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1210812023

Total # of Payments: 35

Page I of I

121151202. 7:47:l4AM

Total # of Payments: 35 Grand Total:

Total

s290,971.|t

924,554.87

$2,400.00

$2,400.00

s9,000.00

$329,325.98

$ 329,325.98



lentral Union Elementary School District

Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1211312023

Vendor Name

Page I of I

1211512023 7:48:374M

Amountrant Number

l2733rtr
127331r2
127331t3
12733114

493t
4358

544

4728

CALIFORNIA IT IN EDUCATION
HOME DEPOT PRO

KINGS CO TROPHY
NANCY AKHAVAN CONSULTING INC

s530.00
$417.61

$ 188.76

$121,198.25

Total Amount of All Warrants: iL22,334.62

W



District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Sigrrature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 4 $122,334.62

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 12/13/2023 $122'334'62

Authorized Offrcer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

tr

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

l2733ln 4931 CALIFORNIA IT IN EDUCATI( PO - 27253

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211312023

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2 Resource

0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520000-l2l-00-0000 Classroom Standards

Object

Travel and Conferences

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Elementary & Secondary School Professional Development
Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Title II Teacher Quality

Title II Teacher Quality

Title III Limited English

12733112 4358 HOMEDEPOTPRO

12733113 544 KINGS CO TROPHY

12733n4

PV

PV

PO

PV

PV

CM

PO

PO

PO

28747

28748

27071

28746

28745

27048

27071

27071

270'.7r

274t6

27416

27416

po - 27563 0100-1100-0-ll10-1000430000-222-00-0000

0l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 l4 -222-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 004300 1 4 -222-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-430014-525-00-0000

0l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-81 004300 1 4 -222-00-0000

0l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 1 00-430014 -222-00-0000

01 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 14 -222-00-0000

0l 00-81 50-0-0000-8 1 00-430014-525-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 14-323-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 004300 14-323-00-0000

0 l 00-403s-0- l I l 0-74 l 043000 1 -12 I -00-0000

0 1 00403s-0-l 1 l 0-7 410-580022-1 2 l -00-0000

01004203-0-1 l 10-7410-430001-l2l-3 I -0305

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Professional Development

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Page I of 2

1211512Q2. 7:49:1OAM

Amount

$s30.00

$s30.00

ss30.00

$31.98

$93 1.79

$s0.79

$21.31

$42.70

-$917.42

$21.31

$l12.52

s122.63

$417.61

$417.61

$188.76

$188.76

$r88.76

$82,000.00

$19,200.00

$2,500.00

$r7,498.25

$121,198.25

$121,198.25

4'728 NANCYAKHAVAN CONSULT pO - 274t6 0100-3213-0-0000-7410-580022-t2r-35-0202

PO

PO

PO
Proficiency (LEP) Student
Program

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211312023

Total # of Paymentsz 4

Page I of I

121151202. 7:49:lOAM

Total # of Payments: 4 Grand Total:

Total

9122,334.62

s122,334.62

s 122,334.62



)entral Union Elementary School District

rant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1211512023

Page 1 of 1

12/1512023 7:50:l4AM

AmountVendor Name

12733202

12733203
12733204

12733205
12733206
12733207

12733208
t2733209
t2733210
12733211

12733212
12733213

12733214
12733215
12733216

12733217

12733218
127332t9
12733220

12733221

12733222

12733223

12733224

12733225

12't33226

12733227

12733228

12733229

t2733230
12733231

12733232

12733233

t2733234

4092
3439

5l
4568

63

lll
1208

t7 51

4595

3342

3236

1670

3983

2241

417

473

4942

542

552
2886

598

1937

4236

746

4940

871

834
886

4111

926
4169

4204

3450

AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
AMERICAN INCORPORATED

APPLE COMPUTER INC

ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREER APPAREL GR

AT&T
BILLINGSLEY TIRE INC

CBS DOORS INC.

CDW-G
EMS LINQ INC.

ENFINITY
KELLY ESTES

FIRST CLASS PEST CONTROL
BRITTANYGATELY
ANNE GONZALES
CHRISTINA GONZALES

HOME DEPOT
IMPERIAL DADE
KINGS CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION
KINGS WASTE & RECYCLINGAUTHRTY
LOWE'S
LOZANO SMITH
MATSONALARM CO INC
PERFORMANCEAIR
PITNEY BOWES
REBECCAA. REYNOLDS
IVONE ROSA
SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIRS - IO
SO. CALIF.GAS CO

KELLI SOWERS

SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF MODESTO
US SOAP WEST LLC
VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT INC.

VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

$30.00

$8,678.43

$16,246.46

$3,829,86

$46.70

$221.00

$2s0.71

$6,897.00

$228.80

$15,648.36

$ I1.40

$716.00

$ I 80.03

9s04.27

$s66.96

$ 187.69

$5,891.99

$15.s0

$202.4s

9494.7s

$43,578.26

$91.25

$15,179.52

$843.s9

$3, 1 I 8.29

$94.10

82,217.32

$7,498.0s

$77.9s

926,574.67

$427.6s

$70,685.59

$500.00

Total Amount of All Warrants: $231 ,134 .60

W



tr

.1

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 33 $231,734.60

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 1211512023 $231'734'60

Authorized Offrcer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

12733204

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource

'7200430000-121-00-0000 UnrestrictedResources

Object

Page I ofl0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$1s.00

$1s.00

$30.00

s30.00

$8,678.43

$8,678.43

$8,67E.43

$ 16,079.46

$167.00

$t6,246.46

s16,246.46

12733202 4092 AMERICAN BUSINESS MACI-] PV - 28749

PV - 28787

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200430000-12 1 -00-0000

12733203 3439 AMEzuCAN TNCORPORATED pV - 2875s 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-560009-222-00-0000

51 APPLE COMPUTER INC

Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Totrl Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

PO - 2'7464

PO - 27464

0l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-l 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- 1 l I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-s60000-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 l I 0-8200-s60000-s25-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 I I 0-8200-560000-s2s-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- 1 I 1 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0r 00-0000-0-1 1 1 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I r l 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I I l 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- r 1 l 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 I 1 0-8200-560000-222-00 -0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 I 1 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 r I 0-8200-560000424-00-0000

12733205 4568 - 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 2't083

- 27083

- 2'7083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

- 27083

ARAMARK IjNIFORM & CAR PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

$s.65

$5.6s

$s.65

$5.65

$s.6s

$25.s0

$2s.s0

$2s.s0

$25.s0

$2s.s0

$39.02

$39.02

$39.02

$68.1 7

$68.1 7

$74.9',1



lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

T27J3205 4fo6

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

Al(AlvlAtu! ul\lt\Jruvl 6a u/\K rv - L tvo)

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
vlvv-vvvv-v-l I lv-ozvu-Juvvvv*za-vv-vuvv

Page 2 of 10

12/15/202. 7:49:58AM

AmountResource

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

lJnrestricted Resources

Object

^9utdls,
Leases, AsPa[i dru

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized lmprovements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

PO-

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO-

0100-0000-0-1 I l0-8200-560000-120-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I l I 0-8200-560000- 120-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-l l I 0-8200-560000-120-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l l r 0-8200-560000- I 20-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-560000-120-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l r I 0-8200-s 60000-222-00-0000

0 100-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0t 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I l 1 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0 100-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-s60000-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-1 r 1 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I I l 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0100-0000-0-r I l0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- 1 r 1 0-8200-s60000-222-00-0000

0 100-0000-0- 1 l 1 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-l 1 r 0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-l I l 0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

s74.97

$82. s 1

$63.75

$54.7s

$56.54

$57.68

$42.88

$71.79

$82.s2

$82.s2

s71.79

$71.79

$7r.79

$7r.79

$39.88

$84.71

$84.71

$84.71

$86.88

$86.88

s124.17

$124.17

$124.17



12733205

lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name
4)Od AKAMAKKUNIIUKI\{dSLAI( YU - ZIV65

PO - 27083

PO - 27083

PO - 27083

PO - 27083

PO - 27083

1273320s 4568 ARAMARKUNIFORM&CAR PV - 28778

PV - 28776

PV - 28777

PY - 28771

PV - 28772

PV - 28773

PV - 287'.74

PV - 28775

PV - 28779

PV - 28780

r2733206 63 AT&T

12733207 1II BILLINGSLEYTIREINC PO - 27084

PO - 27084

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object
UIITESLI IULEU ITsUUU9I

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Rentals, Leases, Kgparrs anu

Noncapitalized Improvemonts

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

ChildNutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

ChildNutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

ChildNutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized I mprovements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

ChildNutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct- Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0 1 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

UIUU-UUUU-U.I I 1U-6ZUU-JOUUUU-+Z+-UU-UUUU

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-s60000-424-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 I I 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-1 I 1 0-8200-s60000-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I l0-8200-s60000424-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

r 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

0 l 00-8 r 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 I 4- I 20-00-0000

0r 00-81 s0-0-0000-81 00430014- 120-00-0000

Page 3 of l0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$124.87

$167.82

$100.69

$100.69

$r 00.69

$86.88

$2,963. l I

$82.s2

$82.52

$82.s2

$90.83

$90.83

$90.83

s90.83

$90.83

$82.52

$82.52

$866.75

$3,829.86

$46.70

$46.70

s46.70

$88.1 3

$132.87

$22 1.00

s221.00

po - 27014 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-s90010424-00-0000

r2733208 I2O8 CBS DOORS INC pv - 28765 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-323-00-0000 $79.6s



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

12733208 I2U6 UIJS L'UUKS INU.

t2733209 1751 CDW-G

12733210 4595 EMS LINQ INC.

12'.733211 3342 ENFINITY

12733212 3236 ESTES, KELLY

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-L1 -L2
YV - ZI)61 UIUU-6I)U-U-UUUU-dIUU-I+JUUII+-)Z)-UU.UUUU

po - 27553 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-580011-12l-00-0000

Resource Object
ungolng 6a lvlajor lvlalnt. 1\ue1. Malntenance bupplles

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Software License Renewals

Child Nutrition - School Programs Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resourccs Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Page 4 of l0
12/15/202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$171 .06

$250.7 l
$250.71

$6,897.00

u0,69 /.uu

$6,897.00

$109.20

$119.60

$228.80

s228.80

$4,367.90

$5,106.s0

$6,1 73.96

$15,648.36

s15,648.36

$ 11.40

$11.40

s11.40

$s0.00

$s0.00

$s2.00

$52.00

$52.00

$60.00

$400.00

$716.00

$7r6.00

$r 80.03

$180.03

s180.03

$25.98

$415.99

$62.30

$504.27

$504.27

12733213

12733214

r2733215

1670

PO - 27596

PO - 27596

PO - 27010

PO - 27010

PO - 27010

FIRSTCLASSPESTCONTROL PO . 27239

PO - 27239

PO - 27239

PO - 27239

PO - 27239

PO - 27239

PO - 27239

3983 GATELY,BRITTANY

2241 GONZALES,ANNE 28790

28792

28791

pv - 28788 0100-1100-0-1110-2'700-520003-323-00-0000

I 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-5800 I 1 -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-5800 l I -000-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-ss0020-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-1 I 1 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-l l r 0-8200-550020-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-550070-424-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 l 1 0-8200-s50070-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-ss0070-525-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-l l I 0-8200-550070-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-8200-550070-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-0000-8200-550070- r 2 l -00-0000

01 00-0000-0-1 r 1 0-8200-s50070-424-00-0000

0r00-0000-0-1 I 10-1000-430000-331-00-0000

0l 00-l I 00-0-1 l 10-1000-430000-323-00-0000

0l 00-r 1 00-0-1 r 1 0- I 000-43002 I -323-00-0000

pv - 28784 0100-0000-0-lll0-1000-430000-441-00-0000

PV

PV

PV

t2733216 4r7 GONZALES,CHRISTINA PV - 28786 0100-1100-0-1110-2700430000-525-00-0000 $s66.96



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t27332t7 473 HOME DEPOT

t2'733218

12733219

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

KINGS WASTE & RECYCLINC PV

PO

PV

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 004300 l4- l 20-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 14 -222-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0 1 00-8 r 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 I 4-424-00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300r4-s25-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700430000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700430000-000-00-0000

0 l 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 100-4300 14-52s-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-580000-323-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 1 00-43001 4-s2s-00-0000

0 I 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 l4-525-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-525-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-222-00-0000

0100-8 1 50-0-0000-81 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

01 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 1 4-323-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 14 -222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 1 4- l 20-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-5800 I 0- 1 2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-58001 0- I 2 l -00-0000

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

27390

27390

27390

27390

27390

PO - 2723r

PO - 27231

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object
lolal lor luno NumDer. UIUU

Total Amount of PaYment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page 5 of l0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$566.96

$s66.96

$37.s3

$37.s4

$37.s4

$37.s4

$37.s4

$187.69

$r87.69

$1,383.00

$4,508.99

$5,891.99

$5,E91.99

$15.50

$r 5.50

s15.50

$175.00

$14.80

$12.65

s202.45

$202.45

4942 IMPERIAL DADE

s42 KTNGSCOOFFICEOFEDUC.a pV - 28756 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-580000-121-00-0000

t2733220

12'.733221

552

2886 LOWE',S PO - 27061

PO - 27061

PO - 2706r

PO - 27061

PO - 27061

PO - 27061

PO - 27061

PV - 28769

28767

27066

28766

27025

27025

$140.54

$30. r2

$37.0s

$ 1s.2s

$51 .l 7

$84.07

$76. l9

$60.36

$494.7s

s494.75

$40,198.26

$3,380.00

@
$43,578.26

PO

PO

r2733222 598 LOZANO SMITH



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2733223 193'I MAI SUN ALAKM UU INU

t2733224 4236 PERTORMANCEAIR

r2733225 746 PITNEY BOWES

r2'133226

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
U I UU-UUUU-U-I U-6ZUU.J IIU-UU.UUUU

27602 0100-7032-0-0000-8500-640000-s25-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

0 I 00-8 r 50-0-0000-8 I 00-s60009-424-00-0000

01 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 I 00-560009-424-00-0000

Resource Object

unresrncreq l(esouroes umer bervlces ano Operatlng
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

ChildNufiition: Kitchen Equipment
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency RelieflII (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency RelieflII (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency RelieflII (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relief III @SSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

rv - /6/06

Page 6 of 10

121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$91.25

$91.25

$91.25

$10,000.00

$2,3s0.95

$2,828.57

$ l s,1 79. s2

$15,179.52

$843.59

$843.59

s843.59

$4s7.87

$75.95

$s4.25

$ 173.60

$208.32

s232.19

$238.70

s240.87

$390.60

PO

PV

PV

PO

28764

28763

4940 REYNOLDS,REBECCAA. PO - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

27 434 0 100-0000-0-0000-7200-560000-12 I -00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-lt9l-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-ll9l-3110-s80000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000

po - 27436 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-00-0000 $442.68



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name
4v+u t(t Y l\ul.lj), r(DtlbuuA,q.. rv ' z t+Jo

12733227

12733228

886 SO. CALIF.GAS CO 27005

27005

2't00s

27005

2'.7005

27005

27005

SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF N PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
uluu-Jz lJ-u-l lv l-J I lv-Jovvvv-vvv-uv-vvvv

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-550010424-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l I l 0-8200-s5001 0-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-ss00l 0-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 I I 0-8200-5500 I 0-323-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-55001 0-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I I r 0-8200-5500 l 0-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-ss0010-222-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

1300-s3 I 0-0-0000-370047000 I -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 1 -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000 -37 0047 0002-000-00-0000

r 3 00-53 1 0-0-0000 -37 0047 0002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

I 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-47000 1 -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

Resource

Elglll9llldly g og9urru4rJ Jvrruur

Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Obiect

ull t9t Dgl vtces and

Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page 7 of l0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

$603.26

$3,1 18.29

$3,118.29

$94.1 0

$94. l0
$94.10

12133226

t273323r

vPer dulrB

87I ROSA, IVONE PV - 28785 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021424-00-0000 StateLottery

834 SCHOLASTICBOOKFAIRS -1 PV - 28770 0100-0000-0-1110-2420-430001-222-00-0000 UnrestrictedResources

12733229

r2733230 41I1 SOWERS,KELLI 28789 0 I 00-0000-0- l 1 I 0-3 120-520003-12 I -00-0000

12733231 926 SYSCOFOODSERVICESOFI\ PV - 28757 0100-0000-0-1110-2495430000-222-31-0201 UnrestrictedResources

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber. 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom $2,2t7.32

$2,217.32

s2,217.32

$1,456.67

$40.68

$8s.s2

$274.17

$1,114.05

$1,369.63

$3,1 s7.33

$7,498.05

$7,498.05

$77.9s

s77.9s

s77.95

$107.18

926 27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

$1 07.1 8

$28s.62

$2,278.71

$222.28

$200.57

$1 52.80

$461.81

$610.17

$s75.27

$1,428.97

$1,707.19

$1,77s.91

$2,s31 .98



lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name

r2733232 4169 US SOAPWEST LLC

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

I 300-s3 l 0-0-000 0 -37 00 47 0002-000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-370047000 l -000-00-0000

l 3 00-s3 l 0-0-0000 -37 00-47 0002-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-370047000 1 -000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-370047000 I -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-000 0-37 00 -47 0002-000-00-0000

1 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 I -000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470004-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 r 0-0-0000-370047000 I -000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700430000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700430000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

Resource Object

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Page 8 of l0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 2't233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 2'7233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 27233

- 28759

- 28760

- 287s8

- 28',76t

- 28762

$966.33

$143.56

$128.93

$134.49

$111.77

$ 131.70

$267.4s

$75 1.89

$344.r7

s 1,680.08

s1,238.89

$r,36s.s6

s37.64

$19.76

$18.82

$37.64

$25.74

$39.26

$78.65

$71 .88

$40.92

$3,303.75

$38.62

$66. I 2

$56.04

$l,01 1.71

s2,t24.84

PV - 287s4

PV - 28752

PV - 28753

PV - 28750

PV - 28751

s26,467.49

s26,574.67

$112.08

$ l 33.78

$39.68

$52.02

$90.09

$427.6s



lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2

12733233 4204 VANIRCONSTRUCTIONMAN pV - 28783 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620010424-10-7592

12'733233 4204 VANIRCONSTRUCTTONMAN pV - 28782 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

12733233 4204 VANIRCONSTRUCTTONMAN pV - 28781 4000-0000-0-0000-8500-620010424-t0-7592

t2733234 34s0 VTNCENTCOMMUNTCATTON| pO - 27610 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-530000-121-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1211512023

Page 9 of l0
121151202. 7:49:58AM

Amount

s427.65

$3,s34.28

$3,s34.28

s14,r37.12

$14,t37.12

$53,014.19

$53,014.19

$70,685.59

$s00.00

$s00.00

s500.00

Resource Object

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For FundNumber: 4000

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Dues and Memberships

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

1300

1400

3500

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: l2l6n023

Total # of Payments: 33

Page I of I

121151202. 7:49:58AM

Totat # of Payments: 33 Grand Total:

Total

$127,166.33

$33,882.68

$3,534.28

st4,t37.12
$53,014.19

$231,734.6{'

$ 231,734.60



)entral Union Elementary School District

rant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1212212023

Page I of I

12/2712023 ll:06:12AM

AmountVendor Name

1273378s

12733786

12733',787

12733788

12733789

12733790

12733791

12733792

12733793

12733794

12733795

12733796

12733797

12733798

12733799

12733800

12733801

t2733802
12733803

12733804
12733805

12733806

r2733807
12733808

12733809

19

4112

4230

4092
2796

3675

4314

2661

2640
2864
2800

4739

t04
2241

616

1937

4922

I 595

712

2038
2628

tt26
4278

1593

4115

$799.4r
g3'79.07

$s8.9s
$ 1s.00

s 1,038.21

$38.s9
s4,501.72
$2,428.06

$9s.41

$380.00
ss6.72

$4,624.66
s417.14

$66.64

$26.37

$65.00

s28.43

$36.68

s4,198.07
$6r6.20

$8,700.00

$23.s8
$45.8s

$333.76

$64.30

TOM ADDINGTON
ELIZABETHALVARADO
JOELALVARADO
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
AT&T
ASHLEY BULLIS
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC

DASSEL'S PETROLEUM
DARIN DENNEY
DIGITECH INTEGRATION INC.

CARRIEDOZIER
FOOD 4 THOUGHT LLC
TRACI FULLERTON
ANNEGONZALES
ALICIAMARTELLA
MATSONALARM CO INC

ALEXANDRAMELVIN
SOYLAMOLINA
OFFICE DEPOT INC

CHRISTINE SANTOS
SCHOOL INNOVATIONS & ACHIEVEMENT
HEIKO SWEENEY
MARTHAA. VARGAS

VERIZON WIRELESS

COURTNEY WILCOX

Total Amount of All Warrants: s29,037 .82
\$w



al

tr

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 25 529,037.82

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 12t2212023 $29'037'82

Authorized Offrcer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

1273378s 19 ADDINGTON, TOM PV - 28819 0100-0000-0-0000-7 l2l -00-0000

12733786 4lI2 ALVARADO,ELIZABETH PV - 28814 0100-1100-0-ll10-2700-430000-424-00-0000

12733787 4230 ALVARADO,JOEL pv - 288il 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-s20003-120-00-0000

12733788 4092 AMEzuCAN BUSINESS MACH pV - 28822 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-12l-00-0000

12'.733789 2796 AT&T po - 27012 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-s90010-121-00-0000

12733790 3675 BULLIS,ASHLEY PV - 28807 0100-1100-0-lll0-1000-430021-424-00-0000

t2733791 4314 CANON FTNANCTAL SERVTCE pO - 27299 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-560000-121-00-0000

r2733792

lentral Union Elementary School District

12733793 2640 DENNEY, DARIN 28810

28809

12733794 2864 DIGITECH INTEGRATION IN( PO . 27078

PO - 27078

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1212212023

0l 00-0000-0-1 I I 0-2700-520003-222-00-0000

0100-l 1 00-0-l 1 10-1 000-430000-222-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Matl & Suppl. -Gasoline/Diesel
Fuel

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number. 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

2661 DASSEL'S PETROLEUM pO - 274s9 0100-8150-0-0000-8100430010-120-00-0000

Page 1 of5
12127I202.11:06:3OAM

Amount

s799.41

$799.4t

9799.4t

$379.07

$379.07

$379.07

$s8.9s

$s8.9s

$58.95

$1s.00

$1s.00

$r5.00

$1,038.21

$1,038.21

s1,038.21

$38.s9

$38.59

s38.s9

$4,501.72

$4,s01.72

$4,501.72

s2,428.06

$2,428.06

s2,428.06

$26.86

$68.5s

$95.41

$95.4r

$l 90.00

$190.00

-$8o.oo
s380.00

$s6.72

$s6.72

$56.72

PV

PV

0 l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-560009-222-00-0000

01 00-8 1 50-0-0000-81 00-560009-525-00-0000

12733795 28OO DOZIER, CARRIE pv - 28820 0100-0000-0-1110-3140-520003-t2l-00-0000



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t27 J3796 4I'Y IU(JIJI+ Irl\JUUNI LLL

r2733797 IO4 FULLERTON,TRACI

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1212212023

pv - 28803 0100-7032-0-0000-0000430000-000-00-0000

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
zooul U I UU- /UJZ-V-UUUU-UUUU{JUUUU-UVU-VU-VUVV

pv - 28805 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

pv - 28804 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

28802 0r00-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

28800 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

28794 0100-7032-0-0000-0000430000-000-00-0000

- 28796 0 l 00-7032-0-0000-0000-43 0000-000-00-0000

28798 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

28799 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

pv - 28815 0100-0000-0-0000-7100430000-121-00-0000

Resource Object
u[[u r\ulrruuu. \lruuc! lvta[Ertats anu Duppilgs
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

ChildNutrition:Kitchen MaterialsandSupplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

ChildNutrition:Kitchen MaterialsandSupplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds
2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition. Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Inflastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds
2022

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Page 2 of 5
12127l202.ll:06:3OAM

Amount

,+v4.zJ

$400.08

$607.40

$41r.50

$607.08

s423.64

$502.6r

$66.30

$ 1 06.70

s154.76

$r s8.64

$163.32

$618.38

54,624.6b

s4,624.66

$417.14

$417.t4

s417.r4

$66.64

$66.64

$66.64

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

pv - 28797 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

pv - 2879s 0100-7032-0-0000-0000430000-000-00-0000

pv - 28793 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

12',t33798 2241 GONZALES,ANNE pv - 28817 1300-5310-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000



t2't JJ't99

12733800 1937 MAISONALARMCOINC pO - 27009 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-580000-525-00-0000

12733801 4922 MELVIN,ALEXANDRA pv - 28812 0100-0000-0-1110-3120-530000-l2l-00-0000

12733802 I595 MOLINA, SOYLA pv - 28806 1300-s310-0-0000-3700-520003-000-00-0000

lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name
OIO MAKI L,LLA, ALIUIA

12733803 712 OFFICE DEPOT INC

r2733804 2038 SANTOS, CHRISTINE

r2733805

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1212212023

l,v - .Z66u6 utuu-lruu-u-llru-z
ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object

srate L()ttcrv lvarenals ano supplles

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Dues and Memberships

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Materials and Supplies

Page 3 of5
121271202.11:06:3OAM

Amount

bzo.J I

s26.37

$26.37

$6s.00

$6s.00

$6s.00

$28.43

$28.43

$28.43

$36.68

$36.68

s36.68

CM-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

PV-

27049

27542

275r9

27s08

27528

27558

2751t

27527

275ts

27508

27507

275'74

01 00-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000430000-323-00-0000

0 1 00-l 1 00-0- l r l 0- I 000-43000 1 -222-00-0000

0l 00- 1 I 00-0-1 I I 0-1 000430000-222-00-0000

01 00-l 1 00-0-1 l 10-1000-430000-323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001424-00-0000

01 00-l 1 00-0-1 l 10-1000-430000-222-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I I 0-1 000430000-s2s-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-l r l0-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0l 00- r 1 00-0- I 1 l 0- l 000-43000 1 -222-00-0000

0100-1 r 00-0-l I 10-1000430000-323-00-0000

01 00-1 I 00-0-l 1 r 0-100043002 l-323-00-0000

0 l 00-l l 00-0- 1 l 1 0- l 000-43000 1 -222-00-0000

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

-$7.50

$81.37

$64.ss

$1,172.03

sl,748.62

$696.79

$53.s5

$54. I 5

$s8.06

$20.33

$113.73

$142.39

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Allowance

Instructional Materials/Classroom

2628 SCHOOLTNNOVATTONS&AC pO - 270t8 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-s80000-12l-00-0000

288 I 8 01 00- l I 00-0- I I 1 0- I 000430000-323-00-0000

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Loltery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

$4,198.07

$4,198.07

$616.20

t;6 t 6.2U

$616.20

$8,700.00

$8,700.00

$8,700.00

$23.s8

$23.58

$23.58

r2733806 1126 SWEENEY. HEIKO pv - 28813 0100-0000-0-1110-2700-520003-222-00-0000



lentral Union Elementary School District

locument No Vendor No Vendor Name

t27 3JE|J7 42t6 VAt((Jl\D,lvll\r(lrlAA.

t2733808 1593 VERIZON WIRELESS

12'.733809 4II5 WLCOX, COURTNEY

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
- zd6zl u I uu-uuuu-u-l t lu-J I rv-JzvvuJ- lzl-vv-vvvv

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1212212023

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-5900 I 0- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-59001 0-120-00-0000

0t 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-s9001 0-424-00-0000

288 I 6 0100- l l 00-0-1 l I 0-1 000-430000-s2s-00-0000

Resource Object
ulllssu lvlgu NEDvurvEJ tvlllgaBE-vtllEl

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Communications - Telephone

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Communications - Telephone

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber; 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

rv

PO

PO

PO

PV

27003

27003

27003

Page 4 of 5
121271202.11:06:3OAM

Amount

D'+J 85

$45.85

$45.85

$252.11

$80.36

$1.29

$333.76

s333.76

$64.30

$64.30

$64.30



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
F'und

0100

1300

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 12122D023

Total # of Paymentsz 25

Page I of I

121271202. I I:06:30AM

Total # of Payments: 25 Grand Total:

Total

$28,934.50

s103.32

$29,037.82

$ 29,037.82



lentral Union Elementary School District

rant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 1212712023

Page I of I

12/2712023 2:29:l4PM

AmountVendor Name

t2 I J4t26
12734129

12734130

12734131

12734132
t2734133

57U

746

4903

1607

3986

398s

LEMOORE UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT b944.43

$843.s9
$300.00

$2,t54.61
$872.s4

$1,253.16

PITNEY BOWES
RELIABLE FIRE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS
SWEETWATER SOUND INC

US BANK (FULLERTON)

US BANK(SANTAMARI,A)

Total Amount of All Warrants: $6,368 .33

4W



tr

.1

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 6 $6,368.33

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 1212712023 $6'368'33

Authorized Officer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



12734128

12734129

t2734130

12734131 1607 SWEETWATER SOTJND INC PO

r2734t32 3986 USBANK(FULLERTON) PV

PO

12734t33 3985 US BANK (SANTAMARIA)

lentral Union Elementary School District

)ocument No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI -Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: L212712023

01 00-0000-0-l I 10-1000-580007-222-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000-580007-424-00-0000

01 00-l I 00-0-1 135-1 000-580007-52s-00-0000

0 1 00-l r 00-0-1 l l 0-1 000430000-525-00-0000

0l 00-6762-0-l 1 33-l 000-43000 I -323-39-0000

0 l 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-s20000-12 I -00-0000

0l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-520000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-520000-l 2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-520000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-8200430012-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0- I 1 I 0-8200-4300 I 2-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-4300 l2-52s-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000 -'t 200 -s 80022- I 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0097-0-0000-7600-430000- I 07-00-0000

0 l 00-l I 00-0- 1 I 1 0- l 000-430000-s2s-00-0000

0r 00-1 100-0-1 I 10-1000430001-222-00-0000

0r 00-1 l 00-0- I I I 0- I 000-43000 1 -222-00-0000

0r 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8100-430014-222-00-0000

01 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 I 4-525-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Transportation/not School

Statelottery Transportation/not School

State Lottery Transportation/not School

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Arts,Music,&lnstructional InstructionalMaterials/Classroom
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Travel and Conferences

Classroom Standards Travel and Conferences

Classroom Standards Travel and Conferences

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Custodian Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Professional Development

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery

State Lottery

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Ongoing & Mqjor Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

578

746 PITNEY BOWES po - 27434 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-560000-121-00-0000

4go3 RELIABLEFTRE&SECURITY pO - 27189 1300-s310-0-0000-3700-560009-000-00-0000

LEMOORE I.JNION HIGH SCHI PV - 28823

PO - 27468

PO - 27443

2757'7

27595

Page 7 of2
121271202. 2:29',28PM

Amount

$260.09

s449.76

$234.58

s944.43

s944.43

$843.s9

$843.59

s843.59

$300.00

s300.00

$300.00

$1,1 03.58

$1,051.03

$2,1s4.61

$2,154.61

$13.20

s24.08

$835.26

$872.s4

$872.54

$s0.00

$5 r .48

$51 .48

$51 .48

$2s5.00

$80.50

s229.00

s104.24

$65.92

$6s.66

s248.40

$1,253.16

$1,2$.r6

PO

PV

PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PV-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PV-
PO-

28827

28826

27249

27545

27569

2'.7569

27569

27609

28824

27600

27543

27589

2882s

27559



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

1300

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 1212712023

Total # of Payments: 6

Page I of I

121271202. 2:29:28PM

Total # of Payments: 6 Grand Total:

Total

$6,068.33

$300.00

$6156U.JJ

$ 6,368.33











CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION #A-01-08-2024

BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF

ANNUAL AUDIT REVIEW AND ADOPTION
CERTIFICATION

WHEREAS, in accordance with Assembly Bill 3627, Chapter 1002, as it pertains to
Education Code section 41020.3, the Central Union Elementary School District Board
of Trustees is mandated to examine and review the District’s prior year’s financial
statements; and,

WHEREAS, this audit review was presented during an open session of a regularly
scheduled public meeting which was properly noticed and publicized to the
community; and,

WHEREAS, the Governing Board is required by statute to review and accept the prior
year’s financial report/audit, at a public meeting, on or before January 31st; now

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Governing Board of the Central Union Elementary
School District has reviewed, analyzed and accept the said written verification of the
Central Union School District’s prior year the Annual Financial Report as of June 30,
2023.

Resolution #A-01-08-2024 (1)



The foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of
the Central Union Elementary School District on this 8th day of January 2024, by the
following vote:

AYE NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Dale Davidson, Trustee Area 1

Jeffrey Gilcrease, Trustee Area 2

Sarah Strait, Trustee Area 3

Vacant, Trustee Area 4

Ceil Howe, III, Trustee Area 5

I, Sarah Strait, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Central Union School District, do
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed and
adopted by the Board of Trustees at its meeting held on January 8, 2024.

____________________
Sarah Strait, Clerk
Board of Trustees
Central Union School District
Kings County, California

Resolution #A-01-08-2024 (2)



 
 
 
 
 

 

See what’s possible. 

858‐565‐2700 
www.cwdl.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF KINGS

LEMOORE, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2023



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

1

4

Governmental-wide Financial Statements

12

13

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 14

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 15

Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 16

in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 17

18

General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule 47

48

49

50

52

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 54

56

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 57

58

59

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 60

61

62

Note to the Supplementary Information 63

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

Notes to the Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Schedule of Contributions - OPEB

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Contributions - Pensions

FINANCIAL SECTION

Schedule of Instructional Time

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Schedule of Charter Schools

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

64

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; and Report

on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 66

Independent Auditors' Report on State Compliance 69

73

Financial Statement Findings 74

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 75

State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 76

78

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Summary of Auditors' Results

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

with Government Auditing Standards

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Board of Trustees 

Central Union School District 

Lemoore, California 

 

Report on Audit of Financial Statements  

Opinions  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 

aggregate remaining fund information of the Central Union School District ("the District") as of and for the year 

ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's 

basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 

of Central Union School District as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where 

applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America.  

 

Basis for Opinions  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 

independent of Central Union School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 

relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern 

for one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 

substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

2 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 

Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 

considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 

the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. In performing an audit in accordance 

with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:  

 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 

substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 

time.  

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that 

we identified during the audit.  

 

Other Matters  

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 

Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedules of changes in the net OPEB liability and 

related ratios, schedule of contributions – OPEB, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, 

and schedule of contributions - pensions as identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of 

contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 

information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

3 

Supplementary Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the Central Union School District's basic financial statements. The combining financial statements are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The 

schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 

accompanying other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 

the State's audit guide, 2022-23 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 

Reporting prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 and is also not a required part of 

the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 

relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 

the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 

statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 

in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information, is fairly stated in 

all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

 

Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 

comprises the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section but does not include the basic financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information 

and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial 

statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on other work 

performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 

required to describe it in our report.  

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2023 on 

our consideration of Central Union School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 

purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Central Union School District's internal control 

over financial reporting and compliance.  

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California  

December 14, 2023 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 4 
 

INTRODUCTION  

 

Our discussion and analysis of Central Union School District's financial performance provides an overview of the 

District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. It should be read in conjunction with the 

District's financial statements, which follow this section.  

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS   

  

• Total net position was $53,008,379 at June 30, 2023. This includes a current year increase in net position 

of $6,746,655. 

  

• Overall revenues were $40,031,238, which was more than expenditures of $33,284,583 by $6,746,655. 

 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 

statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive 

overview of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present 

financial information from different perspectives: 

 

• Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-

term and long-term information about the entity's overall financial position. 

 

• Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the District operations in more 

detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements. 

 

o Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the short 

term as well as what remains for future spending. 

 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide 

more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 

information that further explains and supports the financial statements.  

 

Government-Wide Statements  

 

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods 

similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the government's 

assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities 

regardless of when cash is received or paid.  

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 5 
 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued  

 

Government-Wide Statements, continued 

 

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how it has changed. Net position, the 

difference between the assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the District's financial health or position. 

 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial 

health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

 

• To assess the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as 

changes in enrollment, changes in the property tax base, and changes in program funding by the Federal 

and State governments, and condition of facilities. 

 

The government-wide financial statements of the District include government activities. Most of the District's basic 

services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. LCFF 

funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities. 

 

Fund Financial Statements  

 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds, not 

the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the District uses to keep track of specific sources of 

funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by 

bond covenants. The Board of Trustees establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular 

purposes or to show that the District is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The District has 

two kinds of funds: 

 

• Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which 

generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in 

and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 

governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether 

there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's 

programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the 

government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the government funds 

statements that explain the relationship (or differences} between them. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 6 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE 

 

Net Position 

 

The District's combined net position was $53,008,379 at June 30, 2023, as shown below: 

 

2023 2022 Net Change

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Current and other assets 31,375,309$      24,322,010$        7,053,299$           

Capital assets 50,020,808        49,695,479          325,329               

Deferred outflows 7,091,629          5,344,720            1,746,909            

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 88,487,746        79,362,209          9,125,537            

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

Current liabilities 2,703,926          2,219,311            484,615               

Long-term liabilities 28,818,738        19,338,299          9,480,439            

Deferred inflows 3,956,703          12,662,250          (8,705,547)           

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 35,479,367        34,219,860          1,259,507            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 50,020,808        49,695,479          325,329               

Restricted 9,044,161          3,595,379            5,448,782            

Unrestricted (6,056,590)         (7,029,134)           972,544               

Total Net Position 53,008,379$      46,261,724$        6,746,655$           

Governmental Activities

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 7 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE, continued 

 

Changes in Net Position  

 

The District's total revenues were $40,031,238, which is primarily from federal and state aid (73.4%). 

 

The total cost of all programs and services was $33,284,583. The District's expenses are predominantly related to 

educating and caring for students (69.0%). Administrative activities accounted for just 7.9% of total costs. The 

remaining expenses were for plant services (maintenance and operations), community services, other outgo and 

depreciation. 

 

2023 2022 Net Change

REVENUES

Program revenues

Charges for services 19,294$            16,044$              3,250$                 

Operating grants and contributions 10,012,185        6,687,213            3,324,972            

Capital grants and contributions -                      297,708              (297,708)              

General revenues  

Property taxes 885,422            771,270              114,152               

Unrestricted federal and state aid 29,401,205        25,723,294          3,677,911            

Interest and investment earnings (667,552)           158,567              (826,119)              

Miscellaneous 380,684            204,362              176,322               

Total Revenues 40,031,238        33,858,458          6,172,780            

EXPENSES

Instruction 19,151,515        16,542,614          2,608,901            

Instruction-related services 3,806,627          3,245,580            561,047               

Pupil services 3,186,242          2,950,667            235,575               

General administration 2,630,626          2,307,464            323,162               

Plant services 2,922,560          2,600,923            321,637               

Community services 74,747              69,148                5,599                  

Other outgo 126,344            244,442              (118,098)              

Depreciation (Unallocated) 1,385,922          1,192,672            193,250               

Total Expenses 33,284,583        29,153,510          4,055,921            

Change in net position 6,746,655          4,704,948            2,041,707            

Net Position - Beginning 46,261,724        41,556,776          4,704,948            

Net Position - Ending 53,008,379$      46,261,724$        6,746,655$           

Governmental Activities

 
 

  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 8 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE, continued 

 

Changes in Net Position, continued 

 

In the table below, we have presented the net cost of each of the District’s functions. Net cost shows the financial 

burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows 

our citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that 

function. 

 

2023 2022

Instruction 12,901,700$      12,618,017$        

Instruction-related services 3,631,364          2,985,455            

Pupil services 738,992            1,022,948            

General administration 1,905,409          1,531,117            

Plant services 2,639,905          2,553,249            

Community services 71,447              63,620                

Other outgo (21,635)             185,467              

Depreciation (Unallocated) 1,385,922          1,192,672            

23,253,104$      22,152,545$        

Net Cost of Services

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS  

 

Governmental Funds  

 

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the District completed 

the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $28,736,821. This is $5,459,511 higher than 

last year's ending fund balance of $23,277,310. 

 

July 01, 2022 Revenues Expenditures June 30, 2023

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund 20,661,486$      37,985,755$      32,918,595$      25,728,646$      

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 263,548            1,683,192          1,333,125          613,615            

Deferred Maintenance Fund 1,356,336          240,922            160,237            1,437,021          

Capital Facilities Fund 25,588              11,557              -                      37,145              

County School Facilities Fund 931,431            819,909            917,195            834,145            

Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund 38,921              293,584            246,256            86,249              

Total 23,277,310$      41,034,919$      35,575,408$      28,736,821$      

Balances and Activity

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 9 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS, continued  

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights  

 

Over the course of the year, the District revised its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes in revenues and 

expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was approved September 11, 2023. A schedule of the District's 

original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expenses is provided in the supplemental 

section of the audited financial report. 

 

The primary factors for the variation between original and final budget amounts are as follows:  

 

Revenues – increased due to increase in LCFF by almost $1 million, receipts of covid funding and other categoricals, 

and increased impact aid revenues ($916,578).  

 

Salaries and Benefits - increased primarily due to a 10% on-schedule salary increase. 

 

Other non-personnel expenditures – there were minor increases in various operating expenses. 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION  

 

Capital Assets  

 

At June 30, 2023, the District had invested $50,020,808 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, land 

improvements, buildings, equipment and work in progress. More detailed information about the District's capital 

assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

2023 2022 Net Change

CAPITAL ASSETS

Land 33,341$            33,341$              -$                       

Construction in progress 1,723,330          1,116,595            606,735               

Land improvements 57,633,250        56,991,285          641,965               

Buildings 3,405,784          3,079,784            326,000               

Equipment 2,162,181          2,025,630            136,551               

Accumulated depreciation (14,937,078)       (13,551,156)         (1,385,922)           

Total Capital Assets 50,020,808$      49,695,479$        325,329$             

Governmental Activities

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 10 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION, continued 

 

Long-Term Debt  

 

At year-end, the District had $28,818,738 in debt, consisting of compensated absences, the District's OPEB liability, 

and the District's Net Pension liability. More detailed information about the District's debt is presented in the notes 

to the financial statements. 

 

2023 2022 Net Change

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Net pension liability 24,170,138$      14,808,117$        9,362,021$           

Net OPEB liability 4,648,600          4,530,182            118,418               

Compensated absences 65,438              55,236                10,202                 

Less: current portion of long-term debt (65,438)             (55,236)               (10,202)                

Total Long-term Liabilities, non-current 28,818,738$      19,338,299$        9,480,439$           

Governmental Activities

 
 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023  

 

Facility projects included the substantial completion of the Akers Construction & Modernization Project, funded 

by a Federal Department of Defense construction grant. The District began construction of this Project in 2018. 

Additional work was performed in FY 2021-22.  Notice of completion filed on 10/6/2021 but concrete work issues 

were resolved and finalized in August 2022. 

 

On December 9, 2022, the District received an initial grant release of $533,777 from the OPSC School Facility 

program for the Neutra modernization project.  The District is expected to provide matching funds in the amount 

of $177,883.  The first expenditure report was submitted in December 2023.  

 

Various projects were undertaken during the year and included asphalt repairs of the District office parking lot, 

roofing, HVAC, gym floor, partitions, etc. 

 

All employees received a 10% salary increase for this year.  

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 11 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES  

 

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of circumstances that 

could affect its future financial health:  

 

• The district’s adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24 included P-2 ADA (average daily attendance) of 

1,696.38 based on the prior three-year average ADA. This ADA relief was granted to school districts due 

to very low actual attendance rates brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

• LCFF revenue was budgeted at $20,222,215 and will be adjusted down to $20,080,450 at first interim.  

 

• Federal revenues were budgeted at $11,184,416 while Other State revenues were budgeted at $4,615,680. 

These will also be adjusted at First Interim, when warranted.  

 

• Local revenues were budgeted at $946,936, with donations being budgeted as they are received. Interest 

rates are anticipated to remain steady.  

 

• Salaries and benefits were budgeted based on FTE information from Digital Schools. 

 

• Supplies, services and other operating expenditures and capital outlay were budgeted at $8,569,099. 

 

• Contribution/transfer from General Fund operations to restricted programs were estimated to be 

$1,983,567. This includes transfers to Special Ed and to the Routine Restricted Maintenance Account. 

 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  

 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and creditors 

with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it 

receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, contact: Teresa 

Santamaria, Chief Business Official at (559) 925-2620. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 12 

Governmental

Activities

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 29,965,711$          

Accounts receivable 1,182,243             

Prepaid expenses 94,587                 

Inventory 34,180                 

Internal balances 98,588                 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 50,020,808           

Total Assets 81,396,117           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to OPEB 95,922                 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 6,995,707             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,091,629             

LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities 1,653,668             

Due to grantor government 98,588                 

Unearned revenue 886,232                

Long-term liabilities, current portion 65,438                 

Net pension liability 24,170,138           

Net OPEB liability 4,648,600             

Total Liabilities 31,522,664           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 2,144,462             

Deferred inflows related to OPEB 1,812,241             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,956,703             

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 50,020,808           

Restricted:

Educational programs 4,962,563             

Capital projects 2,166,412             

Child nutrition 960,794                

Other restricted 954,392                

Unrestricted (6,056,590)            

Total Net Position 53,008,379$           
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 13 

Revenues and

Changes in

Net Position

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Instruction 19,151,515$      -$                    6,249,815$        -$                    (12,901,700)$     

Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 642,053            -                      84,476              -                      (557,577)           

Instructional library, media, and technology 862,351            -                      9,667               -                      (852,684)           

School site administration 2,302,223         -                      81,120              -                      (2,221,103)        

Pupil services

Home-to-school transportation 479,958            -                      78,840              -                      (401,118)           

Food services 1,301,475         7,781               2,020,855         -                      727,161            

All other pupil services 1,404,809         11,080              328,694            -                      (1,065,035)        

General administration

Centralized data processing 493,994            -                      272,366            -                      (221,628)           

All other general administration 2,136,632         433                  452,418            -                      (1,683,781)        

Plant services 2,922,560         -                      282,655            -                      (2,639,905)        

Community services 74,747              -                      3,300               -                      (71,447)             

Other outgo 126,344            -                      147,979            -                      21,635              

Depreciation (unallocated) 1,385,922         -                      -                      -                      (1,385,922)        

Total Governmental Activities 33,284,583$      19,294$            10,012,185$      -$                    (23,253,104)       

General revenues

Taxes and subventions

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 882,660            

Property taxes, levied for other specific purposes 2,762               

Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 29,401,205        

Interest and investment earnings (667,552)           

Miscellaneous 380,684            

Subtotal, General Revenue 29,999,759        

Change in Net Position 6,746,655         

Net Position - Beginning 46,261,724        

Net Position - Ending 53,008,379$      

Function/Programs

Program Revenues

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 14 

General Fund

Non-Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 27,181,700$          2,784,011$             29,965,711$          

Accounts receivable 805,139                377,104                 1,182,243             

Due from other funds 98,588                 -                           98,588                 

Stores inventory -                          34,180                   34,180                 

Prepaid expenditures 94,587                 -                           94,587                 

Total Assets 28,180,014$          3,195,295$             31,375,309$          

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 1,534,556$           119,112$               1,653,668$           

Due to other funds 32,578                 66,010                   98,588                 

Uearned revenue 884,234                1,998                     886,232                

Total Liabilities 2,451,368             187,120                 2,638,488             

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 97,087                 34,180                   131,267                

Restricted

Educational Programs 4,962,563             -                           4,962,563             

Capital projects 1,208,873             957,539                 2,166,412             

Child nutrition 381,359                579,435                 960,794                

Other restricted 48,951                 905,441                 954,392                

Assigned 4,719,156             531,580                 5,250,736             

Unassigned 14,310,657           -                           14,310,657           

Total Fund Balances 25,728,646           3,008,175               28,736,821           

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 28,180,014$          3,195,295$             31,375,309$           
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF 

NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 15 

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 28,736,821$     

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the 

statement of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental 

funds because:

Capital assets: 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported.  In the statement of 

net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and 

accumulated depreciation:

Capital assets 64,957,886$          

Accumulated depreciation (14,937,078)          50,020,808      

Long-term liabilities:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported.  In the statement 

of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported.  

Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Net pension liability 24,170,138$          

Net OPEB liability 4,648,600             

Compensated absences 65,438                 (28,884,176)     

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:

In governmental funds, defered outflows and inflows of resources relating 

to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.  

In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

relating to pensions are reported:

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions: 6,995,707$           

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions: (2,144,462)            4,851,245        

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment 

benefits (OPEB):

In governmental funds, defered outflows and inflows of resources relating 

to OPEB are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.  In 

the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

relating to pensions are reported:

Deferre outflows of resources relating to OPEB 95,922$                

Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (1,812,241)            (1,716,319)       

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 53,008,379$      
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 16 

General Fund

Non-Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES

LCFF sources 19,450,567$        -$                        19,450,567$          

Federal sources 11,343,327         1,490,093             12,833,420           

Other state sources 6,930,827           904,179                7,835,006             

Other local sources 246,359              233,288                479,647                

Total Revenues 37,971,080         2,627,560             40,598,640           

EXPENDITURES

Current

Instruction 20,376,938         -                          20,376,938           

Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 669,776              -                          669,776                

Instructional library, media, and technology 868,719              -                          868,719                

School site administration 2,436,287           -                          2,436,287             

Pupil services

Home-to-school transportation 479,958              -                          479,958                

Food services 41,182               1,265,425             1,306,607             

All other pupil services 1,487,034           -                          1,487,034             

General administration

Centralized data processing 493,994              -                          493,994                

All other general administration 2,103,945           67,700                 2,171,645             

Plant services 2,935,343           -                          2,935,343             

Facilities acquisition and maintenance 752,334              902,084                1,654,418             

Community services 75,233               -                          75,233                 

Transfers to other agencies 183,177              -                          183,177                

Total Expenditures 32,903,920         2,235,209             35,139,129           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures 5,067,160           392,351                5,459,511             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 14,675               421,604                436,279                

Transfers out (14,675)              (421,604)               (436,279)               

Net Financing Sources (Uses) -                        -                          -                          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,067,160           392,351                5,459,511             

Fund Balance - Beginning 20,661,486         2,615,824             23,277,310           

Fund Balance - Ending 25,728,646$        3,008,175$           28,736,821$           
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 17 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 5,459,511$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from 

amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:

In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the 

period when the assets are acquired.  In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets 

are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.  The difference 

between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay: 1,711,251$           

Depreciation expense: (1,385,922)           325,329               

Compensated absences:

In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during 

the period.  In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the 

amount earned.  The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated 

absences earned, was: (10,202)                

Pensions:

In government funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made.  

In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.  This year, 

the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was: 942,270               

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):

In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer contributions are 

made.  In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.  

This year, the difference between OPEB costs and actual employer contributions was:
29,747        

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 6,746,655$            
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 18 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the 

Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform 

to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(AICPA). 

 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 

The District's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The District evaluated 

whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including 

organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, 

(as amended), The Financial Reporting Entity, include whether: 

 

• the organization is legally separate organization (can sue and be sued in its name) for which the 

primary government is financially accountable. 

• the District holds the corporate powers of the organization 

• the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 

• the District is able to impose its will on the organization 

• the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District 

• there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District 

 

B. Component Units 

 

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally 

to provide support to the District to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial 

statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an 

organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are 

entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units or its constituents; and 2) 

The District or its component units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the 

economic resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to 

the District.  

 

Based on these criteria, the District has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a component unit 

of any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement. 

 

C. Basis of Presentation 

 

Government-Wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the 

financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting 

of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental 

revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 19 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

C. Basis of Presentation, continued 

 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 

function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with 

a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not 

allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges 

paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 

restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not 

classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, with 

separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 

governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated 

and reported as non-major funds. 

 

The District reports the following major governmental funds:  

 

General Fund. This is the District's primary operating fund. It is used to account for and report all financial 

resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.  

 

County School Facilities Fund. This fund is used primarily to account for new school facility construction, 

modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 

1998 (Education Code Section 17070.10 et seq.)  

 

The District reports the following non-major governmental funds:  

 

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt 

service or capital projects. The following special revenue fund is utilized by the District: 

 

• Cafeteria Fund. This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local resources to 

operate the food service program. 

 

• Deferred Maintenance Fund.  This fund is used to account separately State apportionments and the 

District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes and for items of maintenance approved by 

the State Allocation Board. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 20 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

C. Basis of Presentation, continued 

 

Capital Projects Funds: Capital project funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 

restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction 

of capital facilities and other capital assets. The District maintains the following capital projects funds: 

 

• Capital Facilities Fund.  This fund is used to account for resources received from developer impact 

fees assessed under provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 

• Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects. This fund exists primarily to provide for the 

accumulation of General Fund monies for capital outlay purposes.  

 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

 

Government-wide and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using 

the economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless 

of when the related cash flows take place. Non­exchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) 

value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, 

entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year 

for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal 

year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  

 

Revenues – Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions  

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, 

is recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is 

recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the 

resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter 

to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current 

period or within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California 

school districts and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursements 

grants and corrections to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined 

available for school districts as collectible within one year.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 21 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, continued 

 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, 

include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 

recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is 

recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  

 

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used 

or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local 

resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided 

to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange 

transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.  

 

Unearned Revenue  

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria 

for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of 

qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the 

District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet 

and revenue is recognized.  

 

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the 

governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are 

also recorded as unearned revenue. 

 

Expenses/Expenditures  

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified 

accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the 

related fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual 

basis of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 

claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and 

amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources 

are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 

they are needed. 

 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for 

which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other 

commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All 

encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 22 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, continued 

 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America for all government funds. By state law, the District's Board of Trustees must adopt a final 

budget no later than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The 

District's Board of Trustees satisfied these requirements. 

 

These budgets are revised by the District's Board of Trustees and District Superintendent during the year to 

give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. 

 

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for all budgeted 

funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation accounts. 

Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balance 

 

Deposits and Investments 

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository 

Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized. 

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the Kings 

County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those of other districts in the County and invests the cash. 

These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest earned is deposited 

quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which interest earned is credited to 

the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool. 

 

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 

53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the County are either secured by federal depository insurance or are 

collateralized. 

 

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with Kings County Treasury was not 

available. 

 

Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures 

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the 

time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories are valued at average cost and consist of 

expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, 

which indicates that these amounts are not "available for appropriation and expenditure" even though they 

are a component of net current assets. 

 

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when 

purchased or during the benefitting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure when incurred. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 23 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balance, continued 

 

Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets 

are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and 

repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A 

capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used. Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method 

over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives 

Buildings 25-50 

Improvements  20 

Equipment 5-15 

 

Receivable and Payable Balances 

The District has provided detail of the receivable balances in Note 3. The District believes that sufficient detail 

of payable balances is provided in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components 

by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates the payable balances. 

 

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end. 

 

Compensated Absences 

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the District. The liabilities are 

recognized in long-term obligation activity - due within one year.  

 

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record 

sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; 

however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits 

when the employee retires. 

 

Long-Term Obligation 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 

as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 

 

lnterfund Activity 

lnterfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are 

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 

consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 

expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 

benefitting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated 

as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the 

government­wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and 

presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net position.



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 24 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balance, continued 

 

Property Taxes 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two 

installments on December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or 

before August 31. The County of Kings bills and collects the taxes for the District. 

 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net assets or position that is applicable to a future 

reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net assets or net position that is applicable 

to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are recorded in 

accordance with GASB Statement numbers 63 and 65. 

 

Fund Balances 

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 

on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 

amounts in those funds can be spent. 

 

Governmental fund balance is classified as non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. 

Following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the District: 

 

Non-spendable fund balance includes items that cannot be spent. This includes activity that is not in a 

spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or property held 

for resale unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned) and activity that is legally or contractually 

required to remain intact, such as a principal balance in a permanent fund. 

 

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by 

an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

 

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to 

constraints imposed by a formal action of the Board, the District's highest level of decision-making authority. 

This formal action is the board resolution or majority vote. 

 

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for a specific 

purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental funds, other than the general fund, this 

is the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed. Assignments of fund balance are 

created by the Superintendent of the District pursuant to authorization established by Board Policy 3100.  

 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents fund 

balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned 

to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive 

unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, it may be necessary to report a negative 

unassigned fund balance.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 25 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balance, continued 

 

Fund Balances, continued 

When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 

assigned, or unassigned) resources are available, it is the District's general policy to use restricted resources 

first. When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (committed, assigned, and 

unassigned) resources are available, and amount in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it 

is the District's general policy to spend committed resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then 

unassigned amounts.  

 

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to 

reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District's 

Minimum Fund Balance Policy intends to maintain a minimum fund balance of equal to at least two months 

of General Fund operating expenditures, or 17 percent of the District's General Fund annual operating 

expenditures and other financing uses. 

 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 

CalPERS Schools Pool Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (CalPERS Plan) and CalSTRS Schools Pool Cost-

Sharing Multiple Employer Plan (CalSTRS Plan) and additions to/deductions from the CalPERS Plan and 

CalSTRS Plan's fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 

CalPERS Financial Office and CalSTRS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds 

of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined 

time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used: 

 

Valuation Date (VD)    June 30, 2021 

Measurement Date (MD)   June 30, 2022 

Measurement Period (MP)   July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 

 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the District's single-employer defined benefit OPEB 

Plan ("the Plan") have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, 

the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 26 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund Balance, continued 

 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. 

 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

 

GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This Statement provides 

guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription based information technology 

arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). Under this Statement, a government 

generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding 

subscription liability. A government should recognize the subscription liability at the commencement of the 

subscription term, which is when the subscription asset is placed into service. The statement is effective for 

fiscal year 2022- 23.  The District has adopted GASB Statement No. 96 for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

 

GASB Statement No. 99 – In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The objectives of this 

statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency 

of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation 

and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. 

The statement addresses various practice issues, including: (a) clarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, 

Leases, as amended, related to the determination of the lease term, classification of a lease as a short-term 

lease, recognition and measurement of a lease liability and a lease asset, and identification of lease incentives, 

(b) disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions; clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic 

Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, as 

amended, related to the focus of the government-wide financial statements, (c) terminology updates related 

to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 

Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and (d) terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows 

statements. A portion of this statement was effective upon issuance, while the remaining portions of this 

statement were effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022 and for periods beginning after June 15, 

2023. The District has implemented the requirements that were effective upon issuance but has not yet 

determined the impact on the financial statements for the requirements of this statement that are not yet 

effective. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 27 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS  

 

A. Summary of Cash and Investments 

 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2023 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

 

Governmental

Activities

Cash in county treasury 31,040,865$        

Fair market value adjustment (1,088,416)          

Cash on hand and in banks 10,762                

Cash in revolving fund 2,500                 

Total 29,965,711$         
 

B. Cash in County Treasury  

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the 

Kings County Treasury as part of the common investment pool (the District's portion was $29,592,449 as of 

June 30, 2023). The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool. The 

fair value of the District's portion of this pool as of June 30, 2023, as provided by the pool sponsor, was 

$29,952,449. Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the District's pooled investment portfolios 

are available from the County Treasurer. The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant 

to Section 53601 to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or 

bonds, State Treasurer's investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of 

deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The amount recorded on these financial 

statements is the balance available for withdrawal based on the accounting records maintained by the County 

Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.  

 

C. Cash in Banks and in Revolving Fund  

 

Cash balances held in financial institutions including cash in banks ($10,762 as of June 30, 2023) and in the 

revolving fund ($2,500) are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.  

 

D. Investment Accounting Policy  

 

The District is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which investments, if 

any, are reported at amortized cost. The District's general policy is to report money market investments and 

short-term participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report 

nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value 

of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other 

factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists 

which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining term of 

one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not 

vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating 

interest-earning investment contracts.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 28 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued 

 

D. Investment Accounting Policy, continued 

 

The District's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value 

per share of the pools underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share 

value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as 

an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent 

with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The District's investment policy does not 

contain any specific provisions intended to limit the District's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and 

concentration of credit risk.  

 

E. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 

changes in market interest rates.  

 

F. Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk  

 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 

organization.  

 

G. Concentration of Credit Risk  

 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 

issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The District has no investments outside of 

the investment of cash in the County Treasury.   

 

H. Custodial Credit Risk  

 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 

a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that 

are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy 

do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, 

other than the following provisions for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial 

institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided 

collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). 

The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 

deposited by the public agencies. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 29 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued 

 

H. Custodial Credit Risk  

 

None of the District's deposits with financial institutions are in excess of federal depository insurance limits.  

 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 

broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or 

collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government code and the 

District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 

custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only 

to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's 

indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds of government investment pools. 

 

I. Fair Value  

 

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by 

generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 

measure as asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value: 

 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. 

 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, 

quoted prices for identical of similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable, 

either directly or indirectly. 

 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the 

circumstances, which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable 

available information indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain 

circumstances specific to the District are not available to other market participants. 

 

Uncategorized - Cash in County Treasury (Investments in county treasury) in the Kings County Treasury 

Investment Pool are not measured using the input levels above because the District's transactions are based 

on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value 

per share.  

 

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2023 were as follows: 

 

Uncategorized

Investment in county treasury 29,952,449$       

Total fair market value of investments 29,952,449$        
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 30 

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023, consist of the following: 

 

General Fund

Non-Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

Federal Government

Federal programs 690,955$            377,104$            1,068,059$         

State Government

Categorical aid 5,653                 -                        5,653                 

Lottery 104,435              -                        104,435              

Local Government

Other local revenues 4,096                 -                        4,096                 

Total 805,139$            377,104$            1,182,243$          
 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS  

 

Capital asset activity for the period ended June 30, 2023, was as follows: 

 
Balance Balance

July 01, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023

Capital Assets not Being Depreciated

Land 33,341$              -$                      -$                      33,341$              

Construction in progress 1,116,595           727,800              121,065              1,723,330           

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 1,149,936           727,800              121,065              1,756,671           

Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Buildings 56,991,285         641,965              -                        57,633,250         

Land improvements 3,079,784           326,000              -                        3,405,784           

Equipment 2,025,630           136,551              -                        2,162,181           

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 62,096,699         1,104,516           -                        63,201,215         

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings 9,244,805           1,079,936           -                        10,324,741         

Land improvements 2,234,876           173,374              -                        2,408,250           

Equipment 2,071,475           132,612              -                        2,204,087           

Total Accumulated Depreciation 13,551,156         1,385,922           -                        14,937,078         

Capital Assets, net 49,695,479$        446,394$            121,065$            50,020,808$         
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 31 

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES  

 

A. Due To and From Other Funds 

 

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2023, consisted of the following: 

 

Payable Fund General Fund Total

General Fund 32,578$                  32,578$                  

Total Non-Major Governmental Funds 66,010                   66,010                   

Total 98,588$                  98,588$                  

32,578$                  

66,010                   

98,588$                  

Due from Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund to General Fund for pay back

previous expenses.

Receivable Fund

Benefits for opeb costs.

Due from General Fund to Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment 

 
 

B. Transfers To and From Other Funds  

 

Transfers in to and out from other funds at June 30, 2023, consisted of the following: 

 

Interfund Transfer Out General Fund

Total Non-Major 

Governmental Funds Total

General Fund 14,675$                  -$                          14,675$                  

Total Non-Major Governmental Funds -                            421,604                  421,604                  

Total 14,675$                  421,604$                436,279$                

14,675$                  

to cover OPEB related costs.

115,081                  

to cover expenses.

306,523                  

436,279$                

Transfer from General Fund to County School Facilities fund to cover expenses.

Interfund Transfer In

Transfer from General Fund to Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 

Transfer from General Fund to Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects Fund

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 32 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 

A. Long- Term Obligation Activity  

 

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the 

period ended June 30, 2023, are as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Due in

July 01, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023 One Year

Governmental Activities

Net pension liability 14,808,117$        9,362,021$          -$                      24,170,138$        -$                      

Net OPEB liability 4,530,182           118,418              -                        4,648,600           -                        

Compensated absences 55,236                10,202                -                        65,438                65,438                

Total 19,393,535$        9,490,641$          -$                      28,884,176$        65,438$               
 

NOTE 7 – DETAIL OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS  

 

Details of assigned and committed Fund Balances are as follows: 

 

General Fund

Non-Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

Non-spendable

Revolving cash 2,500$               -$                      2,500$               

Stores inventory -                        34,180               34,180               

94,587               -                        94,587               

Total non-spendable 97,087               34,180               131,267              

Restricted

Educational Programs 4,962,563           -                        4,962,563           

Capital projects 1,208,873           957,539              2,166,412           

Child nutrition 381,359              579,435              960,794              

Other restricted 48,951               905,441              954,392              

Total restricted 6,601,746           2,442,415           9,044,161           

Assigned

OPEB 719,156              -                        719,156              

Other assignments 4,000,000           531,580              4,531,580           

Total assigned 4,719,156           531,580              5,250,736           

Unassigned

Reserve for economic uncertainties 996,000              -                        996,000              

Remaining unassigned 13,314,657         -                        13,314,657         

Total unassigned 14,310,657         -                        14,310,657         

Total 25,728,646$        3,008,175$         28,736,821$        

Prepaid expenditures

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 33 

NOTE 8 – JOINT VENTURES (JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS) 

 

The District participates in joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPAs) with the Self-Insured Schools of 

California II, the Self-Insured Schools of California Ill, the Kings County Self-Insured Schools, and the Kings Schools 

Transportation Authority. The relationship between the District and the JPAs is such that none of the JPAs is a 

component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.  

 

Condensed audited financial information for the above JPAs (the most current information available) can be 

obtained through each respective authority.  

 

A. Self-Insured Schools of California II (SISC II)  

 

SISC II arranges for and provides property and liability insurance for its member districts. SISC II is governed 

by a Board consisting or a representative from each member district. The Board controls the operations of 

SISC II, including the selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any 

influence by the member districts beyond their representation on the Board. Each member district pays a 

premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits 

proportionately to their participation in SISC II. 

 

B. Self-Insured Schools of California Ill (SISC Ill)  

 

SISC Ill arranges for and provides health, dental and vision benefits for its member districts. SISC Ill is governed 

by a Board consisting or a representative from each member district. The Board controls the operations of 

SISC Ill, including the selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any 

influence by the member districts beyond their representation on the Board. Each member district pays a 

premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits 

proportionately to their participation in SISC Ill.  

 

C. Kings County Self-Insured Schools (KCSIS)  

 

KCSIS arranges for and provides workers' compensation insurance for its member districts. KCSIS is governed 

by a Board consisting or a representative from each member district. The Board controls the operations of 

KCSIS, including the selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any 

influence by the member districts beyond their representation on the Board. Each member district pays a 

premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits 

proportionately to their participation in KCSIS.  

 

D. Kings School Transportation Authority (KSTA)  

 

KSTA operates the special education transportation needs of its member districts. KSTA is governed by a Board 

consisting of a representative from each member district. The Board controls the operations of KSTA, including 

the selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the 

member districts beyond their representation on the Board. Each member district pays fees commensurate 

with the level of services requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to their participation in 

KSTA. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 34 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS 

 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies 

of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System 

(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 

The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of 

resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows: 

 

Collective Collective

Collective Net Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Collective 

Pension Plan Pension Liability of Resources of Resources Pension Expense

CalSTRS 15,148,476$          4,008,754$           1,876,902$           1,644,384$           

CalPERS 9,021,662             2,986,953             267,560                1,107,574             

Total 24,170,138$          6,995,707$           2,144,462$           2,751,958$            
 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) 

 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple 

employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan 

provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established 

by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues a separate 

comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 

Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA 

95826. 

 

Benefits Provided 

The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas: 

 

1. CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be 

creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum 

of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation 

for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five years of credited 

service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 

increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more 

of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, known as the career 

factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation. 

 

2. CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be creditable 

to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five 

years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each 

year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after 

age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 35 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), continued 

 

Contributions 

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 10.25% and 10.205% of their salary 

for fiscal year 2022, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The 

actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers' 

Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2023 was 19.10% of annual payroll. The 

contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan from 

the District were $2,530,805 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

On-Behalf Payments 

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 education. 

These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $1,216,980 to CalSTRS. 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected 

a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its 

proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension 

liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 

 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 15,148,476$        

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 7,586,401           

Total 22,734,877$         
 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 

pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 and 

rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was 

based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 

contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. As of the June 30, 2022 measurement 

date, the District’s proportionate share was 0.0218 percent, which is an increase of 0.0009% from the June 30, 2021 

measurement date. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 36 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), continued 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions, continued 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $1,644,384. In addition, the District 

recognized pension expense and revenue of ($567,402) for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2023, the 

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 

following sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments -$                           741,269$                 

Differences between expected and actual experience 12,426                    1,135,633                

Changes in assumptions 750,693                   -                             

Net changes in proportionate share of net pension liability 714,830                   -                             

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,530,805                -                             

Total 4,008,754$              1,876,902$               
 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 

ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)

Year Ended June 30, of Resources

2024 236,409$                  

2025 (645,190)                  

2026 (994,316)                  

2027 1,213,276                 

2028 (157,028)                  

Thereafter (52,104)                    

(398,953)$                  
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 37 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), continued 

 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 

2021, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022 using the following actuarial assumptions, 

applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

Valuation date June 30, 2021

Measurement date June 30, 2022

Experience study July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Discount rate 7.10%

Investment rate of return 7.10%

Consumer price inflation 2.75%

Wage growth 3.50%  
 

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables 

are based on MP-2019 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience. 

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 

study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018. 

 

The long-term investment rate of return assumption was determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 

expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were developed using 

capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and investment consultants as inputs to the process. 

 

The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the board in January 2020 in conjunction with 

the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS’ independent consulting actuary 

(Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital market 

assumptions. Best estimates of expected 20-year geometrically linked real rates of return and the assumed asset 

allocation for each major asset class as of June 30, 2023, are summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class

Assumed Asset 

Allocation 

Public Equity 42%

Real Estate 15%

Private Equity 13%

Fixed Income 12%

Risk Mitigating Strategies 10%

Inflation Sensitive 6%

Cash/Liquidity 2%

100%

*20-year geometric average

Long-term Expected 

Real Rate of Return*

-0.40%

4.80%

3.60%

6.30%

1.30%

1.80%

3.30%

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 38 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), continued 

 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used 

to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 

statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment 

earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that 

contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the 

Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current 

plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected 

benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

 

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 

Rate 

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 

rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 

were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher 

(8.10 percent) than the current rate: 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)

Plan's net pension liability 25,727,731$     15,148,476$       6,364,514$          
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS 

financial report. 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 

 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System 

(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 

administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 

and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as 

legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive 

annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the 

CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 

95811. 

 

Benefits Provided 

The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and 

benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries. 

Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 39 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), continued 

 

Contributions 

Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their 

salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into the 

plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 7.0% of their salary. 

Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from 

paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution 

is specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013. 

The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 

for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer 

contribution rate for fiscal year 2023 was 25.37% of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the District were 

$1,163,423 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of $9,021,662 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 

pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 and 

rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was 

based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 

contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. As of the June 30, 2022 measurement 

date, the District’s proportionate sahre was 0.0262 percent, which was an increase of 0.0001 from the June 30, 

2021 measurement date. 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $1,107,574. At June 30, 2023, the 

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 

following sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments 1,065,213$              -$                           

Differences between expected and actual experience 40,772                    224,471                   

Net changes in proportionate share of net pension liability 50,174                    43,089                    

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,163,423                -                             

Total 2,986,953$              267,560$                  
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 40 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), continued 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions, continued 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 

ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)

Year Ended June 30, of Resources

2024 374,314$                  

2025 319,242                   

2026 209,528                   

2027 652,886                   

1,555,970$                
 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 

2021, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022 using the following actuarial assumptions, 

applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

Valuation date June 30, 2021

Measurement date June 30, 2022

Experience study July 1, 1997, through June 30, 2015

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Discount rate 6.90%

Investment rate of return 6.90%

Consumer price inflation 2.50%

Wage growth Varies by entry age and service  
 

The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate Generational Mortality 

to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. 

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 

study for the period from 1997 to 2015. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 41 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), continued 

 

Actuarial Assumptions, continued 

 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return 

expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated 

and, combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The 

discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. 

 

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows 

 

Asset Class*

Assumed Asset 

Allocation 

Global Equity - cap-weighted 30%

Global Equity non-cap-weighted 12%

Private Equity 13%

Treasury 5%

Mortgage-backed Securities 5%

Investment Grade Corporates 10%

High Yield 5%

Emerging Market Debt 5%

Private Debt 5%

Real Assets 15%

Leverage -5%

100%

*An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.

**Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study.

Real Return

Years 1 - 10**

4.45%

2.27%

2.48%

3.84%

7.28%

0.27%

0.50%

1.56%

3.57%

3.21%

-0.59%

 
 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent. A projection of the expected benefit 

payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the assets 

would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 

all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool. The results 

of the crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ 

website. 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 42 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLANS, continued 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), continued 

 

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 

Rate 

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 

rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 

were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher 

(7.90 percent) than the current rate: 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)

Plan's net pension liability 13,032,248$     9,021,662$         5,707,061$          
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 

financial report. 

 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

 

The District provides postemployment health care benefits for retired employees in accordance with negotiated 

contracts with the various bargaining units of the District. 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District reported net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, 

deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense for the following plans: 

 

Net OPEB Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows OPEB

OPEB Plan Liability (Asset) of Resources of Resources Expense

District Plan 4,648,600$              95,922$                  1,812,241$              (29,747)$                  
 

Plan Description 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 9, the District provides post-employment health care plan 

benefits to age 65, for employees who retire from the District on or after attaining age 55 with at least 15 years of 

service. The plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by District's board of directors. 

Authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements lies with the District's board of 

directors. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of the GASB 75 statement. 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 43 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB), continued 

 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

As of June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

 

Number of

Participants

Inactive Employees Receiving Benefits 18                   

Active Employees 159                  

177                   
 

Contributions 

The contribution requirements of OPEB Plan members and the District are established and may be amended 

through negotiations between the District and the respective bargaining units. The required contribution is based 

on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District 

contributed $281,149 to the Plan, all of which was used for current premiums.  

 

An actuarially determined contribution was not calculated for OPEB for the fiscal year, therefore a 10-year schedule 

is not presented in the required supplementary information. 

 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 

assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 

 

 Valuation date  June 30, 2022

 Measurement date  June 30, 2023

 Actuarial cost methods  Entry age actuarial cost method

 Inflation rate 2.50%

 Investment rate of return 3.65%

 Health care cost trend rate 4.00%

 Payroll increase 2.75%

 Mortality For certificated employees the 2020 CalSTRS

mortality tables were used.

For classified employees the 2017 CalPERS

active mortality for miscellaneous and school

employees were used.  
 

Mortality assumptions were based on the 2020 CalSTRS Mortality Table for certificated employees and the 2017 

CalPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous and School Employees Table for classified employees. 

 

The actuarial assumptions used on the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on a review of plan experience which 

included a validation of experience studies prepared by CalSTRS and CalPERS for retirement and turnover 

assumptions during the period of 1997 through 2007 for CalSTRS and during the period of 1999 through 2009 for 

CalPERS. For other assumptions, actual plan provisions and data were used.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 44 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB), continued 

 

Discount Rate  

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-bond General Obligation Index. It was assumed that 

contributions would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability  

 

Total OPEB Total Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance July 1, 2022 4,530,182$           -$                        4,530,182$           

Changes for the year:

Service cost 274,256                -                          274,256                

Interest on TOL 160,246                -                          160,246                

Employer contributions -                          281,149                (281,149)               

Assumption changes (34,935)                -                          (34,935)                

Expected benefit payments (281,149)               (281,149)               -                          

Net change 118,418                -                          118,418                

Balance June 30, 2023 4,648,600$           -$                        4,648,600$           

Increase/(Decrease)

 
 

The discount rate of 3.65% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 increased by 0.11% from the discount rate of 

3.54% in the prior measurement period of June 30, 2022. There were no other changes in benefit terms or 

assumptions and other inputs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of ($29,747).  As of fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the 

following sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience -$                         1,452,870$            

Change in assumptions 95,922                  359,371                 

95,922$                 1,812,241$             
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 45 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB), continued 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB, 

continued 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 

recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 

 

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)

Year Ended June 30, of Resources

2024 (183,100)$               

2025 (183,100)                 

2026 (183,100)                 

2027 (183,100)                 

2028 (183,100)                 

Thereafter (800,819)                 

(1,716,319)$              
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes In the Discount Rate  

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 

one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

Discount Discount

Rate Discount Rate

1% Lower Rate 1% Higher

(2.65%) (3.65%) (4.65%)

Net OPEB liability 4,940,750$           4,648,600$           4,376,907$            
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care cost trend 

rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend 

rates: 

 

Health Care Health Care Health Care

Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate

1% Lower Rate 1% Higher

(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)

Net OPEB liability 4,164,518$           4,648,600$           5,211,583$            
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 46 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

A. State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants 

 

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 

the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the 

grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material. 

 

B. Work in Progress  

 

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 

the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the 

grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material. The District had $201,775 of 

outstanding construction commitments as of June 30, 2023. 

 

NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

 

The District evaluated subsequent events from June 30, 2023 through December 14, 2023, the date the financial 

statements were issued. The District concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require 

recognition or disclosure in the financial statements 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND – BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 47 

Actual* Variances - 

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final to Actual

REVENUES

LCFF sources 18,550,555$          19,447,672$          19,450,567$          2,895$                 

Federal sources 10,153,178           11,039,800           11,343,327           303,527                

Other state sources 2,812,217             7,270,384             6,930,827             (339,557)               

Other local sources 795,547                922,458                246,359                (676,099)               

Total Revenues 32,311,497           38,680,314           37,971,080           (709,234)               

EXPENDITURES

Certificated salaries 13,448,765           14,330,506           13,699,048           (631,458)               

Classified salaries 4,128,837             4,603,729             4,584,086             (19,643)                

Employee benefits 9,141,007             9,019,366             8,773,060             (246,306)               

Books and supplies 1,495,160             2,252,980             1,428,630             (824,350)               

Services and other operating expenditures 3,433,658             3,926,683             3,507,731             (418,952)               

Capital outlay 412,729                1,824,210             795,888                (1,028,322)            

Other outgo

Excluding transfers of indirect costs 311,277                311,277                183,177                (128,100)               

Transfers of indirect costs -                          88,066                 (67,700)                (155,766)               

Total Expenditures 32,371,433           36,356,817           32,903,920           (3,452,897)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (59,936)                2,323,497             5,067,160             (4,162,131)            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 575,673                804,091                14,675                 (789,416)               

Transfers out (798,258)               (1,047,860)            (14,675)                1,033,185             

Net Financing Sources (Uses) (222,585)               (243,769)               -                          243,769                

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (282,521)               2,079,728             5,067,160             2,987,432             

Fund Balance - Beginning 20,661,486           20,661,486           20,661,486           -                          

Fund Balance - Ending 20,378,965$          22,741,214$          25,728,646$          2,987,432$           

Budgeted Amounts*

* General Fund amounts include activity related to the consolidation of the Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment 

Benefits as required by GASB Statement No. 54.  
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 48 

2022 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 274,256$           320,806$           310,272$           527,478$           488,218$           475,151$           

Interest 160,246            106,115            103,321            216,963            195,666            194,634            

Assumption changes (34,935)             (387,698)           13,441              (4,552)               131,077            -                      

Experience gains/losses -                      (143,168)           -                      (1,919,186)         -                      -                      

Benefit payments (281,149)           (236,388)           (195,594)           (233,667)           (218,544)           (210,138)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 118,418            (340,333)           231,440            (1,412,964)         596,417            459,647            

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 4,530,182          4,870,515          4,639,075          6,052,039          5,455,622          4,995,975          

Total OPEB liability, end of year (a) 4,648,600$        4,530,182$        4,870,515$        4,639,075$        6,052,039$        5,455,622$        

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 281,149$           236,388$           195,594$           233,667$           218,544$           210,138$           

Expected benefit payments (281,149)           (236,388)           (195,594)           (233,667)           (218,544)           (210,138)           

Change in plan fiduciary net position -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fiduciary trust net position, beginning of year -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fiduciary trust net position, end of year (b) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Net OPEB liability (asset), ending (a) - (b) 4,648,600$        4,530,182$        4,870,515$        4,639,075$        6,052,039$        5,455,622$        

Covered payroll 13,511,372$      13,511,372$      13,908,897$      13,667,204$      13,828,874$      13,812,513$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total OPEB liability (asset) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Net OPEB asset as a percentage of covered payroll 34% 34% 35% 34% 44% 39%

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.  
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – OPEB  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 49 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially  determined contribution 281,149$             236,388$             195,594$             233,667$             218,544$             210,138$             

Contributions in relations to the actuarially determined contribution 281,149               236,388               195,594               293,395               218,544               210,138               

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                       -$                       -$                       (59,728)$              -$                       -$                       

Covered-employee payroll 13,511,372$         13,511,372$         13,908,897$         13,667,204$         13,828,874$         13,812,513$         

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 2.08% 1.75% 1.41% 2.15% 1.58% 1.52%

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.  
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 50 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

CalSTRS (2022) (2021) (2020) (2019) (2018)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0218% 0.0209% 0.0205% 0.0201% 0.0190%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 15,148,476$     9,491,934$       19,824,158$     18,160,970$     17,473,628$     

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 7,586,401         4,776,073         10,219,273       9,908,101         10,004,518       

Total 22,734,877$     14,268,007$     30,043,431$     28,069,071$     49,220,169$     

District's covered - employee payroll 12,485,230$     11,503,827$     10,552,118$     10,809,005$     10,165,448$     

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 121% 83% 188% 168% 172%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 81% 87% 72% 73% 71%

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

CalPERS (2022) (2021) (2020) (2019) (2018)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0262% 0.0261% 0.0264% 0.0261% 0.0272%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 9,021,662$       5,316,183$       8,100,938$       7,592,577$       7,257,967$       

District's covered - employee payroll 4,001,340$       3,758,280$       3,808,722$       3,610,226$       3,593,365$       

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 225% 141% 213% 210% 202%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 70% 81% 70% 70% 71%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 51 

2018 2017 2016 2015

CalSTRS (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0186% 0.0199% 0.0215% 0.0212%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 17,186,124$     16,104,119$     14,491,216$     12,363,128$     

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 10,167,249       9,169,137         7,664,235         7,465,391         

Total 48,340,000$     43,532,000$     34,973,000$     29,487,000$     

District's covered - employee payroll 9,738,736$       10,002,665$     10,017,770$     9,239,855$       

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 176% 161% 145% 134%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 69% 70% 74% 77%

2018 2017 2016 2015

CalPERS (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0271% 0.0280% 0.0644% 0.0310%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 6,475,304$       5,524,405$       4,284,267$       3,523,388$       

District's covered - employee payroll 3,459,879$       3,372,727$       3,218,155$       3,245,779$       

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 187% 164% 133% 109%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 72% 74% 79% 83%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSIONS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 52 

CalSTRS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Statutorily required contribution 2,530,805$       2,112,501$       1,857,868$       1,913,099$       1,759,814$       

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 2,530,805         2,112,501         1,857,868         1,913,099         1,759,814         

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

District's covered-employee payroll 13,250,288$      12,485,230$      11,503,827$      10,552,118$      10,809,005$      

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 19.10% 16.92% 16.15% 18.13% 16.28%

CalPERS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Statutorily required contribution 1,163,423$       916,707$          777,964$          751,118$          652,089$          

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 1,163,423         916,707            777,964            751,118            652,089            

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

District's covered-employee payroll 4,585,822$       4,001,340$       3,758,280$       3,808,722$       3,610,226$       

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 25.37% 22.91% 20.70% 19.72% 18.06%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSIONS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 53 

CalSTRS 2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution 1,466,516$       1,225,133$       1,073,286$       889,578$          

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 1,466,516         1,225,133         1,073,286         889,578            

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

District's covered-employee payroll 10,165,448$      9,738,736$       10,002,665$      10,017,770$      

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 14.43% 12.58% 10.73% 8.88%

CalPERS 2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution 558,095$          480,508$          399,567$          378,809$          

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 558,095            480,508            399,567            378,809            

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

District's covered-employee payroll 3,593,365$       3,459,879$       3,372,727$       3,218,155$       

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 15.53% 13.89% 11.85% 11.77%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

 
 

 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 54 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General 

Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary 

comparison schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period 

as well as (c) actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to 

report the variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required. 

 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 75 for all sole and agent employers that provide other 

postemployment benefits (OPEB). Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years 

under which GASB Statement No. 75 was applicable. The schedule presents the sources of change in the total 

OPEB liability, and the components of the total OPEB liability and related ratios, including the total OPEB liability 

as a percentage of covered-employee payroll. 

 

Changes in Benefit Terms 

There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for other postemployment benefits. 

 

Changes in Assumptions 

The discount rate as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date was 3.54%, while the discount rate as of the 

June 30, 2023 measurement date was 3.65%. 

 

Schedule of Contributions – OPEB 

This schedule presents information on the District's actuarially determined contribution, contributions in relation 

to the actuarially determined contribution, and any excess or deficiency related to the actuarially determined 

contribution. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented. 

 

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-

year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was 

applicable. The schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the 

District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered payroll, the 

District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s 

covered payroll, and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. 

 

Changes in Benefit Terms 

There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS. 

 

Changes in Assumptions 

There were no changes in assumptions since the previous valuations for CalSTRS. The discount rate and 

investment rate of return for CalPERS as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date was 6.90%, while as of 

the June 30, 2021 measurement date it was 7.15%.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 55 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES, continued 

 

Schedule of Contributions – Pensions 

This schedule presents information on the District's required contribution, the amounts actually contributed, and 

any excess or deficiency related to the required contribution. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years 

of information will be presented. 

 

NOTE 2 – EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District did not incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in 

individual major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 56 

The District was established 1938, and is comprised of an area of approximately 175 square miles located in Kings 

County. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the year ended June 30, 2023. The District 

is currently operating four elementary schools. 

 

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires

Dale Davidson President 2024

Vacant Member N/A

ADMINISTRATION

Tom Addington

Davinder Sidhu

Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services

Steven Salefske* Member 2026

Ceil Howe, III Member 2026

Jeffrey Gilcrease Clerk 2026

Teresa Santamaria

Chief Business Official

Superintendent

 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 57 

Assistance 

Listing 

Number

Pass-Through Entity 

Identifying Number

 Federal 

Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Passed through California Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:

Especially Needy Breakfast Program 10.553 13526 248,967$            

National School Lunch Program 10.555 13391 445,271              

Meals Supplements - Snack 10.555 13391 26,678                

Supply Chain Assistance (SCA) Funds 10.555 15655 44,617                

Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster 765,533              

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 765,533              

U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Programs:

Title Vl Federal lmpact Aid 84.041 10015 7,303,195           

Passed through California Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster (IDEA):

IDEA Basic Grant Entitlement 84.027 13379 71,839                

lDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B 84.027A 15197 20,408                

Subtotal Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 92,247                

Education Stabilization Funds:

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund 84.425D 15536 49,546                

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief II (ESSER II) Fund 84.425D 15547 850,664              

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief III (ESSER III) Fund 84.425D 15559 205,083              

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief III (ESSER III) Fund: Learning Loss 84.425D 10155 138,573              

Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant ESSER II State Reserve 84.425D 15618 141,109              

Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant GEER II 84.425C 15619 38,958                

Subtotal Education Stabilization Funds 1,423,933           

Title III, English Learner Student Program 84.365 14346 15,256                

Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 84.010 14329 323,654              

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants 84.367 14341 26,828                

Indian Education 84.060 10011 13,226                

Total U.S. Department of Education 9,198,339           

U.S. Department of Defense:

Direct Programs:

Community lnvestment 12.600 N/A 203,218              

Total U.S. Department of Defense 203,218              

Total Federal Expenditures 10,167,090$        

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 58 

Second

Period Annual

Report Report

Regular ADA

Transitional Kindergarten through third 777.79                 775.86                 

Fourth through Sixth 522.62                 519.57                 

Seventh and Eighth 288.34                 287.07                 

Total Regular ADA 1,588.75               1,582.50               

Extended Year Special Education - Nonpublic

Seventh and Eighth 0.52                     0.52                     

Total Extended Year Special Education - Nonpublic 0.52                     0.52                     

ADA Totals 1,589.27               1,583.02                
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 59 

2022-23

Minutes Actual Traditional Multitrack

Grade Level Requirement Minutes Calendar Calendar Status

Kindergarten 36,000 52,930 180 N/A Complied

Grade 1 50,400 52,930 180 N/A Complied

Grade 2 50,400 52,930 180 N/A Complied

Grade 3 50,400 55,015 180 N/A Complied

Grade 4 54,000 55,015 180 N/A Complied

Grade 5 54,000 55,015 180 N/A Complied

Grade 6 54,000 60,128 180 N/A Complied

Grade 7 54,000 60,128 180 N/A Complied

Grade 8 54,000 60,128 180 N/A Complied

Number of Days

 
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 60 

General Fund

Cafeteria Special 

Revenue Fund

Deferred 

Maintenance Fund

June 30, 2023 annual financial and budget report

fund balance 26,001,107$          624,385$              1,491,192$            

Adjustments and reclassifications

Increase (decrease) in total fund balance

Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) 719,156                -                          -                          

Fair value adjustment - cash in county treasury (991,617)               (10,770)                 (54,171)                 

Net adjustments and reclassifications (272,461)               (10,770)                 (54,171)                 

June 30, 2023 audited financial statements 

fund balance 25,728,646$          613,615$              1,437,021$            

Capital Facilities 

Fund

County School 

Facilities Fund

Special Reserve 

for Capital Outlay 

Projects Fund

June 30, 2023 annual financial and budget report

fund balance 37,145$                866,003$              86,249$                

Adjustments and reclassifications

Increase (decrease) in total fund balance

Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) -                          -                          -                          

Accounts payable/expense accrual -                          -                          -                          

Accounts receivable/revenue accrual -                          -                          -                          

Allocation of net pension liability -                          -                          -                          

Fair value adjustment - cash in county treasury -                          (31,858)                 -                          

Net adjustments and reclassifications -                          (31,858)                 -                          

June 30, 2023 audited financial statements 

fund balance 37,145$                834,145$              86,249$                



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 61 

2024 (Budget) 2023 2022 2021

General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 37,326,544$          37,985,755           37,063,120           29,850,594           

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 38,420,277           32,918,595           30,999,323           27,761,939           

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,093,733)            5,067,160             6,063,797             2,088,655             

Ending Fund Balance 24,634,913$          25,728,646$          20,661,486$          14,597,689$          

Available Reserves* 14,600,781$          14,310,657$          13,642,750$          9,541,234$           

Available Reserves as a 

Percentage of Outgo 38.0% 43.5% 44.0% 34.4%

Long-term Debt 28,818,738$          28,884,176$          19,393,535$          32,856,403$          

Average Daily

Attendance at P-2 1,696                   1,589                   1,598                   1,810                   

** General Fund amounts include activity related to the consolidation of the Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund for 

Postemployment Benefits as required by GASB Statement No. 54.

The General Fund balance has increased by $12,122,574 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2023-2024 budget projects a 

decrease of $1,093,733, or 4.09%. For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 3 percent of 

total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating surpluses in the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating deficit during the 

2023-2024 fiscal year. Total long-term liabilities have increased by $3,972,227 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 221 over the past two years. An increase of 107 ADA is anticipated during fiscal 

year 2023-2024.

* Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and all funds reserved for economic uncertainty contained within 

the General Fund.

 
 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

See accompanying note to the supplementary information. 62 

No charter schools are chartered by Central Union School District. 

 

Included in

Charter School Number Status Audit Report

None N/A N/A N/A  
 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTE TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 63 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

 

Local Education Agency Organization Structure 

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the 

governing board, and members of the administration. 

 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the Federal grant activity of the District 

and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in 

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some 

amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the 

financial statements. 

 

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate. 

 

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance 

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The 

purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of 

state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students 

at various grade levels and in different programs. 

 

Schedule of Instructional Time 

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the 

District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended 

June 30, 2023, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2023, the 

District had met its target funding. 

 

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual 

Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements. 

 

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget 

information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going 

concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 

Schedule of Charter Schools 

This schedule lists all Charter Schools chartered by the District and displays information for each Charter School 

on whether or not the Charter School is included in the District audit.



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 
 

 

 

 



 

64 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

 

 

Board of Trustees  

Central Union School District  

Lemoore, California  

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 

and the aggregate remaining fund information of Central Union School District, as of and for the year ended June 

30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Central Union School 

District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2023.  

 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Central Union School District’s 

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Central Union School District’s internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Central Union School District’s internal control.  

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 

to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 

we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 65 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Central Union School District's financial statements are 

free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 

statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 

and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Purpose of This Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 

the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California  

December 14, 2023 

 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 66 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 

 

Board of Trustees  

Central Union School District  

Lemoore, California  

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program  

We have audited Central Union School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 

in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Central Union School 

District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Central Union School District's major federal 

programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs.  

 

In our opinion, Central Union School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 

for the year ended June 30, 2023.  

 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program  

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 

by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.  

 

We are required to be independent of Central Union School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 

in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 

program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Central Union School District’s compliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above.  

 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance  

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 

statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Central Union School 

District’s federal programs. 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 67 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 

requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Central Union 

School District’s compliance based on our audit 

 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 

always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting 

from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 

requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 

aggregate it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Central 

Union School District’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 

evidence regarding Central Union School District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred 

to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Central Union School District’s internal control over compliance relevant to 

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 

report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Central Union School District’s internal control over 

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 

over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program on a 

timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 

type of compliance requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 

basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program that is less severe 

than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 

charged with governance. 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 68 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 

internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 

over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 

over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 

significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.  

 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California  

December 14, 2023 

 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 69 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report on State Compliance 

 

 

Board of Trustees  

Central Union School District  

Lemoore, California  

 

Report on State Compliance 

Opinion on State Compliance 

We have audited Central Union School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 

described in the 2022-23 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 

Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810, that could have a direct and 

material effect on each of Central Union School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2023, as identified below. 

 

In our opinion, Central Union School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the table below for the 

year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

Basis for Opinion on Each Applicable State Program  

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 2022-23 

Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 

5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 (the Audit Guide). Our responsibilities under those 

standards and the Audit Guide are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

Compliance section of our report.  

 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 

accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 

applicable state program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of The District’s compliance 

with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s 

state programs. 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 70 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 

requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on The District’s 

compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 

and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when 

it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if 

there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 

reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of each 

applicable state program as a whole.  

 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, 

and the Audit Guide, we: 

 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 

evidence regarding The District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over state compliance relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 

internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 

opinion is expressed.  

• Select and test transactions and records to determine the District’s compliance with the state laws and 

regulations applicable to the following programs. 

PROGRAM NAME

PROCEDURES 

PERFORMED

Local Education Agencies Other than Charter Schools:

A. Attendance Yes

B. Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes

C. Kindergarten Continuance Yes

D. Independent Study Not applicable

E. Continuation Education Not applicable

F. Instructional Time Yes

G. Instructional Materials Yes

H. Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes

I. Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes

J. Early Retirement Incentive Not applicable

K. Gann Limit Calculation Yes

L. School Accountability Report Card Yes

M. Juvenile Court Schools Not applicable

N. Middle or Early College High Schools Not applicable

O. K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes

P. Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes

Q. Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not applicable

R. Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes

S. District of Choice Not applicable

TT. Home to School Transportation Reimbursement Yes

UU. Independent Study Certification for ADA Loss Mitigation Not applicable  

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 71 

PROGRAM NAME

PROCEDURES 

PERFORMED

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:

T. California Clean Energy Jobs Act Not applicable

U. After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not applicable

V. Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes

W. Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes

X. Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

Y. Independent Study-Course Based Not applicable

Z. Immunizations Yes

AZ. Educator Effectiveness Yes

BZ. Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes

CZ. Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Yes

EZ. Transitional Kindergarten Yes

Charter Schools:

AA. Attendance Not applicable

BB. Mode of Instruction Not applicable

CC. Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Not applicable

DD. Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Not applicable

EE. Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based Not applicable

FF. Charter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable  
 

Areas marked as not applicable were not operated by the District. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control 

over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

 

Other Matters  

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be reported in 

accordance with the Audit Guide and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs as item 2023-001. Our opinion on each applicable state program is not modified with respect to 

this matter.  

 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s response to 

the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs. The District’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit 

of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 72 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 

does not allow management or employees, the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 

is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in 

internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in 

internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 

over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 

over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 

significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. The purpose of this report on internal control over 

compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of 

that testing based on the 2022-23 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 

Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California  

December 14, 2023 

 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

73 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Is a going concern emphasis-of-matter paragraph included in the auditors' report? No

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major program:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance

with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program of Cluster

84.041 Title VI Federal Impact Aid
10.553, 10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 750,000$   

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

STATE AWARDS

Internal control over state programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 

74 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB3627 FINDING TYPES

20000 Inventory of Equipment

30000 Internal Control

60000 Miscellaneous  
 

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 

75 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB3627 FINDING TYPES

50000 Federal Compliance  
 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 

76 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB3627 FINDING TYPES

10000 Attendance

40000 State Compliance

42000 Charter School Facilities Program

43000 Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction

60000 Miscellaneous

61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries

62000 Local Control Accountability Plan

70000 Instructional Materials

71000 Teacher Missassignments

72000 School Accountability Report Card  
 

FINDING #2023-001 CLASSROOM TEACHER SALARIES (61000) 

 

Criteria or Specific Requirements  

Education Code Section 41372. An elementary school district shall expend 60 percent of the District's total 

educational expenses for the current year on payment of salaries for classroom teachers. The District can be 

granted an exemption from the County Office of Education if the percentage is not met, in accordance with 

Education Code Section 41372.  

 

Condition  

While reviewing the Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation report (Form CEA), we noted 

that the District did not meet the required minimum classroom compensation percentage for an elementary school 

district. The District's current expense of education for the year was $30,777,106. The District received an 

exemption from the Kings County Office of Education in October 2023.  

 

Effect 

The District may have apportionments equal to the deficiency in expenditures withheld from it by the County 

Superintendent of Schools. 

 

Cause 

The District did not expend the minimum required amount of compensation for classroom teachers.  

 

Questioned Cost  

The deficiency in percentage expended when calculated is approximately $597,076.  

 

Recommendation  

The District must ensure that the total compensation expended on classroom teacher salaries during the fiscal 

year is at least 60 percent of the District's total cost of education, and if not met, the District should continue to 

receive an exemption from the County Office of Education.  



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 

77 

FINDING #2023-001 CLASSROOM TEACHER SALARIES (61000) 

 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions  

The District agrees with this finding. The District was granted the Exemption from the Required Expenditures for 

Classroom Teachers' Salaries by the Kings County Office of Education In October 2023. The District is unable to 

meet the 60% requirement, as the Local Control Accountability Plan requires us to provide services and safe 

facilities to further the students' educational success. The District meets the exemption requirement by proving its 

payment of classroom teacher salaries is in excess of those paid by other comparable school districts.  

 

Given that the amount of gap to meet the required 60% is so small and significant salary increases are anticipated, 

the District anticipates meeting the 60% requirement in the following year. 

 

 

 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

78 

The were no findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

 

 

 



COUNTY OF KINGS 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
ERIK URENA, CPA• DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
1400 W. LACEY BL VD • HANFORD, CA 93230 

ACCOUNTING DIVISION 
(559) 852-2455 • FAX: (559) 587-9935 

TAX COLLECTOR • TREASURER DIVISION 
TAX: (559) 852-2479 • TREASURER (559) 852-2477 

FAX: (559) 582-1236 

DATE: December 13, 2023 

a� TO: Kings County School Districts 

FROM: Tammy Phelps, Assistant Director of Finance -Treasury 

SUBJECT: 2024 Director of Finance's Investment Policy 

I am sending a copy of the 2024 Investment Policy. The Policy was reviewed 
and approved by the County Treasury Oversight Committee on November 6, 
2023, and the Board of Supervisors on December 5, 2023. Also included is a 
sample district resolution approving the Statement of Investment Policy and 
delegating investment authority to the Kings County Director of Finance. 
Annually, your District Board must act on the resolution. For your convenience, 
the Office of Education is distributing these documents electronically via email. 
Please return approved resolutions to the Office of Education. 

The 2023 Local Agency Investment Guidelines incorporates the following California statutory changes: 
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646. 

Chapter 427, Statutes of2022 (SB 1489), the Local Government Omnibus Act, amended Government Code 
sections related to the investment of surplus funds by county treasurers. This bill amended Government 
Code Section 53601 to clarify that a public agency investment's term or remaining maturity is to be 
measured from the settlement date to final maturity. In addition, this code section was amended to prohibit 
the purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days from the time of investment. A 
provision of this bill also amended 53646(b)(l) to increase the timeline that the treasurer or chief fiscal 
officer has for presenting a quarterly report to the chief executive officer, the internal auditor, and the 
legislative body of the local agency by 15 days, from 30- to 45 days following the end of the quarter. 

The changes to the 2024 Director of Finance's Statement oflnvestment Policy are as 

follows: 

1. Section VII, B. RESTRJCTIONS ON AUTHROIZED INVESTMENTS - add

"No funds shall be invested in securities with a forward settlement date exceeding

45 days from the time of investment."

2. Section VIII, B. MAXIMUM MATURJTIES - change "No investment shall be

made in any security .. , which at the time of investment settlement has a term

remaining to maturity in excess of five years ...



3. Section IX, A. METHODS-change "The report will be provided within W 45
days following the end of the quarter covered by the report ... "

4. SCHEDULE 1 -STATEMENT OF AUTHORIZED FIRMS, B. -delete
"CalTRUST"

5. Schedule 2 -INVESTMENT PARAMETERS-Corporate Notes-change "Max
$-1-.§. 50mm any one name"

6. Schedule 2 -INVESTMENT PARAMETERS -add "California Asset
Management Program-CAMP, 15% Max., Max. Transactions allowed by
CAMP Administration, overnight liquidity, NIA"

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 852-2462. 

tphelps
Highlight

tphelps
Highlight

tphelps
Highlight



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #B-01-08-2024

BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF

The Kings County Director of Finance State of Investment Policy
and Delegating Investment Authority to the Kings County Director of Finance

under California Government Code Section §53607, 53646, and 53684

WHEREAS, under Government Code section 53646, the Kings County Director of Finance
("Treasurer") may render an annual statement of investment policy to the Kings County
Board of Supervisors and to the governing board of any local agency which has funds on
deposit in the Kings County Treasury; and

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2023 the Kings County Board of Supervisors approved the
Director of Finance’s Statement of Investment Policy dated January 1, 2024 ("Investment
Policy"); and

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy has been submitted to the District Board of Trustees
("District Board") for approval under Government Code section 53646; and

WHEREAS, under Government Code section 53646, the Treasurer may render a quarterly
report ("Quarterly Report") to each local agency which has funds on deposit in the County
Treasury and for which the Treasurer has made investments; and

WHEREAS, the Central Union School District ("District") has funds on deposit with the
Kings County Director of Finance ("Treasurer"); and

WHEREAS, when keeping, holding, depositing and investing District funds on the District's
behalf, the Treasurer acts as the "ex-officio" treasurer of the District; and

Investment Policy and Delegation of Authority Resolution #B-01-08-2024 (1)



WHEREAS, the District Board has authority under Government Code sections 53607 and
53684 to delegate authority to the Treasurer to deposit and invest District funds under the
provisions of Government Code sections 53601 and 53635; and

WHEREAS, the District Board now wishes to approve the Director of Finance's Statement
of Investment Policy and to delegate investment authority to the Kings County Director of
Finance ("Treasurer") for the ensuing twelve-month period.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 53646, the District Board hereby approves the
Investment Policy.

2. Pursuant to Government Code section 53646, the District Board acknowledges and
approves the procedures utilized by the Treasurer in rendering and submitting each
Quarterly Report, under the provisions of which the Treasurer shall render each such report.
Under the provisions of Government Code section 53607, the Treasurer shall prepare a
monthly report and maintain it on file in his/her office for review and inspection by the District
Board, staff and designated agents.

3. Pursuant to Government Code sections 53607 and 53684, and subject to the
requirements of Government Code sections 53601 and 53635, the District Board hereby
delegates to the Kings County Director of Finance (“Treasurer”) the discretionary authority
to deposit, invest or reinvest the funds of the District in the County Treasury commencing on
the date of approval of this resolution and continuing for the ensuing twelve months.
Without limiting his discretion in any way, the Treasurer is hereby expressly authorized to
invest such District funds in the Treasurer's Pooled Investment Portfolio.

4. The District Board hereby delegates to the Treasurer the discretionary authority to
determine which District funds on deposit in the Kings County Treasury are monies which
are sinking funds or money not required for immediate use within the meaning of
Government Code section 53601 and which monies are excess funds within the meaning of
Government Code section 53684.

5. The Treasurer shall assume full responsibility for such deposit and investment
transactions until such time as the District Board revokes this delegation of authority or until
the date which is twelve months from the date of approval of this resolution, unless renewed
on or before that date by the District Board.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of
the Central Union Elementary School District on this 8th day of January 2024, by the
following vote:

Investment Policy and Delegation of Authority Resolution #B-01-08-2024 (2)



AYE NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Dale Davidson, Trustee Area 1

Jeffrey Gilcrease, Trustee Area 2

Sarah Strait, Trustee Area 3

VACANT, Trustee Area 4

Ceil Howe, III, Trustee Area 5

I, Sarah Strait, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Central Union School District, do
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed and
adopted by the Board of Trustees at its meeting held on January 8, 2024.

______________________
Sarah Strait, Clerk
Board of Trustees
Central Union School District
Kings County, California

Investment Policy and Delegation of Authority Resolution #B-01-08-2024 (3)





















































Thomas Addington
Superintendent

15783 18th Avenue
Lemoore, CA 93245

Telephone (559) 924-3405
Fax (559) 924-1153

Board Members
Dale Davidson
Jeffrey Gilcrease
Ceil Howe, III
Sarah Strait

To: Central Union School Board of Trustees

From: Tom Addington, Superintendent

Date: January 8, 2024

For Board Meeting

x Action (Consent or New Business)

Information

Item: Approve drafts of annual School Accountability Report Cards (SARC).

Rationale/Purpose:

Since November 1988, state law has required that schools receiving state funding to prepare and distribute

a SARC. A similar requirement is also contained in the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act

(ESEA). The purpose of the report card is to provide information about each school.

Although there is great variation in the design of school report cards, they generally begin with a profile

that provides background information about the school and its students. The profile usually summarizes the

school's mission, goals, and accomplishments. State law requires that the SARC contain all of the following:

● Demographic data

● School safety and climate for learning information

● Academic data

● School completion rates

● Class sizes

● Teacher and staff information

● Curriculum and instruction descriptions

● Fiscal and expenditure data

The District utilizes Document Tracking Services (DTS) as our ‘creator’ of the annual SARC. DTS

streamlines the way template-based SARC documents. Some of the information in the SARC is

downloaded by DTS from the California Department of Education, while other sections require site and

district input. The following documents are in ‘draft’ format, as the District is still awaiting additional data

to be released from the CDE. Once this data is released the SARC Form will incorporate the additional

data, and the full version the SARC will be published by the February 1st timeline.

Fiscal Impact:

None noted.

Recommendation:

Approve drafts of the SARCs with finalization forthcoming following CDE release and incorporation of

additional state data.



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

Admiral Akers School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 
General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
SARC Overview 

 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 
2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Admiral Akers School         

Street Constellation Ave.         

City, State, Zip N.A.S. Lemoore, CA 93245         

Phone Number (559) 998-5707         

Principal Heiko Sweeney         

Email Address hsweeney@central.k12.ca.us         

School Website http://akers.central.k12.ca.us 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 16 63883 6010292         

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Central Union Elementary School District         

Phone Number (559) 924-3405         

Superintendent  Thomas Addington         

Email Address taddingt@central.k12.ca.us         

District Website www.central.k12.ca.us/district        

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
The purpose of the School Accountability Report Card is to provide parents with information about Akers School’s instructional 
programs, academic achievement, materials and facilities, and staff. 
 
Parents and community play a very important role in our school. Understanding our educational program, student achievement, 
and curriculum development can assist both our school and the community in ongoing program improvement. 
 
Akers School has a history of successful academic achievement and we will continue to strive to be the best. We have made a 
commitment to provide the best educational program possible for our students. The excellent quality of our program is a 
reflection of our highly committed staff. We are dedicated to ensuring that our school provides a welcoming, challenging 
environment where students are actively involved in learning academics, as well as, positive values. Our teachers, students, 
parents, staff, and community members are all an integral part of our school’s success and by continuing to work together our 
students will be challenged to reach their maximum potential. 
 
Mission Statement 
The faculty and staff at Akers School believe that education is a cooperative effort among home, school, and community. Our 
goal is to prepare students to become responsible citizens and productive members of society. We believe all children are 
capable of learning. Akers children will be provided with an environment that is safe, caring, friendly, and educationally 
inspiring. Our school climate will encourage openness, trust, self-esteem, self-motivation, respect for self and respect for 
others. It will help children achieve social-emotional, academic, and physical excellence and allow all students the opportunity 
to succeed. 
 
School Profile 
Admiral Akers School is nestled within the Lemoore Naval Air Station and was built in 1963 to service the children of military 
families. The school acknowledges the importance of a student’s academic success and appreciates the importance of a 
student’s social and mental well-being. Teachers, administrators, and staff are all dedicated to providing a warm and 
challenging learning experience for the children. The diversified population enables the school to embrace many different 
cultures and strive to create an environment that embraces all. Consistent with Central Union School District’s philosophies, 
“while some would define having a highly diverse population as an obstacle, Akers School thrives on this multiplicity and 
encourages each student’s unique abilities.”  Akers School is designated as a 2023 California Purple Star School for providing 

http://akers.central.k12.ca.us/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
outstanding support to military-connected students and their families. 
-------- 

 
About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 67        
Grade 1 73        
Grade 2 68        
Grade 3 66        
Grade 4 68        
Grade 5 55        
Grade 6 108        
Grade 7 92        
Grade 8 94        
Total Enrollment 691        

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Female 52.1%        
Male 47.9%        
American Indian or Alaska Native  0.9%        
Asian  0.9%        
Black or African American  11.1%        
Filipino  4.2%        
Hispanic or Latino 28.4%        
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.1%        
Two or More Races  16.2%        
White  38.2%        
English Learners 2.3%        
Foster Youth 0.3%        
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 27.9%        
Students with Disabilities 11%        

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 
A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

29.00 83.11 79.00 89.87 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

1.00 2.86 1.00 1.14 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        1.00 2.86 1.90 2.26 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         3.90 11.17 4.90 5.58 18854.30 6.86 
Total Teaching Positions         34.90 100.00 87.90 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

31.40 87.50 84.10 89.86 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 1.00 2.78 4.00 4.27 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

2.10 6.00 2.10 2.31 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        1.00 2.78 1.00 1.07 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         0.30 0.92 2.30 2.49 15831.90 5.67 
Total Teaching Positions         35.90 100.00 93.60 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 
Misassignments           1.00 2.10 
Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 1.00 2.10 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 1.00 
Local Assignment Options 1.00 0.00 
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 1.00 1.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 
Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

6.9 6.8 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

The state aligns textbooks, frameworks, and instructional materials to meet the California State Standards. Instructional 
materials for grades K-8 are selected from the state’s most recent list of standards-based materials and adopted by the State 
Board of Education. The District follows the State Board of Education’s adoption cycle for core content materials. District 
textbook review and adoption activities occur the year following the state’s adoption.  The District's Curriculum Selection 
Committee, comprised of teacher representatives, narrow the potential selections, followed by review and recommendation 
from all teaching staff.   All textbooks are adopted from the most recent state-approved list. All textbooks are consistent with the 
content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks, adopted by the SBE. Every student has access to their own textbooks and 
instructional materials. 
 
On September 11, 2023, the Central Union School District Board of Trustees held a public hearing to certify the extent to which 
textbooks and instructional materials have been provided to students, including English Learners, in the District. The Board of 
Trustees adopted Resolution #O-09-11-2023 which certifies, as required by Education Code section 60119, that (1) each pupil 
has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, (2) sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to each student, including English Learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum. 
 
        

Year and month in which the data were collected Sept 2023 

 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 
Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 
Reading/Language Arts Wonders - Macmillan/McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2016 

Collections - Houghton Mifflin (6th-8th) - 2016 
        

Yes 0 

Mathematics My Math - McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2014 
Course 1, 2, & 3 - McGraw Hill (6th - 8th) 
        

Yes 0 

Science Inspire Science- McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2020 
Amplify Science - UC Berkeley-Lawrence Hall of Science 
(6th-8th) - 2020 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science My World - Pearson (TK-5th) - 2018 
World History - National Geographic (6th-7th) - 2018 
US History - National Geographic (8th) - 2018 
        

Yes 0 

Health Embedded in science curriculum          

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
School Facilities 
Akers School provides a safe, clean environment for learning through proper facilities maintenance and campus supervision. 
Ongoing maintenance ensures school facilities are kept safe and in good working condition and continue to provide adequate 
space for students and staff. 
 
Campus Maintenance Site custodial staff and the District’s maintenance department work together to ensure playgrounds, 
classrooms, and campus grounds are well-maintained and kept very clean, safe and functioning for students, staff, visitors and 
community organizations that frequently use the campus facilities. One full-time day custodian and a team of evening 
custodians are assigned to Akers School and work closely with the principal for routine maintenance, daily custodial duties, and 
special events.  The principal and day custodian communicate daily regarding school facilities and maintenance issues. 
 
The custodian inspects facilities every day for safety hazards or other conditions that need attention prior to students and staff 
entering school grounds. During the school day, all staff members survey grounds as a part of their daily routines to keep 
facilities safe and secure. The custodian performs routine room-by-room inspections to identify conditions that require 
correction. Any graffiti or signs of vandalism are removed prior to students 
 
        

Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2023 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

X    

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    

Electrical X    

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X    

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X    

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X    

 
Overall Facility Rate 
Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  

 
B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

56  47  47  

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

48  40  33  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

44.79  30.59  29.47  

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level Component 1: 
Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100 100 100 100 100 

Grade 7 97.8 98.9 98.9 100 100 

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
At Akers School, parents are encouraged to become active members of the school’s learning community and assist in its goal 
to develop independent lifelong learners.  Parents are encouraged to participate in Leadership opportunities such as School 
Site Council, English Learner Advisory Council, District Advisory Council, District English Learner Advisory Council, and Parent 
Club. In addition there are several avenues for parents to provide site input. These include, but are not limited too, volunteering, 
school climate surveys, community collaboration opportunities, military connected partnerships, and parent education nights. 
 
Additional parental involvement information can be found in the parent involvement plan listed on the Akers school website. 
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 
2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 
All Students             

Female             

Male             

American Indian or Alaska Native             

Asian             

Black or African American              

Filipino             

Hispanic or Latino             

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander             

Two or More Races             

White             

English Learners             

Foster Youth             

Homeless             

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged             

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services             

Students with Disabilities              

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 
C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety 

 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.24 2.55  0.30 3.50  0.20 3.17  
Expulsions 0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00 0.07  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 
2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students           
Female           
Male           
Non-Binary           
American Indian or Alaska Native           
Asian           
Black or African American            
Filipino           
Hispanic or Latino           
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander   
Two or More Races           
White           
English Learners           
Foster Youth           
Homeless           
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged           
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services           
Students with Disabilities            

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
The Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan was developed for Central School in collaboration with local agencies and District 
administration to fulfill Senate Bill 187 requirements. Components of this plan include child abuse reporting procedures, teacher 
notification of dangerous pupil procedures, disaster response procedures, procedures for safe arrival and department from 
school, sexual harassment policy, dress code policy, and bully prevention policy. The most current school site safety plan was 
reviewed, updated, and shared with school staff in August, 2023 at staff, instructional aides and plant meetings. Components of 
the safety plan are regularly reviewed at weekly plant meetings, instructional aide meetings, faculty meetings, and School Site 
Council meetings. An updated copy of the school site safety plan is available to the public at the Central Union School District 
office and the school site. In addition, exercises or drills (i.e.monthly fire drills, lockdown/intruder on campus drills, earthquake 
drills, medical lockdown, missing child protocols, etc.) are also reviewed and held during the school year. 
 
-------- 

 
D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 
D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 

 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        20 3 1  
1        19 4   
2        19 1 3  
3        17 1 2  
4        24  3  
5        26  2  
6        32 1 24 1 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average 
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        23  4  
1        18 4   
2        17 4   
3        24  3  
4        30  7  
5        21 1 12  
6        25 5 20 1 

 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  
Psychologist  
Social Worker  
Nurse        
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  
Other        

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site $14138 $669 $13469 $97281 
District N/A N/A $14445 $97605 
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -7.0 -0.3 
State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 55.6 9.7 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
The Central Union School District Student Conduct Code, which is sent home with each student at the beginning of the school 
year, outlines expected student behavior and the consequences for inappropriate behavior. Akers School’s code of conduct 
and school rules are in alignment with District policies and outlined in the student handbook. During the first week of school, 
behavior expectations and discipline policies are verbally shared with students at schoolwide assemblies. Teachers review 
individual classroom rules and expectations with students during the first few days of school. Throughout the year, school rules 
and policies are communicated as necessary on the school’s website, in the school’s monthly newsletter, and in personal 
emails to parents/guardians of students. The Student Conduct Code and student handbook are available on the District’s 
website.  
 
Peer mediators, Ambassadors for New Students, Safe School personnel, the sheriff, and school psychologist work in close 
collaboration with teaching staff and parents as an early intervention strategy in minimizing poor behavior patterns. A 
Districtwide Safe School campaign encourages students to notify school or District personnel of any instances of bullying, 
harassment, discrimination, vandalism, drug abuse, and other destructive behaviors. Students and parents may submit 
anonymous letters/ notifications through the District’s home page at www.central.k12.ca.us.  
 
Extracurricular & Enrichment Activities - Students are encouraged to participate in the school’s additional academic and 
extracurricular activities. Extracurricular activities, clubs, and enrichment programs include: 

• Accelerated Reader Program 
• Akers Ambassadors 
• Anchored for Life 
• Band 
• California Junior Scholastic Federation 
• Chess Team 
• College Awareness Night (College professors, professional athletes & guest speakers), 7th graders go to UC 

Berkley for field trip. 
• Cross-age Peer Tutoring 
• Exhibitions 
• Jazz Bands (Gr. 6-8) - 6 Time State Champions 
• Peer Academic Coaches (Gr. 6-8) 
• Peer Mediation (student-to-student) 
• Polar Express Night 
• Poster Contests 
• Reading Team 
• SAS (Strategies for Academic Success) 
• School Dances (Gr. 4-8) 
• Spring Fine Arts Festival 
• Student Council 
• Young Master’s Art Contest (Gr. K-8) 

 
 
The school’s athletic programs promote individual and team-oriented achievement through school-sponsored teams and 
intramural sports programs where teams compete against other schools in their league/area. 

• Basketball (Gr. 6-8) 
• Cross Country (Gr. 3-8) 
• Flag Football (Gr. 6-8) 
• Girls’ Volleyball (Gr. 6-8) 
• Golf (Gr. 6-8) 
• Track (Gr. 3-8) 

 
 
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 34.43% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.52% 5.62% 

Professional Development 
Professional Development 

Central Union School District combines efforts to provide training and curriculum development based on the California 
Standards which are aligned to the content of the curriculum frameworks for grades transitional kindergarten through eight. 
Teachers within the District align classroom curriculum to ensure that all students either meet or exceed state proficiency 
levels.  

CUSD Vision focuses on “empowering every student to excel to their highest potential.” We seek “to be an exemplary learning 
community,” as stated in our mission. With this in mind, the District’s Professional Development Plan continues to focus on the 
Professional Learning Communities (PLC). Grade Level Teams have worked to identify Essential Standards Districtwide to 
ensure that all students are achieving.  

The Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) framework is leveraged to focus on the academic, social-Emotional and behavioral 
needs of students. District counselors and psychologists continue to provide certificated staff with Best Practices for Building 
Relationships including strategies to address any barriers. Incorporating social emotional learning (SEL) strategies from Dr. 
Hood, Professional Development (PD) provided during the 2021-2022 school year.  

Central Union School District Professional Learning focused on literacy and developing skilled readers.  

Dr. Nancy Akhavan and her team provided various PD opportunities for all teachers, and all administrators. 

The PD focused on improving literacy achievement for all students. Instructional strategies supporting a comprehensive 
reading program leveraging Scarborough’s Reading Rope and the LIT Six: Phonemic Awareness and Word Work, Writing, 
Language, Read Aloud, Shared Reading, Small group instruction and independent reading, with oral language development at 
the center of all these six areas. Teachers worked on the Lit Six and literacy. Elementary focused on Phonemic Awareness, 
Phonics and Small Group Instruction for Differentiation to ensure students grow in reading ability. Middle school worked on 
effective literacy strategies in ELA and adding literacy strategies to content area work. Math teachers worked on aligning math 
teaching to focused lessons where students worked on mathematical practices.  
Each grade span K-2, 3-5 and 6-8, received tailored PD in teaching to the standards, while differentiating instruction. PD with 
admin discussed schedules and calibrated expectations. 
District-Wide: every site conducted academic classroom walkthroughs, and committed to “look fors” supporting ongoing 
continuous improvement. 

K-2, 3-5, and special education teachers learned about and implemented Lit Six pedagogy in relation to Scarborough's
Reading Rope, using McGraw-Hill Wonders, Board adopted curriculum.
Teachers in grades 6-8 Math reviewed Math strategies, how to teach project based learning in mathematics.

$58,024
$90,901

$114,379
$136,622

N/A
N/A

$204,385

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

Professional Development 

During the non-student day, the AM session focused on Data Driven PLC work using the DuFours rubric to help teachers 
provide student support based on data, while the PM session focused on Taking Thinking Maps to enhance writing skills.  
K-2 teachers committed to Coaching Support in data driven small group instruction.  
 
 
English Language Development  
A KCOE Consultant provided onsite ELD coaching and training. Professional Learning was differentiated based on need and 
focused on both Designated and Integrated ELD.  
 
Reading Mastery (K-2) 
Instructional Aides and Classroom Teachers were provided training in implementation of the Reading Mastery program. This 
professional learning focused on the design, delivery, and documentation of student progress and mastery within Reading 
Mastery. Participants actively engage in practicing sounds, signals, and scripts. 
 
New Teachers 
New Teachers participated in a New Teacher Kick Off professional development days. The days included clarity about key 
initiatives in the District, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Professional Learning Communities (PLC). The Cycle of 
Continuous Improvement (CCI) was provided. Teachers received professional learning on curriculum and Assessments, 
Overviews of Thinking Maps and Step Up to Writing. Technology professional learning included Instructional Apps, 
PowerSchool, Illuminate, and more. The days wrapped up with training on Special Education processes and Number Talks. 
 
iReady  
Central Union School District utilizes iReady as the district-wide diagnostic tool to measure growth in English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. iReady is administered three times during the course of the school year in grades kindergarten through 
eighth grade. During the 2022-2023 school year, 4 diagnostic windows were held. All teachers received two sessions of 
professional learning with an iReady trainer.  
 
Student data is reviewed at the district level with community stakeholders as well as with site leadership. In turn, site leaders 
lead discussions at their schools with grade level teams to ensure students are receiving small group intervention and 
embedded time to work on their individual iReady paths during the school day.  
 
Newly credentialed and/or beginning teachers receive training on assessment, individualized support, integration of 
instructional technology, and advanced content from the California Teacher Induction Program which is the preferred pathway 
to a California Professional (Clear) Teaching Credential. The Teacher Induction Program is co-administered by the California 
Department of Education (CDE) and the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC). The Teacher Induction Task 
Force and State Leadership Team provide support and technical assistance to local Teacher Induction Program leaders. The 
Teacher Induction program provides standards-based, individualized advice and assistance that combines the application of 
theory learned in the preliminary teacher preparation program with mentor-based support and formative assessment feedback.  
 
As we plan for the future of our District, continuing to build our capacity in the PLC Process so we can ensure all students 
“excel to their highest potential” and a comprehensive MTSS for academics, social-emotional and behavioral will continue to 
be a primary focus. 
 
Sites also differentiate for staff based on the needs of their site, providing training through Staff Meetings, Instructional Aides 
Meetings and additional site professional development including such topics as: 

• Math Model & Coaching 
• English Language Development 
• Collaboration 
• Reading Mastery Training 
• Writing Across the Curriculum 
• Academic Walks 
• Tech Talks 

 
 
 
Site-based professional development activities are identified by the school leadership team based upon analysis of student 
performance data and parent survey results. Akers School’s certificated staff attend workshops and training events provided by 
the District, other school districts, county offices of education, and professional organizations. Subsequently, during weekly 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 21 Admiral Akers School 

Professional Development 

grade level collaboration time and common prep periods, teachers share knowledge and strategies acquired from district-
sponsored workshops and external resources. Teaching staff emphasized training and collaboration on the following: 

• Amplify Training (Science Curriculum) 
• Classroom Discipline Training 
• ExCEL (Explicit Direct Instruction) 
• Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) 

 
 
 
 
 
------- 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 21 18 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 22 Central Elementary School 

Central Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 22 Central Elementary School 

----

--- 
2023 School Accountability Report Card 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 22 Central Elementary School 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
SARC Overview 

 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 
2023-24 School Contact Information 
2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Central Elementary School         

Street 15783 18th Avenue         

City, State, Zip Lemoore, CA 93245         

Phone Number (559) 924-7797         

Principal Anne Gonzales         

Email Address agonzale@central.k12.ca.us         

School Website http://central.central.k12.ca.us 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 16-63883-6010300         

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/
http://central.central.k12.ca.us/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2023-24 District Contact Information 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Central Elementary School District         

Phone Number (559) 924-3405         

Superintendent  Thomas Addington         

Email Address taddingt@central.k12.ca.us         

District Website www.central.k12.ca.us/district        

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
The Central school staff believe in making learning a positive and rewarding experience in our children’s lives, both 
academically and in their social-emotional development. At Central, all staff are committed to creating a safe and supportive 
learning environment. Staff create this environment by modeling and sharing school wide expectations. Our motto: "The WOLF 
Way, Welcoming Opportunities for Learning and Friendships, emphasize safety, responsibility, and respectful behavior for all. 
 
The Central staff is child-centered focused and recognizes every student has individual needs. At Central, we explore and 
pursue multiple pathways for student engagement and enthusiasm for learning.  The use of technology and ease of access 
through equipment and applications, for example, helps our students participate in lessons that are interactive, collaborative, 
and assist in learning about the changing world around them.  As educators, we all strive to make school an enjoyable place 
and promote the important message of daily attendance to our students and families as being a vital key to student learning 
and achievement.  Central staff venture in fostering positive character and celebrate diversity and school pride amongst the 
student body. Most of all, the entire staff appreciate the wonderful ties to a community and Central family network that is 
exceptionally devoted and supportive of our students. 
 
At Central we believe that students achieve their full potential when there is partnership between the home and school. We 
understand that parents and the community expect us to provide a safe and clean learning environment, as well as a quality 
education. The Central staff believes that concerned and involved parents are the most important factor for developing 
academic success for our students. We make keeping parents informed of their child’s school progress throughout the year a 
major priority. If you would like further information on how to get involved in your child’s classroom or volunteer at Central, 
please call the school office at (559) 924-7797.   
 
Mission Statement  
Our mission at Central Union Elementary School is to provide a safe school environment, build positive character, celebrate 
diversity, and support academic excellence. Central School staff is committed to building and strengthening family and 
community partnerships for the purpose of student success and enabling students to function as productive and successful 
citizens in a changing society.  
 
School Profile  
Central School, located in Lemoore, takes pride in its diverse student population comprised of grades kindergarten through 
eight. Students are encouraged to meet the challenges of the present in order to succeed in the future. The cooperative efforts 
that are exemplified by the staff, students, parents, and community help to ensure the best possible learning environment for 
the students at Central School. Students are encouraged to reach their highest potential and present themselves in a positive 
manner.  
 
 
 
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 22 Central Elementary School 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 23        
Grade 1 25        
Grade 2 26        
Grade 3 36        
Grade 4 26        
Grade 5 29        
Grade 6 29        
Grade 7 31        
Grade 8 25        
Total Enrollment 250        

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Female 42.4%        
Male 57.6%        
American Indian or Alaska Native  25.6%        
Black or African American  0.4%        
Hispanic or Latino 60%        
Two or More Races  8%        
White  6%        
English Learners 9.2%        
Foster Youth 2.8%        
Homeless 0.4%        

Migrant 1.2%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 61.2%        
Students with Disabilities 11.6%        

 
A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 
A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

13.00 100.00 79.00 89.87 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 1.90 2.26 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         0.00 0.00 4.90 5.58 18854.30 6.86 
Total Teaching Positions         13.00 100.00 87.90 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

12.90 86.66 84.10 89.86 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 1.00 6.67 4.00 4.27 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 2.10 2.31 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 1.00 1.07 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         1.00 6.67 2.30 2.49 15831.90 5.67 
Total Teaching Positions         14.90 100.00 93.60 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 22 Central Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 
Misassignments           0.00 0.00 
Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 
Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 
Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

The state aligns textbooks, frameworks, and instructional materials to meet the California State Standards. Instructional 
materials for grades K-8 are selected from the state’s most recent list of standards-based materials and adopted by the State 
Board of Education. The District follows the State Board of Education’s adoption cycle for core content materials. District 
textbook review and adoption activities occur the year following the state’s adoption.  The District's Curriculum Selection 
Committee, comprised of teacher representatives, narrow the potential selections, followed by review and recommendation 
from all teaching staff.   All textbooks are adopted from the most recent state-approved list. All textbooks are consistent with the 
content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks, adopted by the SBE. Every student has access to their own textbooks and 
instructional materials. 
 
On September 11, 2023, the Central Union School District Board of Trustees held a public hearing to certify the extent to which 
textbooks and instructional materials have been provided to students, including English Learners, in the District. The Board of 
Trustees adopted Resolution #O-09-11-2023 which certifies, as required by Education Code section 60119, that (1) each pupil 
has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, (2) sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to each student, including English Learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum. 
        

Year and month in which the data were collected September 2023 

 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 
Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 
Reading/Language Arts Wonders - Macmillan/McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2016 

Collections - Houghton Mifflin (6th-8th) - 2016 
        

Yes 0 

Mathematics My Math - McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2014 
Course 1, 2, & 3 - McGraw Hill (6th - 8th) 
        

Yes 0 

Science Inspire Science- McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2020 
Amplify Science - UC Berkeley-Lawrence Hall of Science 
(6th-8th) - 2020 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science My World - Pearson (TK-5th) - 2018 
World History - National Geographic (6th-7th) - 2018 
US History - National Geographic (8th) - 2018 
        

Yes 0 

Health Embedded in science curriculum          

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 22 Central Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
Central School works closely with the District’s maintenance department for larger projects that may require third party 
contractors, routine facilities maintenance projects, special projects, and school inspections. The most recent facilities 
inspection at Central School was conducted during the month of August (2023).  Central School provides a safe, clean 
environment for learning through proper facilities maintenance and campus supervision. Ongoing maintenance ensures school 
facilities are kept safe and in good working condition and continue to provide adequate space for students and staff. 
 
Campus Maintenance Site custodial staff and the District’s maintenance department work together to ensure playgrounds, 
classrooms, and campus grounds are well-maintained and kept very clean, safe and functioning for students, staff, visitors and 
community organizations that frequently use the campus facilities. One full-time day custodian and a team of evening 
custodians are assigned to the school and work closely with the principal for routine maintenance, daily custodial duties, and 
special events. The evening team of custodians is responsible for daily cleaning of both Central School and Stratford School. 
The principal and day custodian communicate daily regarding school facilities and maintenance issues. 
 
The custodian inspects facilities every day for safety hazards or other conditions that need attention prior to students and staff 
entering school grounds. During the school day, all staff members survey grounds as a part of their daily routines to keep 
facilities safe and secure. The custodian performs routine room-by-room inspections to identify conditions that require 
correction. Any graffiti or signs of vandalism are removed prior to students 
 
        

Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2022 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

X    

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    

Electrical X    

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X    

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X    

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X    

 
Overall Facility Rate 
Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  

 
B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 22 Central Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

24  47  47  

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

15  40  33  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 22 Central Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

9.09  30.59  29.47  

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 22 Central Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level Component 1: 
Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 96.3 93 96.3 100 96.3 

Grade 7 96.6 100 100 100 100 

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
The parents of Central School students support their children, the school, and the community by helping their children at home 
with their school work, providing a caring environment, and by attending conferences, programs, and athletic/ academic events. 
In addition to these demands, parents and family members work hard at preparing our students for learning by ensuring 
students are at school on time and ready to learn. 
 
Parents are encouraged to participate in decision-making committees such as the School Site Council (SSC), District Advisory 
Council (DAC), District English Learner Advisory Council (DELAC), and Indian Education Committee (IEC). The Parent-
Teacher Club assists the overall instructional program by providing funds to support activities such as field trips, assemblies, 
uniforms, playground equipment, and other items that may benefit students experience beyond the classroom.  
 
School-to-home communication regarding school activities, special events, and student progress is achieved through multiple 
resources and is provided in both English and Spanish. Parent Square an internet-based telephone messaging system used to 
quickly forward important messages (in English and Spanish) from school staff to each student’s home. Flyers are occasionally 
distributed regarding special events or announcements.  
 
Progress reports for at-risk students in grades K-8 are sent via Parent Square and mailed to students’ homes mid-trimester. At 
the end of each trimester, report cards for grades 4-8 are also sent via Parent Square and mailed to students’ homes. Report 
cards for grades K-3 are sent home with students. All progress reports and final trimester report cards are sent to the Santa 
Rosa Rancheria Education Department for those students that are tracked through the program. Periodically when necessary, 
teachers may prepare informal progress reports on student performance for parent review.  
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 
2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 
All Students             

Female             

Male             

American Indian or Alaska Native             

Asian             

Black or African American              

Filipino             

Hispanic or Latino             

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander             

Two or More Races             

White             

English Learners             

Foster Youth             

Homeless             

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged             

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services             

Students with Disabilities              

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 
C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety 

 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 8.78  0.30 3.50  0.20 3.17  
Expulsions 0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00 0.07  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 
2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students           
Female           
Male           
Non-Binary           
American Indian or Alaska Native           
Asian           
Black or African American            
Filipino           
Hispanic or Latino           
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander   
Two or More Races           
White           
English Learners           
Foster Youth           
Homeless           
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged           
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services           
Students with Disabilities            

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
The Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan was developed for Central School in collaboration with local agencies and District 
administration to fulfill Senate Bill 187 requirements. Components of this plan include child abuse reporting procedures, teacher 
notification of dangerous pupil procedures, disaster response procedures, procedures for safe arrival and department from 
school, sexual harassment policy, dress code policy, and bully prevention policy. The most current school site safety plan was 
reviewed, updated, and shared with school staff at the beginning of school (August 14/15, 2023).  It has also been reviewed in 
instructional aides plant, staff and School Site Council meetings held throughout the school year. Components and activities 
related to drills/exercises of the safety plan are regularly reviewed at weekly plant meetings, instructional aide meetings and 
faculty meetings.  An updated copy of the school site safety plan is available to the public at the Central Union School District 
office and the school site.  The safety plan has also in regular review with the School Resource Officer and has been reviewed 
by the Kings County Fire Department - Fire Marshall November 2023.-------- 

 
D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 
D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 

 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        22  1  
1        24  1  
2        24  1  
3        17 2   
4        29  1  
5        20 2   
6        28  2  

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average 
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        20 1   
1        22  1  
2        15 1 1  
3        13 2   
4        14 5   
5        21 1 2  
6        12 5   

Other        8 2   

 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor  



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 22 Central Elementary School 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  
Psychologist  
Social Worker  
Nurse        
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  
Other        

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 16591 $ 1323 $ 15278 $87417 
District N/A N/A $13801 $97605 
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -200.0 -11.0 
State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -200.0 -1.0 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
In addition to general fund state funding, Central Union School District receives state and federal categorical funding for special 
programs. The District received federal, state, and local aid for the following categorical, special education, and support 
programs:  
 

• American Indian Early Childhood Education 
• California Clean Energy Jobs Act 
• Education Protection Account 
• Indian Education 
• Lottery: Instructional Materials 
• Medi-cal Billing Option 
• Other Federal Funds 
• Other Local: Locally Defined 
• Special Education 
• State Lottery 
• Teacher Recruitment/Incentives 
• Title I, II, III 

 
Throughout the year, students who achieve academic goals are recognized at trimester presentations. Each grade level 
determines the method to recognize and distribute awards. Awards include Student of the Month, A and B Honor Roll, 
Principal’s List, Perfect and Outstanding Attendance Awards, Character Counts, Service Learning and Accelerated Reader 
awards. At the end of the year, Attendance Awards, and Physical Fitness Awards are presented to qualifying students.  
 
Students are encouraged to participate in the school’s enrichment and extracurricular activities that promote positive attitudes 
and encourage achievement. Extracurricular and enrichment programs include: 

• ASES Extended Day Program (Gr. K-3) 
• Honor Trip (Gr. 6-8) 
• Student Leadership/Service Learning 

 
The school’s athletic programs promote individual and team-oriented achievement through school-sponsored teams and 
intramural sports programs. Intramural sports are a component of the physical education curriculum. 

• Basketball (Gr. 6-8) 
• Flag Football (Gr. 6-8) 
• Track (Gr. 6-8) 
• Volleyball (Gr. 6-8) 

 
 
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 22 Central Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 34.43% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.52% 5.62% 

Professional Development 
Professional Development 

Central Union School District combines efforts to provide training and curriculum development based on the California 
Standards which are aligned to the content of the curriculum frameworks for grades transitional kindergarten through eight. 
Teachers within the District align classroom curriculum to ensure that all students either meet or exceed state proficiency 
levels.  

CUSD Vision focuses on “empowering every student to excel to their highest potential.” We seek “to be an exemplary learning 
community,” as stated in our mission. With this in mind, the District’s Professional Development Plan continues to focus on the 
Professional Learning Communities (PLC). Grade Level Teams have worked to identify Essential Standards Districtwide to 
ensure that all students are achieving.  

The Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) framework is leveraged to focus on the academic, social-Emotional and behavioral 
needs of students. District counselors and psychologists continue to provide certificated staff with Best Practices for Building 
Relationships including strategies to address any barriers. Incorporating social emotional learning (SEL) strategies from Dr. 
Hood, professional development provided during the 2021-2022 school year.  

Central Union School District Professional Learning focused on literacy and developing skilled readers.  

Dr. Nancy Akhavan and her team provided various PD opportunities for all teachers, and all administrators. 

The PD focused on improving literacy achievement for all students. Instructional strategies supporting a comprehensive 
reading program leveraging Scarborough’s Reading Rope and the LIT Six: Phonemic Awareness and Word Work, Writing, 
Language, Read Aloud, Shared Reading, Small group instruction and independent reading, with oral language development at 
the center of all these six areas. Teachers worked on the Lit Six and literacy. Elementary focused on Phonemic Awareness, 
Phonics and Small Group Instruction for Differentiation to ensure students grow in reading ability. Middle school worked on 
effective literacy strategies in ELA and adding literacy strategies to content area work. Math teachers worked on aligning math 
teaching to focused lessons where students worked on mathematical practices.  
Each grade span K-2, 3-5 and 6-8, received tailored PD in teaching to the standards, while differentiating instruction. PD with 
admin discussed schedules and calibrated expectations. 
District-Wide: every site conducted academic classroom walkthroughs, and committed to “look fors” supporting ongoing 
continuous improvement. 
K-2, 3-5, and special education teachers learned about and implemented Lit Six pedagogy in relation to Scarborough's
Reading Rope, using McGraw-Hill Wonders, Board adopted curriculum.
During the non-student day, the AM session focused on Data Driven PLC work using the DuFours rubric to help teachers
provide student support based on data, while the PM session focused on Taking Thinking Maps to enhance writing skills.

$58,024
$90,901
$114,379

$136,622

N/A
N/A

$204,385

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 22 Central Elementary School 

Professional Development 

K-2 teachers committed to Coaching Support in data driven small group instruction.  
 
 
English Language Development  
A KCOE Consultant provided onsite ELD coaching and training. Professional Learning was differentiated based on need and 
focused on both Designated and Integrated ELD.  
 
Reading Mastery (K-2) 
Instructional Aides and Classroom Teachers were provided training in implementation of the Reading Mastery program. This 
professional learning focused on the design, delivery, and documentation of student progress and mastery within Reading 
Mastery. Participants actively engage in practicing sounds, signals, and scripts. 
 
New Teachers 
New Teachers participated in a New Teacher Kick Off professional learning days. The days included clarity about key initiatives 
in the District, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Professional Learning Communities (PLC). The Cycle of 
Continuous Improvement (CCI) was provided. Teachers received professional learning on curriculum and Assessments, 
Overviews of Thinking Maps and Step Up to Writing. Technology professional learning included Instructional Apps, 
PowerSchool, Illuminate, and more. The days wrapped up with training on Special Education processes and Number Talks. 
 
iReady  
Central Union School District utilizes iReady as the district wide diagnostic tool to measure growth in English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. iReady is administered three times during the course of the school year in grades kindergarten through 
eighth grade. During the 2022-2023 school year, 4 diagnostic windows were held. All teachers received two sessions of 
professional learning with an iReady trainer.  
 
Student data is reviewed at the district level with community stakeholders as well as with site leadership. In turn, site leaders 
lead discussions at their schools with grade level teams to ensure students are receiving small group intervention and 
embedded time to work on their individual iReady paths during the school day.  
 
Newly credentialed and/or beginning teachers receive training on assessment, individualized support, integration of 
instructional technology, and advanced content from the California Teacher Induction Program which is the preferred pathway 
to a California Professional (Clear) Teaching Credential. The Teacher Induction Program is co-administered by the California 
Department of Education (CDE) and the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC). The Teacher Induction Task 
Force and State Leadership Team provide support and technical assistance to local Teacher Induction Program leaders. The 
Teacher Induction program provides standards-based, individualized advice and assistance that combines the application of 
theory learned in the preliminary teacher preparation program with mentor-based support and formative assessment feedback.  
 
As we plan for the future of our District, continuing to build our capacity in the PLC Process so we can ensure all students 
“excel to their highest potential” and a comprehensive MTSS for academics, social-emotional and behavioral will continue to 
be a primary focus. 
 
Sites also differentiate for staff based on the needs of their site, providing training through Staff Meetings, Instructional Aides 
Meetings and additional site professional development including such topics as: 

• Math Model & Coaching 
• English Language Development 
• Collaboration 
• Reading Mastery Training 
• Academic Walks 
• Tech Talks 

 
Central School’s individual training efforts and professional development focused on the following: 

• California Standards-English Language Arts (Wonders Adoption K-5th) 
• Instructional Strategies 
• Math Coaching and Training with TCOE 
• Peer Observations 
• Professional Learning Communities 
• Pre-K through-3rd Grade Coherence Collaboration (P3CC) 
• Rigor & Relevance (Focused on Deeper  Knowledge of Understanding) 
• Student Engagement Strategies 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 22 Central Elementary School 

Professional Development 

• Strategic Intervention Planning 
• Trauma-Informed Training for School-Wide Personnel 

* Academic Walk Throughs 
 
 
 
------- 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 2 21 15 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

R. J. Neutra Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 
General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
SARC Overview 

 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 
2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name R. J. Neutra Elementary School         

Street Community Center Drive, Bldg. #967         

City, State, Zip NAS Lemoore, CA 93245         

Phone Number (559) 998-6823         

Principal Elizabeth Alvarado         

Email Address ealvarad@central.k12.ca.us         

School Website http://neutra.central.k12.ca.us 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 16-63883-6010318         

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Central Union Elementary School District         

Phone Number (559) 924-3405         

Superintendent  Thomas Addington         

Email Address taddingt@central.k12.ca.us         

District Website www.central.k12.ca.us/district        

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
Welcome to R.J. Neutra’s Annual School Accountability Report Card. The purpose of the School Accountability Report Card is 
to provide parents with information about the school’s instructional programs, academic achievement, materials and facilities, 
and the staff.  
 
R.J. Neutra School is surrounded by endless acres of field crops and military operations on the Lemoore Naval Air Station. 
Many are amazed that the school was designed in 1929 and built in 1960 because of its modern look and appeal. R.J. Neutra 
School strives to provide a warm and safe learning environment. For all students enrolled, the school’s top priority is to foster 
intellectual, emotional, social, ethical, and physical health.  
 
It is the belief of R.J. Neutra School that students can and will excel in an environment that is tailored to their evolving needs 
and conducive to all facets of the learning process. It is due to this belief that we have been able to successfully develop a 
comprehensive educational system that celebrates and promotes ethnic and cultural diversity, individuality, and emotional, 
intellectual, and social eminence.  
 
At R.J. Neutra School, we have made a commitment to provide the best educational program possible for our students. The 
excellent quality of our program is a reflection of our highly committed staff.  
 
We renew our commitment yearly in hopes that together, we will continue to improve our effectiveness in edifying today's 
students, preparing them to become productive citizens of tomorrow. It is in light of this fact, that we welcome any suggestions, 
ideas, or comments you may have. Parents can contact us at 559-998-6823 or through our home page address: 
www.central.k12.ca.us/neutra. 
 
Mission Statement  
The R.J. Neutra staff, in partnership with parents, will work toward effectively preparing our children to live in the world as it will 
exist in the future. We believe that much of the work our children will do in the twenty-first century is not yet determined. We 
strive, therefore, to prepare children to be lifelong learners, to think critically, to be problem solvers, and to learn from past 
experiences. 
 
The staff and parents envision R.J. Neutra School as a place of growth for the total child: intellectual, emotional, social, ethical, 

http://neutra.central.k12.ca.us/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
and physical. Our school is where individual needs are recognized so that every student may experience success within an 
atmosphere of warmth, mutual respect, and caring. We monitor, adjust, and thus increase student achievement.  
-------- 

 
About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 126        
Grade 1 72        
Grade 2 60        
Grade 3 59        
Grade 4 59        
Grade 5 62        
Total Enrollment 438        

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Female 51.4%        
Male 48.6%        
Asian  2.3%        
Black or African American  7.1%        
Filipino  3.9%        
Hispanic or Latino 27.9%        
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.7%        
Two or More Races  13.9%        
White  44.3%        
English Learners 1.8%        
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 36.3%        
Students with Disabilities 13.2%        

 
A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 
A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

23.00 92.00 79.00 89.87 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 1.00 4.00 1.00 1.14 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 1.90 2.26 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         1.00 4.00 4.90 5.58 18854.30 6.86 
Total Teaching Positions         25.00 100.00 87.90 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

24.00 88.89 84.10 89.86 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 2.00 7.41 4.00 4.27 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 2.10 2.31 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 1.00 1.07 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         1.00 3.70 2.30 2.49 15831.90 5.67 
Total Teaching Positions         27.00 100.00 93.60 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 
Misassignments           0.00 0.00 
Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 
Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 
Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

The state aligns textbooks, frameworks, and instructional materials to meet the California State Standards. Instructional 
materials for grades K-8 are selected from the state’s most recent list of standards-based materials and adopted by the State 
Board of Education. The District follows the State Board of Education’s adoption cycle for core content materials. District 
textbook review and adoption activities occur the year following the state’s adoption.  The District's Curriculum Selection 
Committee, comprised of teacher representatives, narrow the potential selections, followed by review and recommendation 
from all teaching staff.   All textbooks are adopted from the most recent state-approved list. All textbooks are consistent with the 
content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks, adopted by the SBE. Every student has access to their own textbooks and 
instructional materials. 
 
On September 11, 2023, the Central Union School District Board of Trustees held a public hearing to certify the extent to which 
textbooks and instructional materials have been provided to students, including English Learners, in the District. The Board of 
Trustees adopted Resolution #O-09-11-2023 which certifies, as required by Education Code section 60119, that (1) each pupil 
has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, (2) sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to each student, including English Learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum. 
 
        

Year and month in which the data were collected Sept 2023 

 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 
Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 
Reading/Language Arts Wonders - Macmillan/McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2016 

Collections - Houghton Mifflin (6th-8th) - 2016 
        

Yes 0 

Mathematics My Math - McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2014 
Course 1, 2, & 3 - McGraw Hill (6th - 8th) 
        

Yes 0 

Science Inspire Science- McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2020 
Amplify Science - UC Berkeley-Lawrence Hall of Science 
(6th-8th) - 2020 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science My World - Pearson (TK-5th) - 2018 
World History - National Geographic (6th-7th) - 2018 
US History - National Geographic (8th) - 2018 
        

Yes 0 

Health Embedded in science curriculum          

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
Campus Maintenance Site custodial staff and the District’s maintenance department work together to ensure playgrounds, 
classrooms, and campus grounds are well-maintained and kept very clean, safe and functioning for students, staff, visitors and 
community organizations that frequently use the campus facilities. One full-time day custodian and a team of evening 
custodians are assigned to Neutra School and work closely with the principal for routine maintenance, daily custodial duties, 
and special events.  The principal and day custodian communicate daily regarding school facilities and maintenance issues. 
 
R.J. Neutra School works closely with the District’s maintenance department for larger projects that may require third-party 
contractors, routine facilities maintenance projects, special projects, and school inspections. 
Central Union School District allocates deferred maintenance money to fund the repairs or replacement of existing school 
building components which typically include projects such as roofing, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, electrical systems, 
interior/ exterior painting, and flooring systems. 
 
Recent Campus Improvements: 
 
*  The District was successful in a pursuit of a fully funded construction program, which yielded close to $3.4 Million in state aid 
for the construction of four (4) new Kindergarten classrooms.  These classrooms were constructed during the 2020-21 school 
year, and opened for instructional use in August 2021.  The District eliminated three (3) portable classrooms that had housed 
the kindergarten programs.  A new kindergarten playground was also a component of this project. 
 
*  The RJ Neutra campus is slated for comprehensive modernization and new construction under the Federal Program of 
Public Schools on Military Installations.  This project is in the formative stages during the current school year (2023-24), and will 
commence over the coming years to provide a full campus update for the NASL community. 
        

Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2023 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

X    

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    

Electrical X    

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X    

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X    

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X    

 
Overall Facility Rate 
Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  

 
B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

70  47  47  

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

72  40  33  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

43.48  30.59  29.47  

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level Component 1: 
Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100 100 100 100 100 

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
The community, parents, and school staff all play vital roles in every child’s education and success. Educational research 
suggests that the single most important element to assure a child’s success in school is a parent who stays involved in a child’s 
education.  
 
At R.J. Neutra School, parents are encouraged to become active members of the school’s learning community and assist in its 
goal to develop independent, self-reliant, lifelong learners. Parents are encouraged to participate in the School Site Council, 
District Advisory Council, and a variety of on-campus activities such as the mileage club, color run, spirit assemblies, etc. 
 
The School Site Council for R.J. Neutra School is a governing body comprised of elected parents and school staff members. 
Council members are responsible for providing input into the development of the school plan. The School Advisory Council may 
and has elected to relinquish its duties to the School Site Council.  
  
School Communications - Communication from school to the home regarding school events, activities, and student progress is 
facilitated by school administrators and classroom teachers. A weekly newsletter is sent home virtually via Parent Square and 
includes current school news, a calendar of events, and other announcements as necessary. ParentSquare, an Internet-based 
telephone messaging system, is used to quickly forward important messages from school staff to each student’s home.  
 
The school’s digital sign is updated weekly with important news. Teachers send home weekly classroom updates. After-school 
activity schedules are distributed regularly, and a digital weekly newsletter is sent out via Parent Square. 
 
 
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 
2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 
All Students             

Female             

Male             

American Indian or Alaska Native             

Asian             

Black or African American              

Filipino             

Hispanic or Latino             

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander             

Two or More Races             

White             

English Learners             

Foster Youth             

Homeless             

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged             

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services             

Students with Disabilities              

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 
C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety 

 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.71 3.24  0.30 3.50  0.20 3.17  
Expulsions 0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00 0.07  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 
2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students           
Female           
Male           
Non-Binary           
American Indian or Alaska Native           
Asian           
Black or African American            
Filipino           
Hispanic or Latino           
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander   
Two or More Races           
White           
English Learners           
Foster Youth           
Homeless           
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged           
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services           
Students with Disabilities            

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
The Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan was developed for R. J. Neutra Elementary School in collaboration with local 
agencies and District administration to fulfill Senate Bill 187 requirements. Components of this plan include child abuse 
reporting procedures, teacher notification of dangerous pupil procedures, disaster response procedures, procedures for safe 
arrival and departure from school, sexual harassment policy, dress code policy, and bullying prevention policy.  The most 
current school site safety plan is reviewed annually, and any changes or modifications are presented to the School Board by 
March. Annually, the plan is also reviewed, discussed and shared with School Site Council (SSC), local law enforcement 
agencies, student leadership, and school staff. 
 
Components of the safety plan are regularly reviewed at weekly plant meetings, instructional aide trainings, and teacher 
meetings.  In addition, exercises or drills (i.e., monthly fire drills, lockdown/intruder on campus drills, earthquake drills, medical 
lockdown, missing child protocols, etc.) are reviewed and practiced monthly during the school year with students and staff. 
 
-------- 

 
D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 
D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 

 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        17 5   
1        20 3 1  
2        18 4   
3        21 1 3  
4        23  3  
5        24  3  

Other        13 2   

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average 
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        18 3 1  
1        18 3   
2        20 3 1  
3        18 4   
4        21 4 8  
5        18 12   

Other        16 2 2  

 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  
Psychologist  
Social Worker  
Nurse        
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  
Other        

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site $15,538 $ 663 $ 14875 $102305 
District N/A N/A $  14451 $97605 
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -.52 4.7 
State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -200.0 14.7 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
The Central Union School District Student Conduct Code, which is sent home with each student at the beginning of the school 
year, outlines expected student behavior and the consequences for inappropriate behavior. R.J. Neutra School’s code of 
conduct and school rules are in alignment with District policies and outlined in the student handbook. During the first week of 
school, behavior expectations and discipline policies are verbally shared with students at school-wide assemblies. Teachers 
review individual classroom rules and expectations with students during the first few days of school. Throughout the year, 
school rules and policies are communicated as necessary on the school’s website, in the school’s monthly newsletter, and in 
personal emails to parents/guardians of students. School-Wide Behavior Expectation are also displayed around the campus for 
student reference. The Student Conduct Code and student handbook are available on the District’s website.  

Students are encouraged to participate in the school’s additional academic and extracurricular activities which include: 

• Anchored 4Life
• Community Service Projects
• Deployment Group
• Dr. Seuss Birthday Celebration
• Holiday Performances
• Makerspace
• MFLC services
• Monthly Mileage Club Runs
• Read Across America Day
• Red Ribbon Week Activities
• Spirit Assemblies
• Wednesday Huddle

-------- 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 34.43% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.52% 5.62% 

Professional Development 
Professional Development 

Central Union School District combines efforts to provide training and curriculum development based on the California 
Standards which are aligned to the content of the curriculum frameworks for grades transitional kindergarten through eight. 

$58,024

$90,901
$114,379

$136,622

N/A
N/A
$204,385

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Professional Development 

Teachers within the District align classroom curriculum to ensure that all students either meet or exceed state proficiency 
levels.  
 
CUSD Vision focuses on “empowering every student to excel to their highest potential.” We seek “to be an exemplary learning 
community,” as stated in our mission. With this in mind, the District’s Professional Development Plan continues to focus on the 
Professional Learning Communities (PLC). Grade Level Teams have worked to identify Essential Standards Districtwide to 
ensure that all students are achieving.  
 
The Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) framework is leveraged to focus on the academic, social-Emotional and behavioral 
needs of students. District counselors and psychologists continue to provide certificated staff with Best Practices for Building 
Relationships including strategies to address any barriers. Incorporating social emotional learning (SEL) strategies from Dr. 
Hood, PL provided during the 2021-2022 school year.  
 
Central Union School District Professional Development focused on literacy and developing skilled readers.  
 
Dr. Nancy Akhavan and her team provided various PD opportunities for all teachers, and all administrators.  
 
The PD focused on improving literacy achievement for all students. Instructional strategies supporting a comprehensive 
reading program leveraging Scarborough’s Reading Rope and the LIT Six: Phonemic Awareness and Word Work, Writing, 
Language, Read Aloud, Shared Reading, Small group instruction and independent reading, with oral language development at 
the center of all these six areas. Teachers worked on the Lit Six and literacy. Elementary focused on Phonemic Awareness, 
Phonics and Small Group Instruction for Differentiation to ensure students grow in reading ability. Middle school worked on 
effective literacy strategies in ELA and adding literacy strategies to content area work. Math teachers worked on aligning math 
teaching to focused lessons where students worked on mathematical practices.  
Each grade span K-2, 3-5 and 6-8, received tailored PD in teaching to the standards, while differentiating instruction. PD with 
admin discussed schedules and calibrated expectations. 
District-Wide: every site conducted academic classroom walkthroughs, and committed to “look fors” supporting ongoing 
continuous improvement. 
 
 K-2, 3-5, and special education teachers learned about and implemented Lit Six pedagogy in relation to Scarborough's 
Reading Rope, using McGraw-Hill Wonders, Board adopted curriculum.  
During the non-student day, the AM session focused on Data Driven PLC work using the DuFours rubric to help teachers 
provide student support based on data, while the PM session focused on Taking Thinking Maps to enhance writing skills.  
K-2 teachers committed to Coaching Support in data driven small group instruction.  
 
 
English Language Development  
A KCOE Consultant provided onsite ELD coaching and training. Professional Learning was differentiated based on need and 
focused on both Designated and Integrated ELD.  
 
Reading Mastery (K-2) 
Instructional Aides and Classroom Teachers were provided training in implementation of the Reading Mastery program. This 
professional learning focused on the design, delivery, and documentation of student progress and mastery within Reading 
Mastery. Participants actively engage in practicing sounds, signals, and scripts. 
 
New Teachers 
New Teachers participated in a New Teacher Kick Off professional learning days. The days included clarity about key initiatives 
in the District, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Professional Learning Communities (PLC). The Cycle of 
Continuous Improvement (CCI) was provided. Teachers received professional learning on curriculum and Assessments, 
Overviews of Thinking Maps and Step Up to Writing. Technology professional learning included Instructional Apps, 
PowerSchool, Illuminate, and more. The days wrapped up with training on Special Education processes and Number Talks. 
 
iReady  
Central Union School District utilizes iReady as the district wide diagnostic tool to measure growth in English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. iReady is administered three times during the course of the school year in grades kindergarten through 
eighth grade. During the 2022-2023 school year, 4 diagnostic windows were held. All teachers received two sessions of 
professional learning with an iReady trainer.  
 
Student data is reviewed at the district level with community stakeholders as well as with site leadership. In turn, site leaders 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 19 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Professional Development 

lead discussions at their schools with grade level teams to ensure students are receiving small group intervention and 
embedded time to work on their individual iReady paths during the school day.  
 
Newly credentialed and/or beginning teachers receive training on assessment, individualized support, integration of 
instructional technology, and advanced content from the California Teacher Induction Program which is the preferred pathway 
to a California Professional (Clear) Teaching Credential. The Teacher Induction Program is co-administered by the California 
Department of Education (CDE) and the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC). The Teacher Induction Task 
Force and State Leadership Team provide support and technical assistance to local Teacher Induction Program leaders. The 
Teacher Induction program provides standards-based, individualized advice and assistance that combines the application of 
theory learned in the preliminary teacher preparation program with mentor-based support and formative assessment feedback.  
 
As we plan for the future of our District, continuing to build our capacity in the PLC Process so we can ensure all students 
“excel to their highest potential” and a comprehensive MTSS for academics, social-emotional and behavioral will continue to 
be a primary focus. 
 
Sites also differentiate for staff based on the needs of their site, providing training through Staff Meetings, Instructional Aides 
Meetings and additional site professional development including such topics as: 

• Math Model & Coaching 
• English Language Development 
• Collaboration 
• Reading Mastery Training 
• Academic Walks 
• Tech Talks 

 
 
Professional Development specific to Neutra included continue to support our Multitiered systems of support school-wide 
behavior matrix. This is a fluid document that is revisited at staff meetings to ensure that the supports are ongoing. At staff 
meeting, school site council, and instructional aide meetings we go over our school safety in the event of an emergency. 
Thriving University online trainings was a professional development opportunity for all staff members at Neutra where Dr. Hood 
gave information on Social Emotional Learning strategies for both staff and students. We also have an ELD consultant come 
out to Neutra for 2 days to help support and train staff on integrated and designated ELD.  
 
 
 
------- 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 4 16 9 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

Stratford Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 

---- --- 
2023 School Accountability Report Card 
General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
SARC Overview 

 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 
2023-24 School Contact Information 
2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Stratford Elementary School         

Street 20227 1st Street         

City, State, Zip Stratford, CA  93266         

Phone Number (559) 925-2605, ext 2555         

Principal Christina Gonzales         

Email Address cgonzale@central.k12.ca.us         

School Website http://stratford.central.k12.ca.us 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 16-63883-6010326         

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Central Union School District         

Phone Number (559)924-3405         

Superintendent  Thomas Addington         

Email Address taddingt@central.k12.ca.us         

District Website central.k12.ca.us        

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
Our mission at Stratford Elementary School is to provide a positive learning environment for the benefit of all students. We 
strive to ensure that each child feels personally connected to the school, attains high levels of academic achievement, and 
develops high standards of personal character. With these qualities, our children will undoubtedly grow to be productive 
members of the local community and society as a whole. 
 
Established in 1921, Stratford Elementary School is one of four schools in the Central Union Elementary School District. 
Stratford School is located in the town of Stratford, six miles south of Lemoore. Many of our students’ parents, grandparents, 
and even great-grandparents attended Stratford Elementary School. This close-knit community is grounded in customs and 
traditions passed on from generation to generation. 
 
Stratford Elementary School's administrative and teaching staff encourage and appreciate parental and community support. 
Our goal is to prepare all students to function as informed, productive citizens, to achieve success in the work environment, and 
to realize personal fulfillment. In order to meet this goal, students must attain high levels of academic achievement. By working 
together with our parents and community, we can ensure that our students maximize and enjoy the learning opportunities at 
school, while developing the skills necessary to make them successful, lifelong learners. 
-------- 

 

http://stratford.central.k12.ca.us/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 33        
Grade 1 27        
Grade 2 28        
Grade 3 30        
Grade 4 33        
Grade 5 36        
Grade 6 47        
Grade 7 28        
Grade 8 33        
Total Enrollment 295        

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 
2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Female 46.1%        
Male 53.9%        
American Indian or Alaska Native  3.7%        
Asian  0.3%        
Black or African American  1.7%        
Filipino  0.3%        
Hispanic or Latino 87.8%        
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  1%        
Two or More Races  2%        
White  3.1%        
English Learners 35.9%        
Foster Youth 1%        
Homeless 2.4%        

Migrant 7.1%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 86.8%        
Students with Disabilities 5.1%        

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 
A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

14.00 93.40 79.00 89.87 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 1.14 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.90 6.60 1.90 2.26 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         0.00 0.00 4.90 5.58 18854.30 6.86 
Total Teaching Positions         14.90 100.00 87.90 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 
2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

15.60 100.00 84.10 89.86 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 4.00 4.27 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 2.10 2.31 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 1.00 1.07 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         0.00 0.00 2.30 2.49 15831.90 5.67 
Total Teaching Positions         15.60 100.00 93.60 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 
Misassignments           0.00 0.00 
Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 
Local Assignment Options 0.90 0.00 
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.90 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 
Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

The state aligns textbooks, frameworks, and instructional materials to meet the California State Standards. Instructional 
materials for grades K-8 are selected from the state’s most recent list of standards-based materials and adopted by the State 
Board of Education. The District follows the State Board of Education’s adoption cycle for core content materials. District 
textbook review and adoption activities occur the year following the state’s adoption.  The District's Curriculum Selection 
Committee, comprised of teacher representatives, narrow the potential selections, followed by review and recommendation 
from all teaching staff.   All textbooks are adopted from the most recent state-approved list. All textbooks are consistent with the 
content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks, adopted by the SBE. Every student has access to their own textbooks and 
instructional materials. 
 
On September 11, 2023, the Central Union School District Board of Trustees held a public hearing to certify the extent to which 
textbooks and instructional materials have been provided to students, including English Learners, in the District. The Board of 
Trustees adopted Resolution #O-09-11-2023 which certifies, as required by Education Code section 60119, that (1) each pupil 
has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, (2) sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to each student, including English Learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum. 
 
        

Year and month in which the data were collected Sept 2023 

 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 
Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 
Reading/Language Arts Wonders - Macmillan/McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2016 

Collections - Houghton Mifflin (6th-8th) - 2016 
        

Yes 0 

Mathematics My Math - McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2014 
Course 1, 2, & 3 - McGraw Hill (6th - 8th) 
        

Yes 0 

Science Inspire Science- McGraw Hill (TK-5th) - 2020 
Amplify Science - UC Berkeley-Lawrence Hall of Science 
(6th-8th) - 2020 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science My World - Pearson (TK-5th) - 2018 
World History - National Geographic (6th-7th) - 2018 
US History - National Geographic (8th) - 2018 
        

Yes 0 

Health Embedded in science curriculum          

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
Stratford School provides a safe, clean environment for learning through proper facilities maintenance and campus supervision. 
Ongoing maintenance ensures school facilities are kept safe and in good working condition and continue to provide adequate 
space for students and staff. 
 
Campus Maintenance 
Site custodial staff and the District’s maintenance department work together to ensure playgrounds, classrooms, and campus 
grounds are well-maintained and kept very clean, safe and functioning for students, staff, visitors and community organizations 
that frequently use the campus facilities. One full-time day custodian and a team of evening custodians are assigned to the 
school and work closely with the principal for routine maintenance, daily custodial duties, and special events. The evening team 
of custodians is responsible for daily cleaning of both Central School and Stratford School. The principal and day custodian 
communicate daily regarding school facilities and maintenance issues. 
 
The custodian inspects facilities every day for safety hazards or other conditions that need attention prior to students and staff 
entering school grounds. During the school day, all staff members survey grounds as a part of their daily routines to keep 
facilities safe and secure. The custodian performs routine room-by-room inspections to identify conditions that require 
correction. Any graffiti or signs of vandalism are removed prior to students' arrival to campus. 
 
Upcoming projects - 
During the summer of 2023, the site received improvements to the gym floor, and a new partition wall was installed between 
the gym and cafeteria.  Looking ahead, the site will add an HVAC unit to the gymnasium area during the winter. 
        

Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2023 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

X    

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    

Electrical X    

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X    

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X    

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X    

 
Overall Facility Rate 
Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  

 
B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

24  47  47  

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

17  40  33  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

7.69  30.59  29.47  

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level Component 1: 
Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100 100 100 100 100 

Grade 7 100 100 100 100 100 

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
At Stratford Elementary School, parents are encouraged to become active members of the school’s learning community and to 
assist in developing independent, self-reliant, lifelong learners. Parents are encouraged to participate in the School Site 
Council, District Advisory Council, English Learner Advisory Committee, and Parent Teacher Club. 
 
School Site Council 
Stratford School has established a School Site Council in accordance with funding requirements. This governing body is 
comprised of elected parents and school staff members. Council members are responsible for providing input into the 
development of the school plan. 
 
Community Involvement  
Partnerships are important to Stratford School, and we are fortunate to have partnerships with the Kings County Sheriff’s 
Department and the Stratford Volunteer Fire Department. Deputy Wisecarver is on duty in the Stratford area, and he reports to 
the school two days per week to visit with students and show support for the school. 
 
School Communications  
All school-to-home communication is provided in both English and Spanish. Parents are kept informed of school activities, 
events and announcements on a regular basis. Parent Square, an Internet-based messaging system, is used to quickly forward 
important messages from school staff to each student’s home. Important information can be found on the school’s website and 
marquee, in newsletters, and inside the school office. When necessary, flyers are sent home with students, and very important 
announcements are mailed to students’ homes.  
-------- 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 
2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 
All Students             

Female             

Male             

American Indian or Alaska Native             

Asian             

Black or African American              

Filipino             

Hispanic or Latino             

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander             

Two or More Races             

White             

English Learners             

Foster Youth             

Homeless             

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged             

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services             

Students with Disabilities              

 
C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 
C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety 

 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 1.29  0.30 3.50  0.20 3.17  
Expulsions 0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00 0.07  

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 
2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students           
Female           
Male           
Non-Binary           
American Indian or Alaska Native           
Asian           
Black or African American            
Filipino           
Hispanic or Latino           
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander   
Two or More Races           
White           
English Learners           
Foster Youth           
Homeless           
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged           
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services           
Students with Disabilities            

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 
The Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan was developed for Stratford Elementary School in collaboration with local 
agencies and District administration to fulfill Senate Bill 187 requirements. Components of this plan include child abuse 
reporting procedures, teacher notification of dangerous pupil procedures, disaster response procedures, procedures for safe 
arrival and departure from school, sexual harassment policy, dress code policy, and bullying prevention policy.  The most 
current school site safety plan is reviewed annually, and any changes or modifications are presented to the School Board by 
March. Annually, the plan is also reviewed, discussed and shared with School Site Council (SSC), English Learner Advisory 
Council (ELAC), local law enforcement agencies, student leadership, and school staff. 
 
Components of the safety plan are regularly reviewed at weekly plant meetings, instructional aide trainings, and teacher 
meetings.  In addition, exercises or drills (i.e.monthly fire drills, lockdown/intruder on campus drills, earthquake drills, medical 
lockdown, missing child protocols, etc.) are reviewed and practiced monthly during the school year with students and staff. 
 
-------- 

 
D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 
D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 

 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        10 3 1  
1        17 1 1  
2        12 2 1  
3        12 3   
4        20 2   
5        30  1  
6        25 1 1 1 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average 
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        10 3   
1        15 2   
2        14 2   
3        16 1 1  
4        21 1 2  
5        22 2 1 1 
6        10 5 2  

Other        5 1   

 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor  



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  
Psychologist  
Social Worker  
Nurse        
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  
Other        

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site $ 15526 $ 2448 $ 13075 $99665 
District N/A N/A $12666 $97605 
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -200.0 2.1 
State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -200.0 12.1 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
In addition to general state funding, Central Union School District receives state and federal categorical funding for special 
programs. For the 2022-23 school year, the District received federal, state, and local aid for the following categorical, special 
education, and support 
programs: 

• American Indian Early Childhood Education
• California Clean Energy Jobs Act
• Education Protection Account
• Indian Education
• Lottery: Instructional Materials
• Medi-cal Billing Option
• Other Federal Funds
• Other Local: Locally Defined
• Special Education
• State Lottery
• STRS on Behalf Pension Contributions
• Teacher Recruitment/Incentives
• Title I, II, III

Students are encouraged to participate in the school’s additional academic and extracurricular activities that promote positive 
attitudes, encourage achievement, and aid in the prevention of behavioral problems. Extracurricular activities, clubs, and 
enrichment programs include: 

• Winter Program and Spring Festival
• ASES (After School Education & Safety)
• Athletic Programs

The school’s athletic programs promote individual and team-oriented achievement through school-sponsored teams. Practices 
for competitive sports programs take place before school, during lunch, and after school. 

• Volleyball - Grades 6-8
• Track - Boys and Girls Grades 5-8
• Basketball - Boys and Girls Grades 6-8
• Flag Football - Grades 6-8

-------- 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 34.43% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.52% 5.62% 

$58,024

$90,901
$114,379

$136,622
N/A

N/A
$204,385

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

 
Professional Development 
Professional Development 

Central Union School District combines efforts to provide training and curriculum development based on the California 
Standards which are aligned to the content of the curriculum frameworks for grades transitional kindergarten through eight. 
Teachers within the District align classroom curriculum to ensure that all students either meet or exceed state proficiency 
levels.  
 
CUSD Vision focuses on “empowering every student to excel to their highest potential.” We seek “to be an exemplary learning 
community,” as stated in our mission. With this in mind, the District’s Professional Development Plan continues to focus on the 
Professional Learning Communities (PLC). Grade Level Teams have worked to identify Essential Standards Districtwide to 
ensure that all students are achieving.  
 
The Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) framework is leveraged to focus on the academic, social-Emotional and behavioral 
needs of students. District counselors and psychologists continue to provide certificated staff with Best Practices for Building 
Relationships including strategies to address any barriers. Incorporating social emotional learning (SEL) strategies from Dr. 
Hood, PD provided during the 2021-2022 school year.  
 
Central Union School District Professional development (PD) focused on literacy and developing skilled readers.  
 
Dr. Nancy Akhavan and her team provided various PD opportunities for all teachers, and all administrators.  
 
The PD focused on improving literacy achievement for all students. Instructional strategies supporting a comprehensive 
reading program leveraging Scarborough’s Reading Rope and the LIT Six: Phonemic Awareness and Word Work, Writing, 
Language, Read Aloud, Shared Reading, Small group instruction and independent reading, with oral language development at 
the center of all these six areas. Teachers worked on the Lit Six and literacy. Elementary focused on Phonemic Awareness, 
Phonics and Small Group Instruction for Differentiation to ensure students grow in reading ability. Middle school worked on 
effective literacy strategies in ELA and adding literacy strategies to content area work. Math teachers worked on aligning math 
teaching to focused lessons where students worked on mathematical practices.  
Each grade span K-2, 3-5 and 6-8, received tailored PD in teaching to the standards, while differentiating instruction. PD with 
admin discussed schedules and calibrated expectations. 
District-Wide: every site conducted academic classroom walkthroughs, and committed to “look fors” supporting ongoing 
continuous improvement. 
 K-2, 3-5, and special education teachers learned about and implemented Lit Six pedagogy in relation to Scarborough's 
Reading Rope, using McGraw-Hill Wonders, Board adopted curriculum.  
Teachers in grades 6-8 Math reviewed Math strategies, how to teach project based learning in mathematics.  
During the non-student day, the AM session focused on Data Driven PLC work using the DuFours rubric to help teachers 
provide student support based on data, while the PM session focused on Taking Thinking Maps to enhance writing skills.  
K-2 teachers committed to Coaching Support in data driven small group instruction.  
 
 
English Language Development  
A KCOE Consultant provided onsite ELD coaching and training. Professional Learning was differentiated based on need and 
focused on both Designated and Integrated ELD.  
 
Reading Mastery (K-2) 
Instructional Aides and Classroom Teachers were provided training in implementation of the Reading Mastery program. This 
professional learning focused on the design, delivery, and documentation of student progress and mastery within Reading 
Mastery. Participants actively engage in practicing sounds, signals, and scripts. 
 
New Teachers 
New Teachers participated in a New Teacher Kick Off professional learning days. The days included clarity about key initiatives 
in the District, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Professional Learning Communities (PLC). The Cycle of 
Continuous Improvement (CCI) was provided. Teachers received professional learning on curriculum and Assessments, 
Overviews of Thinking Maps and Step Up to Writing. Technology professional learning included Instructional Apps, 
PowerSchool, Illuminate, and more. The days wrapped up with training on Special Education processes and Number Talks. 
 
iReady  
Central Union School District utilizes iReady as the district wide diagnostic tool to measure growth in English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. iReady is administered three times during the course of the school year in grades kindergarten through 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 20 Stratford Elementary School 

Professional Development 

eighth grade. During the 2022-2023 school year, 4 diagnostic windows were held. All teachers received two sessions of 
professional learning with an iReady trainer.  
 
Student data is reviewed at the district level with community stakeholders as well as with site leadership. In turn, site leaders 
lead discussions at their schools with grade level teams to ensure students are receiving small group intervention and 
embedded time to work on their individual iReady paths during the school day.  
 
Newly credentialed and/or beginning teachers receive training on assessment, individualized support, integration of 
instructional technology, and advanced content from the California Teacher Induction Program which is the preferred pathway 
to a California Professional (Clear) Teaching Credential. The Teacher Induction Program is co-administered by the California 
Department of Education (CDE) and the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC). The Teacher Induction Task 
Force and State Leadership Team provide support and technical assistance to local Teacher Induction Program leaders. The 
Teacher Induction program provides standards-based, individualized advice and assistance that combines the application of 
theory learned in the preliminary teacher preparation program with mentor-based support and formative assessment feedback.  
 
As we plan for the future of our District, continuing to build our capacity in the PLC Process so we can ensure all students 
“excel to their highest potential” and a comprehensive MTSS for academics, social-emotional and behavioral will continue to 
be a primary focus. 
 
Sites also differentiate for staff based on the needs of their site, providing training through Staff Meetings, Instructional Aides 
Meetings and additional site professional development including such topics as: 

• Math Model & Coaching 
• English Language Development 
• Collaboration 
• Reading Mastery Training 
• Academic Walks 
• Tech Talks 

 
Sites also differentiate for staff based on the needs of their site, providing training through Staff Meetings, Instructional Aides 
Meetings and additional site professional development including such topics as: 

• Math Model & Coaching 
• English Language Development 
• Collaboration 
• Reading Mastery Training 
• Academic Walks 
• Tech Talks 

 
Professional Development specific to Stratford Elementary School included: 

• Designated ELD coaching with the Kings County Office of Education 
 
------- 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 21 9 

 


	010824 Board Agenda
	Item 6a 2nd Quarter Williams Report
	Item 6b 2023-12-08 Neutra Application Invitation_Signed
	Item 7a 121123 Board Minutes
	Item 7c MOU w_KCOE re math intervention
	Item 7d 23-24 ERS Revised Agreement 240145-A
	Item 7e MOU w_KCOE re ELPAC _ CAASPP Training and Support
	Item 9b Warrants Dec 2023
	Item 9c Fiscal Position Reports Dec 2023
	Item 9d (1) Resolution #A-01-08-2024 Audit review.docx
	Item 9d (2) 2023 Audit Report_CDWL_June 30, 2023 - Final
	Item 9e (1) Ltr from County of Kings Dept of Finance
	Item 9e (2) Resolution #B-01-08-2024 Director of Finance State of Investment Policy.docx
	Item 9e (3) 2024 Investment Policy
	Item 9f (1) Cover Sheet School Accountability Report Cards.docx
	Item 9f (2) 2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Akers_Elementary_School_20240104
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	Item 9f (3) 2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Central_Elementary_School_20240104
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	Item 9f (4) 2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_R.J._Neutra_Elementary_School_20240104
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	Item 9f (5) 2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Stratford_Elementary_School_20240104
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development






